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Group highlights

2006/07

It has been another successful year for the Kelda Group.
Our strategy has delivered further value for our shareholders

and improved service for our customers.
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Our business

v

Kelda is well placed to continue to build on
the successful progress of previous years.

1. Yorkshire Water

Turnover £741 1m {up 6 8%)
Operating proft 332 7m
Employees 2,198

2. UK Service Operations

Turnover £130 9m (up 5 9%)
Operating profit £10 7m
Employees 1,055

3. Keyland Developments

Turnover £6 9m
Operating profit £4 3m
Employees 6
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Yorkshire Water 15 Kelda s principal UK subsichary
prowding water and waste water services to more
than 4 7m people and 140 000 businesses

Every day the company supplies more than

13bn Iitres of water to homes and businesses

in Yorkshire Through the efficent operation of

s extensive waste water network and treatment
facihties 1t also ensures that the region s domestic
and industrial waste 15 returned safely to the
environment

Kelda Water Services

Ketda Water Services Limited (KWS) manages

the group's non-requlated water and waste water
contract operations an the LK It 15 now the second
iggest player i the UK contract operations
market wath operabons in England Scotland
Wales and Northern Ireland

The results of the UK serace operations include
the results of associates and joint ventures

Loop Customer Management Lid
Loop specialises In cost effectve customer
relationship management The company 5 main

Keyland Developments Limited {KeyLand} is
responsible for managing developing and
disposing of the group s surplus property assets
either on its own or N partnershup with outside
organisations

The results of KeyLand include the results of
associates and joint ventures

Business sirategy
= To maximise the value of the group $ surplus
property portfoho

Yorkshure Water has been voted Utility Company
of the Year at the Utility Industry Achieverment
Awards for the past three consecutive years

Business strategy
* To be clearly the best water company in the LK
* Focus on striking the nght balance between
service, complance value people partners
and society

contract 15 1o provide customer senice support
to Yarkshire Water

Safe-Move

Safe-Move 15 a non-regulated business which
prowides search information to sohicitors and
conveyancers including infermaion covering
dranage and water services

Business sirategy
*» To be the best in UK water contract operations
* Maxmuse value from existing operations
* Be alert to potential growth opportunities

4. Aquarion

Aquarion has been disclosed as a
discontinued operation in the results
for the year ended 31 March 2007

On 1 May 2007 we announced the completion
of the sale of our US business Aquarion to a
consorbum led by Macquarie Bank




Our strategy

Our focus remains on improving the efficiency
and performance of our core businesses, using
our experience in water and waste water services
to develop sustainable, non-reqgulated income
streams which add shareholder value.

Our shareholders

We are committed to creabng enduring
sharehalder value by a focus on efficency

i everything we de Our goal s to deliver
consistently good financial results by out-
performing regulatory and other financial
targets and deliverning efficiencies across the
group We will achieve this by sharnng best
practice employing world-class technalogy
and growing our non-regulated actmvities

Ovur customers

Our aim 1s to pronde a quality of service which

15 significantly better than any other utiity and at
a price which represents good value for money

To achieve this we wili design our senace from the
outside-In considenng the customer s point of
view and eluminating service failures This wili lead
to improved financial and operational performance
and an enjoyable customer experience

Qur people

Kelda employs over 3 800 pecple Cur aim s to
create a great place to work with zero acadents
a good work-life batance and the opportuntty to
make a real difference ‘We want to attract and
retain the best peaple with performance and
contribution recogrised and rewarded and
success celebrated as part of our culture

Ervironmental leadership

Kelda deals with emaronmental 1ssues as diverse
as catchment management sustanable water
management and nver water and bathing water
standards Qur performance affects all customers
and everyone who lives in the regicns we serve
Our aim s to achieve 100% complhance with legal
and regulatory obhigations and to go beyond
comphance where the benefits exceed the cost

Society

Our aim 15 to make a difference to society opening
up land for pubhic enjoyment and promoting the
value of water and health 1n schools Asound 38%
of our colleagues are involved 1IN community
volunteenng and external leadership roles and

In influencing matters relabing to water

Service pariners

Kelda has created a new level of partnership
understanding and transparency with its key service
providers Cur aim s to achieve win-win-win, which
means better customer service, lower costs and
healthy profits for all To make this happen we are
looking to set clear expectations and encourage
new deas and innovation

Kelda Group plc
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Chairman’s statement

The current and expected results depend
upon commitment, excellence and hard work.
We continue to set ourselves demanding
standards of performance.

John Napier
Chairman, Keldo Group ple
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In this second year of the 2005 - 2010
price deferminahon, | am pleased fo report
conhnuing progress tn our core UK water
and waste water operahons and the
completon of the sale of our US regulated
water interests now finalised following
receipt of the required US regulatory
approvals We have also already grven
nohce of our infent to Improve our balance
sheet and caprtal efficiency by making a
related return of approximately £750m to
shareholders by means of what 1s known as
a B share scheme These uchions are
consistent with our policy of focys on water
and waste water operahons where we can
maximise our leverage and experhse to
reduce costs, achieve regulatory out-
performance and improve service standards
and regulatory complionce This focus
benehts our customers in the long run as
regulatory out-performance reduces prices
into the future and capital efficiency 1s
necessary to meet regulatory and
shareholder expectahons

The perormance of Yorkshire Water (YW)
continued to progress strongly YW was recognised
as the most efficient water and sewerage comparny
in the UK When service and overall comphance 1
taken into account it maintained its top 2 ranking
in Ofwat s Overall Performance Assessment

{OPA) which compares the performance of water
companies The results included a reduction n
polluton ncidents and a 100% complance of
waste water installations There was also 3 best
ever performance on bathing beach standards and
our feakage reduction targets were met i ful

The success of YW reflects not only the continuing
efforts of everyone at Kelda as part of our
commitment to being the *best in class’ but our
focus on technology and better ways of warking
INvolving our major contract partners We continue
to develop applications to munirmise disruption to
customers when there are interruptions to supply
and have increased the electronic monitonng of
underground assets seeking to anticipate rather
than just react to service breakdowns In particular
I'would Iike to report on the technology success in
our Loop custemer service operation of a complete
replacement of our computer-based billing systemns
whach was achieved over a three year penod with
no loss of continuity of service or disruption

The advances we have made help us to develop and
expand our third party contract senaces business
KWS which has benefited from the full year effect
of earher contract wins We are on plan with the
bulding in Northern treland of 4 water treatment
planis The KWS business now has revenues of
£123m per annum and has grown organically to
this level from a standing start of over the fast S
years The smaller operations of Loop and KeyLand
also performed well

The completion of our sale of our US regulated
water operations took longer than anticrpated but
was announced as completed following regutatory
approvals on 1 May 2007 This sale in the US has
promded an opporiunity to intensify our focus
strategy and address 1ssues of balance sheet
efficiency The sustainable optimum cost of capial
15 achieved by hawing geanng levels close to the
upper range of requlatory borrowing assumpuions
wn the price determminabion This will be achweved by




making a capital return to shareholders of £750m
utilsig a combination of the net sale proceeds of
Aguarien and increases w1 our long term debt We
also tock the opportumity to reduce our pension
deficit by making a one time £50m contributton
Thus will be an addition to the contnbution

agreed under the regulatory determination The
mechamics of the return of capital to shareholders
may seem complex to some shareholders for which
| apologise The use of 3 B share approach i1s
commonly used because 1t offers choice to
shareholders

The financial performance for the year was
strong 10 the continuing operations with profit
after tax up 8 1% The principal contnbutor was
YW which benefited from a regulatory price
ncrease It did however incur a very sigruficant
INCrease in energy costs which was mitigated by
further increases in efficiency and reductrons in
cost tn other areas YW continued to out-perform
the regulatory targets and given this second
year result we plan to achieve 3 75% capital
expenditure out-performance over the 5 year
requiatory period ending in 2010 We also
invested £362 7m in the year in upgrading

our clean and waste water assets

The achievernent of a 12 4% improvement In
eamings per share on continuing eperations inked
to further sustainable progress in our performance
has allowed the board to recommend a final
dradend of 23 Op per share This will make the

full year dwvdend 32 25p an increase of 6 3%
which 1s wathin the regulatory framework that
allows a 2% growth in real terms

$58Is recovery on track

Yorkshire Water has made sigmificant
progress in preventing the detertoration
of countryside designated as S551 (Site

of Specia! Saentific Interest) across the
Pennines The Government has set a Pubhc
Service Agreement (PSA) target for the
next three years of ensunng 95% of all
S$SSIs are 1n either a favourable or recovenng
condition as judged by Natural England’s
conservation officers

Research by Natural England s predecessor
English Nature, suggested Yorkshire Water

Cn other important matters our commitment

to excellence efficiency and senvice 15 also
matched by our focus on wider environment
and community support oppariunities We
contenue to take the lead in encouraging our
own and congract partner staff in community
volunteenng We regularly review and maintain a
balance between public access conservation and
security of our moorland water catchment areas
optimising opportunities for access and leisure
We have completed the drinking water initiative
in prnary schools ‘Cool Schools and are now
developing a seres of healthy eating and energy
and environmental awareness initiatives which we
hope to rolt out in the coming year Cur range of
communigy actions together with improvements
in cur customer service standards has rased

our standing to platinum siatus in the Sunday
Times Top 100 Companies that Count based
upon Business in the Community’s Corporate
Responsibility Index

There was further external recognition of our
achievernents when our Chief Executive Kevin
Whiteman was named Business Leader of the Year
at the National Business Awards We also gained an
unprecedented third consecutve award as Utiity
Company of the Year Kewin would be the first to
acknowledge that these achievements depend

on the commutrnent and support of everyone

in the company and our contract partners On
behalf of our shareholders the board would like
to congratulate everyone for this magmsficent
achwevernent and thank them for their

continuing commitement and suppart

had significant improvements to make as
the company owns large areas of moorland
damaged by 200 years of air pollution

and post-war agricultural policies that
encouraged the drainage of Jand to create
grazing for sheep and heather burning to
improve grouse shooting

After working 1n partnership with Naturat
England, Moors For the Future and Pennine
Prospects Ltd Yorkshire Water s 555Is are on
the road to recovery with 36% now meeting
the PSA target - an improvement of 27%
agamnst a national figure of 18 5%

As biodiversity improves within these
speaial habitats 1tis hoped that the
enhanced environment will encourage
more people to wisit the countryside in a
responsible manner, further contnbuting
to other Government aims to encourage
people to live a healthier ifestyle

On board matters generally following the
comptetion of the US sale Rich Schmidt our US
based Non-executive director will be retising from
the board at the AGM The board would like to
thank Rich for his serices to the company

The audit committee and the board also
undertook a review of auditors which resulied in
PricewaterhouseCoopers being recommended for
appointment as audhitors with effect from the year
ending 31 March 2008 1 would like to thank the
outgoing auditors Ernst & Young for ther support
and contnbution made to the company in ther

11 years as auditors to the group

In surnmary a streng second year result with

a good all-round performance in alk areas oi
efficiency service regulatory comphance and
out-performance which we are confident that

we can sustan We are on plan to execute our
capital investment programme of £16bn over
the regulatory pertod We also look forward 1o
further growth in gur KWS third party contracting
business The current and expected results depend
upon comrmitment excellence and hard wark
We continue to set ourseives demanding
standards of performance

Keldo Group plc
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Business review

Chief Executive’s review

Kelda is leading the way for customer service

efficiency and value in UK clean and waste
water services.

Kevin Whiteman
Chief Executive, Kelda Group ple
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It has been another successiut vear for the Kelda
Group Our continuing strategy to focus on our
core UK water and waste water business has
delivered further value for our shareholders and
with an improved service for our customers

Group profit after tax from continuing operations
has ncreased by 8 1% o £171 7m on turnover up
6 5% to £878 9m Basic earnings per share from
canbnuwing operations have increased 12 4%

to 48 1p and it 15 proposed that our full year
dmdend 1s Increased 6 3% to 32 25p per share

Staying focused has led to another strong year for
Yorkshire Water and we have again demonstrated
market leading operational and customer service
performance In addition, KWS has continued to
make good progress and the sale of our US
regulated water business Aquanon means Kelda 15
now entirely focused on its UK water and waste
water aperations All our energies are now
directed at conttnuing to be clearly the best in the
UK at what we do

Yorkshire Water has continued to improve both
Its operational and customer service duning

a challenging year for the UK water industry
overall We are pleased with the progress which
has been made through cur continuing dnve to
fun an etficient operation and to out-perform

Kelda s approach s to strike the nght balance by
prowding a sausfactory return for shareholders an
improved service for customers and enviranmental
improvemnents Over recent years this approach
has delivered benefits for all and will continue as
we approach the next price review in the UK

Striking the nght balance in Yorkshire
Yorkshire Water had a strong year improving its
efficiency and overall sennce levels and gaining
external recognition as Utisty of the Year for
the third successive year

Both operating and capital costs are better than
target, despite high energy prices The company
was again named by Ofwal as the UK's most
effioent water and sewerage company with four
A ratings for efficiency As a result, Yorksture
Water remains on target ta out-perform the

rest of the current price review

Customers are ¢entral to the company s
philosophy and our aim 1s to prowide a quality of
service which 1s sigrificantly better than any other
UK utihty In 2006/07 Yorkshire Water improved
1ts score In Ofwat's annual Overall Performance
Assessrent (OPA) for the runth successive year

Ofwat s report shows that the company continues
to detiver an improved level of serice, including
a reduction in poliution incidents and 100%
waste water treatment works complance We
have alsa achieved our best ever bathing beach
performance, with seven Blue Flags awarded to
the region s beaches

By applying new technology, Yorkshire Water
also made dramatic reductions o customer
mterruptions and street excavations For example
n 2006f07 the company achieved a 32%
reduction n interrupbions to supply




The last year has also been an excellent one for
delivening water supply secunty The company met
its leakage targets for the tenth consecutve year

We expect a smilar performance in 2007 and
will continue to set ourselves challenging targets
around customer service value and comphiance
to maintain the momentum which we have
developed over recent years

UK clean and waste water focus

in selleng our US water business Aquarion we will
become a group focused on our UK water and
waste water businesses

Over recent years our strategy has been to dvest
non-core activties and many other companies in
the sector have also followed suit

KWS enjoyed another good year and now operates
major clean and waste water contracts across the
UK With its growing track record, skills and
expenence KWS 15 now established as a key player
In the UK market for outsourced clean and waste
water services Qur aspiration 15 to continue to
grow n this developing market by further
leveraging off our core skills

Financial efficiency

The sale of Aquanon also allows us to undertake
some prudent financial management and improve
the efficiency of cur balance sheet To this end

we have receved shareholder approval to return
approximately £750m of capital to shareholders by
way of a B share scheme and share consolidation

3%

Full year dividend increased 6 3% to 32 25p

48,

Basic earmings per share from continuing
operations up 12 4% (0 48 1p

The effect of our plans Is to increase the Yorkshire
Water net debt to approximately 60% of the
Regulatory Capital Value which ts in line with

the 55-65% range assumed by Ofwat in the

2004 Final Deterrmination

Dividends in respect of the year ending 31 March
2008 will be adjusted to take account of the
return of capital For the current requlatory penod
to 2010, we also plan to retain our policy of
growing dividends by 2% real in hne with
requlatory expectations

This structure will have the effect of bringing our
financial efficiency i line with our operational
efficiency and will continue to provide Kelda
with the nght balance of nisk and flexibibty

Gethng the balance nght

Whilst Kelda 15 leading the way for customer
service, efficiency and value we also concentrate
on wider 1ssues which are impartant to our
employees the environment and scciety

The continued success of Kelda is thanks to the
professionalism and dedication of our people
and | would like to take the opportunity in this
report to thank them for their hard work over
the last year It s their continuing commitment
at all levels within our orgamisaion which
generates new ideas and momentum to
deliver improvements

£878.9m

Group tumnover from continuing operations up
6 5% 10 £878 9m

/2%

Group operating profit from continuing
operations up 7 2% to £338 2m

We also want to improve our environmental
performance and will go beyond compliance
where we believe the benefits exceed the cost
Qver the last year Yorkshire Water has commited
to invest over £20m in renewable energy
including wind turbines, combined heat and
power and hydro generation

We recognise that we also have an important role
to play in socety and over the last year we have
improved recreational facilibies at our key reservorr
sites including new routes and paths for customers
and trails suitable for wheelchar access We also
remain comimitted to volunteering with one In
three of our people making a real difference in

the community

As we begin to develop our plans for the new
investment period and beyond, the views of
our customers and stakehofders will be crucial
in helping to shape our tunking Kelda 1s well
placed to continue to build on the successful
progress of previous years

Keldo Group plc
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Kelda’s customers enjoy
some of the highest
service levels in the UK




Business review
Yorkshire Water

Key performance indicators

TARGET  CURRENT YEAR
Overall customer
sahsfochon
COverall cusiomer 100% B5%
sahsfocton {Prior year 85%)
Drinking water
compliance
Overall dunking 100% 99 94%
water quality {Prior year 99 24%)

Waste water treatment
works (WWTW)
complonce

WAATW compliance
wath somlary consents

100% 99 99%

{Prior year 98 97%}

Accidents

[Riddor reports)

Major and over 17 35
3 doys ceodents {Priar year 31)
Alt 85 180
acaidents {Prioe year 179)

For more details on these measures see poge 29

Equal opportunihes
Age s certainly no barrier to employment
at Yorkshire Water

At the age of 61 Keith Wood from
Huddersfield has shunned all thoughts of
taking retirement and became a Yorkshire
Water leakage detector instead

Kesth, who has spent most of his working
life in a timber yard, now spends his
days patrolling the streets of Yorkshire
proactively searching for bursts and leaks

Regulatory performance

Regulated turnover mcreased by 6 8% to £741 1m
{2006 £693 8m) and operating profit increased by
6 4% to £332 7m (2006 £312 7/m) This year on
year improved performance reflects tanff increases
and the delivery of further efficiencies Yorkshire
Water wall still out-perform Ofwat’s operating

cost targets by £2m even after absorbing
considerable increases in energy prices 2007/08
electnaity has now been purchased at a cost
signuficantly hugher than that allowed in the
deterrination, but at a lower level than that

seen tn 2006/07 The company Is iImplementing
initiatives to reduce the impact of the continuing
high energy costs

Regulated capital investment for the year was
£362 7m (2606 £330 6m) The investment
contnues to be directed at the upgrading of the
regron’s clean and waste water infrastructure
The capital programme continues to go well
with all requlatory outputs delivered on or ahead
of schedule ang we are on track to achieve our
planned 7 5% out-performance of Ofwat s
expenditure targets

Ofwat again confirmed Yorkshire Water as the
most efficent water and sewerage company In
the UK The company was awarded four A' ratings
for the efficient way 1t runs its water and waste
water operations

Customer service

Yorkshure Water continued to improve levels

of operational and customer service in Cfwat s
Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) with an
increase in score for the ninth consecutve year
The report confirmed that the company achieved
the highest grades available in all categones of
service Indicators

Technelegical innovathon

Technology is at the heart of Yorkshire
Water s ptans to repair bursts and leaks
without ever having to shut off customers
water supphes

Pictured are Dr Steve Joseph, Dr Toby Buxall
and lan Robenson, trating a new bag
systemn developed by the University of
Sheffield which can seal leaks without the
need to dig disruptive holes in the highway

Such innovation has seen a 40% reduction
In the number of customers whose
supplies are interrupted each year

This has been an excelfent year for delivering
water supply secunty and further improving
our customers’ confidence in the company s
ranagerment of water resources The company
centinued to achieve leakage reducton targets

A number of significant imitiatves in both the clean
and waste water businesses are already delnvering
improvemnents in service and efficencies

The biggest technology project within the company
N the last five years was successfully delivered in
Novemnber 2006 A new more customer focused,
bihing system replaced a 25 year old system and
has run well since This area cf technological
change has been notonousty difficult for other
ubhty compantes and we are pleased to report

that our project was delivered on time, on

budget and with no customer impact

Environmental performance

All suppliers working with Yorkshire Water are now
assessed using the compary's own Enviconmental
Vendor Evaluation System, which contnbuted
towards the company achieving 15014001
accreditation for every aspect of rts operations

Good progress was also made towards Improving
the condition of Sites of Special Scientific Interest
{SS51s) on Yorkshsre Water land In addibon 7 Blue
Flags were awarded to the regron s beaches a best
ever performance We also achieved 100% waste
water treatment works compliance The total
number of poflution incidents reduced year on
year We wifl be investing further capetal and
respurce in 2007 to reduce the stubborn but

small number of more senous pollution Incidents

Kelda Group ple
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Recreahonal opportunities
Well-known celebrities have been
supporting a high profile campaign to
promote the recreattonal opportunities
available at Yorkshire Water s reservoirs

Custorners can take part 1n a range of
activities at the company s sites including
sathing fishing rambling bird-watching
cychng and horse-nding

Yorkshire poet lan McMillan encouraged
customers to put pen to paper and write
about their favounte reservoir site

Countryhile and former Newsround
presenter John Craven returned to tus
home town of Leeds to launch a new
promotional TV campaign on the banks
of Eccup Reservolr

For further information visit
www yorkshirewater com/frecreation

Keldo Group plc
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Social impact

We achieved platinum status in the Sunday

Times Top 100 Companies that Count 2007 report,
based on Business in the Community’s Corporate
Responsibility Index The repert benchmarks
comparies performance against a range of socal
ethical and emronmental issues  The compary
which actweved 11s highest ever score of 97%,
achieved cutstanding performance i the areas
of community environmentaf workplace and
customer management

During the year Yorkshre Water increased

the percentage of its people being invotved In
community volunteenng to 38% Our volunteers
were involved I a range of actmibies including
Cares inibiatives  nght to read’ and Numbers
Fartners, often being supported by colleagues
from our senvice partners

The Cool Schools campaign has concluded
successfully At the end of the initiative, mare than
1,400 coolers have been mstalled in 750 schools
A new schools campatgn 15 being planned for the
near future

Yorkstire Water continued to be recognised for s
environmental efforts, collecung two Green Apple
environment awards, a Big Tick re-accreditation
for sts Environmental Management System

Employees

The progress and momentum generated over
recent years (s directly attnbutable to the talent
commitment and enthusiasm of Yorkshire Water's
people — and particularty therr response to change
New technology and ways of working have been
carefully introduced and adopted over recent years
and today innovation is seen at work throughout
the business, Improving customer service and

Job satisfaction

Yorkshire Water s commitment to creating a
skilled and motvated workforce 15 seen in its
investment In training with over 250 managers
and service partner representatives taking part

n extensive leadership development programmes
duning the year




Business review

UK Service Operations

Kelda uses its expertise in water and waste water
services to develop long term, non-requlated
income streams which add shareholder value.

Innovation

Every time a toilet is flushed mn Newport,
Wales, few realise they re producing power
protecting the environment and making
national hustory too!

KWS Wales has perfected a technique that
allows treated water to be passed through
a heat exchanger almost in the same way
as a frdge works, to warm up the offices
at Nash Waste Water Treatrnent Works

The offices are no longer powered by
liquid petroleumn gas cutting carbon
emissions by three quarters and annual
energy bills by 85%

KWS5 Wales ptans to roll out the system
which was designed in conjunction with
Sheffield s ECO Heat Pumps to other
large treatment works

UK Serwice Operations compnses Kelda Water
Services (KWS) Loop and Safe-Move Operating
profit increased to £10 7m {2006 £9 1m}, mainly
reflecting the continuing strong operating
performances of exising businesses

Keldo Water Services

KWS prowvides a clear focus for Kelda s UX
non-regulated water and waste water contract
operations businesses It has grown in the last five
years from nothing to a £123m turnover business
and has establshed a proven track record of
winming contracts and delivening on its
commitments on serwce operations and financial
returns KWS continues to seek new growth
opportunities in 1ts area of operation

2006{07 saw KWS operating across the UK through
its subsidiaries and associate undertakings

Aberdeen Environmental Serces (AES) which
15 45% owned by KWS5, manages four waste
water plants in Aberdeenshire under a 30 year
contract Grampian Waste Water Services

a wholly owned subsichary of KWS operates
the contract

A successiul second full year has been
completed in the contract to provide waste
water gperations and mantenance services
0 Welsh Water (Dwr Cymru} invoiving the
operations of 570 waste water plants and
over 13 000km of sewer network

KWS s 3 50% shareholder in Brey Utilities
whuch runs a 25 year contract with the Ministry
of Delence Delta Water Services a wholly
owned subsidiary of KWS provides sub-
contracted operational and maintenance
services to over 80% of Brey s sites

Dalrniada Water Services a joent venture, 15 .
currently progressing well on its bulding of
four water treatment works and associated
infrastructure following the successful

award of Project Alpha by Water Services
Narthem Ireland

Loop

Loop Customer Management Lire

cost effecve ¢

The company s

customer servic / /
the last year Lo

some of the be

best performar
industry Loop
to the highly st
Yorkshire Wate N

Safe-Move N
Safe-Move 15 2 /
provides search Informauuin W su s s
conveyancers including information covenng
drainage and water seraces

Kelda Group plk
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Business review

KeyLand Developments

Aquarion

In selling our US water business Aquarion
we will become a group focused on our
UK water and waste water businesses.

Keyland

Operating profit ncreased by £1 3m n the year

to £4 3m {2006 £3m) which 1s closer to histonc
levels of profitabiity The decrease in the pnor
year was due to the uming of property sales and
planning applications Net assets of KeyLand were
£30 8m at the end of March 2007 (2006 £32 8m)

The primary source of revenue continues to be
from the disposa! o development of brownfield
sites The timing of sales I1s impacted by the
planning process

Aquarion

The group announced on 1 May 2007 that

1t had completed the disposal of its US regulated
water supply business Aquanon We believe that
exiting the US market 1510 the best interest of our
shareholders and followaing a number of years of
operational and efficiency improvements, the new
owners have acquired a well run and efficient
business and Aquanon has secured a long term
quality owner
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Regenerahon

A Keytand project to renovate a disused
pumping station 1n Whitby has led to a
unique new addition to the town Keyland
Devetopments handles all Yorkshire Water
property that has become surplus to
reqthrements The old pumping station

at Whitby became defunct as part of
Yorkshire Water's recent £120 million
investment in waste water treatment works
along the East Coast. The property, which
attracted a lot of interest from the local
media, was sold to a local hoteher who
has since transformed the station into a
luxury annexe suite




Business review
Financial review

It has been another positive year for the group
with operating profit from continuing operations

increasing by 7.2%.

Group operahng profit from conhnuing
operations

Group turnover from cont{mweng operations,
ncluding share of associates and joint ventures,
increased by £53 5m {6 5%) to £878 9m (2006
£825 4m) for the full year This was driven by a
£47 3m (6 8%) increase in UK reguiated tumover
following a 7 7% tarif increase at Yorkshire Water
Turnover from UK Senace Operations, ndudmg
associates and joint ventures has increased by
£7 3m (5 9%) to £330 9m (2006 £123 6m)

Group operating profit from continuing operations
increased by £22 8m (7 2%) to £338 2m Yorkshire
Water's dominant cantrbution accounts for

£332 7m {2006 £312 7m} of group operating
profit from continuing cperations Yorkshire

Water s 6 4% (£20 Om) increase i regulated
operating profit was dnven by the tanff increase
and goed cost control providing funds to finance
the ongomng capital expenditure programme

UK Sernice Operations has also grown its
profitability to €16 7m {2006 £9 1m) which

Marhn Towers includes strong operating performance from
Group Finance Director, existing business Operating profit margin has
Kelda Group ple increased from 74% 1o 8 2%

Keyland profitabulity increased by £1 3m in the year
to £4 3m This was due to the uming of property
sales and 15 closer to histonic levels of profit

Profit before taxahon

Profit from continuing operations before
taxation has sncreased by 75% to £2412m
(2006 £224 3m)

The wcrease in net Interest expense of £5 9m to
£970m (2006 £91 Tm) reflects increased levels of
net debt funding the ongaing capital programme
and the share buy back of £59 3m from the first
half of the year Total net interest expense includes
a net €6 9m recevable (2006 £2 Om) relating

to pension fund assets and liabiies comprising
£45 7m expected retum on pension scheme assets
and £38 8m wnterest on pension scheme habilities

Taxahon

The group tax charge relating to continuing
operations of £69 5m {2006 £65 4m) includes
£49 6m (2006 £53 5m) In respect of the
current tax charge a pnor year credit of £2 9m
{2006 £30m)and £22 8rn (2006 £14 9m)

In respect of the deferred tax charge The
underlying effective tax rate excluding pnor year
adjustments of 30% can be analysed as 21% in
respect of the current tax charge and 9% in
respect of deferred tax

Disconhnued operahons

The resufts of our US operations are presented as a
discantinued business as required by IFRS 5
Turnover oi £99 4m (2006 £104 2m} 1s broadly
comparable with the previous year in dollar teams
Operating profit of £41 6m has the benefit of

£12 7m depreciation net charged o operating
profit under IFRS 5 On a like for like basis the
2006 operating profit of £32 8m after depreciation
compares with a 2007 equivalent of £28 Sm The
overall loss for the year on the discontinued US
operations actmty 1s £20 4m, having made an
impairment charge to recognise the ext from the
US (see note 8)

Earnungs per share and dividends
Basic earmings per share from continuing
operations are 48 1p {2006 42 8p}

An ntenm dwdend of 9 25p (2005 8 75p)

was paid on 5 January 2007 The board 15
recommending the payment of a finat divdend of
23 0p (2006 21 60p) to make a total dnvadend for
the year of 32 25p {2006 30 35p} The Increase
n the dradend of & 3% 15 in line with regulatory
expectabons of 2% growth n real terms

Kelda Group ple
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Business review
Financial review

Key financial performence indicators

3.5x

Group interest cover
2007 3 5x 2006 3 5x

48.

Basic earmings per share from
conhnuing operations

2007 48 1p 2006 42 8p

For more detals of these measures see page 29

Subject to approvat at the AGM on T August 2007
the final dadend will be pard on 31 August 2007
to shareholders an the register on 15 June 2007

Dwidend cover 15 17 times (2006 16 times)
Thus 15 based on dividends declared and excludes
imparrment charges but includes results for
discontinued operations

Cash flow and balance sheet

As previously announced in connection with the
proposed return of capital 10 March 2007 a special
contnbution of £50m was made to the group’s UK
pension scheme As at 31 March 2007 the group’s
UK pension surplus under 1AS 19 was £7 3m

(2006 defiait of £62 1m} The pension scheme
actuarses are undertaking the tnennial actuanal
valuation 3s at 31 March 2007 There has been a
pensions charge against profit from continuing
operations of £12 1m {2006 £15 3m)

Net debt of £2 104 3m at the year end

{2006 £1,953 6m) increased dunng the year by
£150 7m The icrease 1n borrowings includes the
impact of the ongoing capital programme the buy
back of 78m shares for cancellation at a cost of
E52 3m and the £50m payment into the pension
scheme Dwvidend payments were £109 7m

{2006 £109 4m) At 31 March 2007 the group
had unused commutted berrowing faciities
amounting to £831m

Ths movernent in net debt resulted n the ratios
calculated using funds from operations net of
taxation being 5 0 times {2006 4 2 umes) when
compared with interest and 23% of net debt
(2006 23%) The group continues to enjoy
sound Investment grade credit raings

Year end balance sheet geanng 1s 53% {2006
57%} A dvidend was paid from Yorkshire Water
to Kelda Group plc in preparation for the retum
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5.0x

Cash interest cover
2007 5 0x 2006 4 2x

60.67%

Yorkshire Water net debt to
Regulatory Ceprtal Value (RCV}

2007 50 6% 2006 42 5%

of approximatety £750m to sharehotders in July
2007 This has increased Yorkshire Water net debt
to RCV to 60 6% (2006 42 5%) As part of this
transaction Yorkshire Water has successfully raised
£600m n the long term stering bond market, split
£350m in the fixed rate market and £250m of
index inked debt since the year end

Accounhing policies

The group accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies described
n note 2 to the accounts in accordance with IFRS

Treasury policy

The group s treasury operations are controlled
centrally in accordance with approved board
pohcies guidelines and procedures Treasury
strategy 1s designed to manage the group’s
exposure to fluctuations ninterest and currency
exchange rates preclude speculation and to
source and structure the group s borrowing
requirements Note 24 to the accounts shows
details of the financial instruments held by the
group for these purposes

The group uses a combination of fixed capital
retained profits long term loans finance leases,
and bank facities to finance 1ts operations Any
funding required 1s raised by the group treasury
department in the name of the appropnate
company and supported by guarantees as
necessary Funds raised by the holding

company may be lent to operating subsidianes
at commercial rates of interest Cash surplus to
operating requiremnents 15 nvested in short term
nstruments with nstitutions having a long term
rating of at least A- or A3 and a short term rating
of at least A1 or P1 issued by Standard and Poor s
and Moody s respectively

Group gearing
2007 59% 2006 57%

Pensions

The disclosed IAS 19 surplus in the main UK
defined benefit scherne at 31 March 2007
was £73m (2006 deficit of £62 1m)

1AS 19 requires that the pension schemes are
valued using market conditions at the company’s
year end This produces a volatile figure for any
surplus or deficit as it 15 largely dependent on the
levels of stock markets on one particular date The
group s pension liabiliies are funded on a long
term basis (based on the triennial review of the
Kelda Group Pension Plan and annual reviews in the
US) rather than 1AS 19 disclosures

Shareholder value

The company s mid market share price at 31 March
2007 was 838 Op (2006 788 5p) The yield on the
company s shares at that date based on the
recormmended final dwidend was 3 44%

{2006 3 85%)

Gomg concern

After making enquimes the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the accounts

Change of auditors

In accordance with best practice of

corporate governance a review of the

auditors was completed This has resulted in
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP being selected for
appointment as the group s auditors with effect
from the year ending 31 March 2008 1 would ke
to take this opportunity to thank the outgoing
auditors Emst & Young LLP for thetr professionalisem
dunng their 11 years as auditors of the group




Business review
Looking forward

Kelda's strategy is to focus on improving

the efficiency and performance of our core
businesses in the UK to provide benefits for all.

Yorkshire Water

Keeping the nght balance for all of Yorksture
Water s stakeholders 15 fundamental to achieving
the company s vision of being clearly the best
water company n the UK

The compary s plans are therefore ahgned
with making progress In six key areas - service
comphance value people partners and society

A grea? customer service

A key aspiration 15 to develop innovative thinking
and employ new technolagies te deliver an
improved level of operational and customer
service By reducing the number of customer
interruptions and the invasive nature of repar
and maintenance work, the cormpany wall
delver better service for lower cost

Environmental leadership

Duning 2007{08 Yorkshire Water will continue to
IAVESE 1N IMproving waste water treatment works
complance, with a particutar focus on sewage
purnping stations The company's 2am Is o
achieve zero senous pollution Inadents

The company is also investing over £20m in
renewable energy

Setng the pace for value

In 200708 the am remarns to out-perform
key financial targets and to be Ofwat s fronter
company for efficiency By bemng operationally
and financially efficient shareholders and
customers will benefit

In this the third year of the investment penod
2005 = 2010 Yorkshire Water will be delivering
1ts largest annual capital programme for

the penod

A great place to work

Yorkshire Water plans further significant
Investrment 10 leadership and people development
over the next year with over 250 managers
including service partners, [cining 1ts Leading
People + programme

The bigger team

Successful senace partners share Yorkshire Water s
philosophy of improved service and lower costs
Next year some serwce partners will be integrated
onte the company s IT systems to delwer much
closer partnership

Making a difference in Yorkshire

2007108 will be a key year for the next pnce review
and the company will be setting out its position on
a number of key rssues for stakeholder consulkabon
as part of a Strateqic Direction Statement to be
published in late 2007

The company will also be making further
nvestment 1IN IMproving customer enjoyment
of 1ts landholdings and launching a major new
schools programme

UK Service Operahons

Kelda Water Services (KWS)

The KWS wision 15 to be the best in UK water
contract operations and the company 1s totally
focused on providing the best in water and waste
water solutions on behalf of its chents in England
Scotland Wales and Nerthern Ireland

2007/08 will be an mportant year for delvenng
new treatment works and pipeline infrastructure
for Water Services Northern treland  The state-
of-the-art treatment works expected to be
completed by October 2008 will prowde
significant water quahty benefits to people

in Northern lreland

In1ts ghird year of cperation in Wales KW5 will

be warking closely with Welsh Water {Dwr Cymiru)
In preparation for the new investment penod KWS
will also be expanding its PFI contract in Scotland

The company is also actvely pursuing
opportunities for further growth in the UK market
{or cutsourced clean and waste water senices

Loop

In 2007/08 Loop will make a further sigrificant
Investment In people to achieve industry leading
levels of customer service In the contact centre

Keyland

IR 2007/08 KeyLand will continue its successful
partnership approach in order to maximise
shareholder value from surplus Yorkshire
Water assets

Kelda Group ple
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Business review

Principal risks and uncertainties

The group has comprehensive and well-defined
control policies, with clear structures, delegated
authority levels and accountabilities.

The group s nisk management process aims to be
comprehensive systematic and continuous and
based on constant monitoring of business nsk

The board s responsible for the group s nternal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness

We classify prinaipal nisks in five categones
» Changes to the regulatory environment
* Changes in legislation

+ Climatic changes

» Social influences

+ Supplier markets

Changes to the regulatory environment
Yorksture Water s price lmits are set every five years
by Ofwat In setting pnce lirmits Ofwat make
assumpbions about, for example recuuired
investrment levels appropriate cost of capital and
Yorkstwie Water's costs  There are some mechanisms
for addressing changes to these assumpbions
between pnce rewews but, to a significant extent,
the nsk of such vanatons s carned by Yorkshire
Water untd the next pace review

PROY Price Review

On 30 March 2007 Ofwat published 1ts forward
programme to 2010 setting out the armetable for
the next pnce review whach 15 due to be concluded
n 2009

Kelda Group plc
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For the first time, as well as producing a fve
year business plan, water companies will also be
required to produce a 25 year strategic directon
staternent as a basis for consultaton with
customers and stakeholders

The key milestones are

December 2007

Companies to submit 25 year strategic
direction statements

August 2008

Companies subrnit and publish draft
business plans

Avgust 2008 to Janvary 2009
Public consultation on draft bustness ptans
September 2008

Ofwat publishes industry-level summary of
key 1ssues raised by draft business plans
Apnl 2009

Companes submit and publish final
business plans

July 2009

Ofwat publishes draft determinations
September 2009

Ofwat considers representations on
draft determinations

November 2009

Qfwat publishes final determinations
Apnl 2010

New pnce Iumits take efiect

Water indusiry compehhon

A legislative reqime for market competition in
water was established by The Water Act 2003
but as yet has not resulted i any significant
competitive acbvity Ofwat has insuigated
consultations and irtend o carry out further
consultations later this year as to how to
increase the level of competition in the industry
Competitive actmity cames nisks for Yorkshure
Water of losing customers

Changes in legislahon

Water strategy

In the summer of 2007 the Government 15 due to
announce a hew Water Strategy The overarching
aim of the new strategy 1s

“to improve standards of service and quality,
through sustainable water management whilst
achieving a balance between envronmental
impacts water quality of surface and ground
waters supply and demand and social and
economic effects”

Defra states that the strategy wll provide

“a timely, high-level steer on the Covernment s
water prionties in a way that will be helpful

to the water wdustry and Ofwat dunng the
forthcoming pnce review™

The strategy will set out prionities as opposed to
details of speaific policies Aay resulting policy
nigaeves will be devetoped with full public
consuliation and will be subject to regulatory
impact assessments where appropnate




Water Framework Direchive

The Water Framework Directive (WFD) 15 the most
substantial piece of Furopean water legslation o
date It requires all inland and coastal waters to
reach good status’ by 2015 [t will do this by
establishing a aver basin distnict structure within
which demanding environmental cbjectives wilt be
set mcluding ecological targets for surface waters
The WFD therefore sets a framework which aims
to provide substantiat benefits for the long term
sustanable management of water

This new Directive has the potenbal to drive major
addiuonal capitat investment and increases in
customers charges

Chimate Change Bill

In March 2007 the Government published a draft
Chrnate Change Bill which sets out a framework
for mowang the UK to a low carbon economy

For the first ume, the Government 1s proposing to
set clear and legally-binding 1argets for reducing
carbon dimade emissions

Indong so the Government 15 encouraging
businesses to make significantly more efficient use
of energy and invest more 1n low carbon fuels and
technologies such as carbon capture and storage
wind wave and solar power

As some aspects of the water and sewage
treatment process ¢an be relatvely energy
intensive, this legistation has the potenbal

to impact on companies energy strategies

The deasion will add more than 50% to the
length of sewers Yorkshire Water 1s responsible
for raintaining in the future

The costs of transter and of mamtaining these
sewers 15 expected to be taken it account
by Gfwat when it sets Yorkshire Water s pnce
hmuts in 2009

A Joint Commuttee of Lords and Comsmons has
been appainted to consider and report on the
draft Bill by 13 July 2007

Climahc changes

The group s core actrvities, the provision of

high quality water and sewerage serices, are
nextricably linked with the weather and therefore

The Government has launched a pubkc
consulation to seek views on how the transter
should be implemented

any climate changes have the potenbial to smpact
on business

As the group s resources are a muxture of water
captured in reservorrs or abstracted from nivers or

Supplier markets

The group 15 also subject to external market forces,
where input pnices can sometimes nse beyond the
requlatory allowance A good example of dus was
the fluciuation of energy prices in 2006

underground aquifers chimate change could alter
many of the varables in this complex equation

Social influences

The group 1s subject to social influences and
may be required to change its business practices
in hight of regulatory changes brought about

by stakeholder and consumer pressure

Public and private sewers
In February 2007 Defra announced that private
sewers which are currently the responsibility of
the owners of the properties they serve, are to be
transferred mto the ownership of the rine statutory
water and sewerage companes m England

&
This decrsion follows an extensive review of pnvate
sewers which was launched in 2001 In response '
to concems raised by householders A consultation
n 2003 revealed a high level of support for the
transfer and the Covernment concluded there
was a clear case for action

Ketda Group plc
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Corporate Social Responsibility
How we go about our business

By taking our wider
responsibilities seriously
we can make a

real difference




Corporate Social Responsibility

Introduction

As a provider of essential drinking water and
sanitation, we recognise the responsible role
we play in society and in the protection and

improvement of our environment.

“Yorkshire Water is
an organisation that is
dedicated to CSR and
excellence in making a
posttive impact on society.
Pam lee, Regional Director of
Business in the Community

We scored 97% in Business in the

Community’s 2006 Corporate Responsibidity
Index and 97 25% in the Environment Index, making
us platinum players n both

"

4

Making a difference in soaety 15 mtegral to Kelda's
approach to business and an essential part of
buillding a successful and sustainable water cornpany

The successful aperation of our business makes
a huge contnbution to the quality of lfe of our
custorners and the protection and improvement
of the environment To make clear progress our
customers and stakeholders need to see that
we are running our business in an efficient and
responsible way and that we are delivering a
great customer service

Getting these fundamentals night gives us a great
platiormn ta delver further value to society and go
beyond regulation where we believe the benefits
exceed the cost

As 3 public service prowider we also want to be a
good neighbour In 2006 38% of our people took
part i community volunteering in Yorkshwre alone
and they are great ambassadors for our business
In society Our senace partners also played a big
part i our volunteening programme last year,
recognising the benefits to ther own operations

Qur managers are encouraged to take on
significant external lkeadership roles bnnging their
skills and expenience to chanties businesses and
argamsations in the region We also work hard to
build strong relatonships with regional leaders and
the many stakeholders who wark in partnership
with us of take an interest 1 our business

It 15 iImportant to us that we are trusted and
that customers see that we provide good value
for money and take into account their point of
view For example last year we nvested in new
technology to cut readworks and interruptions
to supply modelling our service around what

1S IMpartant to cur customers rather than
conven:ent to us as a business

Our CSR website

For more detail and case studies relating
to our CSR performance including our

full statement of CSR prnciples and
performance tables wvisit

http ffcsr keldagroup com

To ask a question gr share your comments,
email us at csr@yorkshirewater co uk

Where practical we also want to be enjoyable to
deal with and in 2006 we invested in recreational
facilities at our reservoirs including new routes
customer-fnendly signage bndieways cycle routes
and disabled access

These investrmments and actmties are not driven by
regulation, but by gur aspiration to put serething
back nto the commurmbies we serve and to delight
our customers They are also fundamentally good
business and in ne with our basic philosophy of
striking the nght batance n our operations, in a
way which prowides benefits for all

Further information and ewdence of the clear
progress we are making can be found on our
new SR website and a flavour of our work 1s

included n this short CSR review

Kevin Whiteman
Chief Executive, Kelda Group plc
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Our role in the environment

We remain committed to conserving and
enhancing our environment, striving to achieve
100% regulatory compliance and continuous

environmental improvement.

Environmental management -

seting the pace

We continue to drive environmental best practice
through our operations with over 90% of the Kelda
Group now covered by Environmental Management
Systerns certified to 1SO14001 This year we
achweved Platinum Status in Business in the
Community s Environment Index {or the fiith
consecutive year and recened a number of awards
n recogmtton of our environmental best practice
Yorkshire Water collected two Creen Apple
environment awards and a Big Tick re-accreditation
for its Environmental Management System We are
now half way through the implementation of our
innovative Geographical Information Systemns-based
Biodwersity Action Plan and continue to work
closely with our independent Environmental
Adwvisery Panel of 22 key regional stakeholders

to ensuie we continue to lead the way in
environmental management

Tackling dimate change

We are commutted to managing ouwr carbon
emissions to assist i the rmibigation of cimate
change and are working in partnership with the
Carbon Trust to achieve this We 2re currently
developing a Yorkshire Water 25 year chmate
change strategy which will set out a programme
of research and actmbes for mitigating anct
adapting to climate change The new strategy
will ako enable us to consider the carbon
footpnnt effects of our investrment decisions
which in turn will allow us to take a more actve
role in working with the Govemment on
designing future environmental legisiation
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Driving energy improvements

We have been proactively drving energy efficiency
throughout our operations and increasing the
amount of renewable energy we generate, with
an aspiration for 10% of our energy to be
generated in-house by 2010 Over the past year
we have commussioned four new Combined Heat
and Power units and improved the performance
of exssting equipment to increase our renewable
generanon by over 25% We are actively
researching further opportunities for renewable
generation and have obtained planmng permissian
for three new wind turbines In addition we are
currently constructing a new Combined Heat and
Power plant and hydroturbine at our Esholt Waste
Water treatment works

Targets for 2007/08

Deliver the 2007/08 commitrments of the £227m
Freshwater Fish Directive investment programme
to further enhance the river ife of Yorkshire
Continue to implement a five year land and
recreation strategy to help delight customers
around our region and enhance as well as
protect our 555Is

Retan Platinum Status in Business in the
Community’s Environment Index

Increase our renewable energy generation by
30% to drive towards achieving 10% of our
energy requirements through self-generated
renewable energy by 2010

Complete the next stage of our Biodiversity
Action Plan

We have a range of other environmentual
targets which can be found on our website
at iﬂ-p [/ esr keldagroup com

Enjoying our land

This year, Yorkshire Water launched a new
website which promotes the recreational
opportunities available on our land
Podcasts guding wvisitors on walks around
selected reservairs have been recorded by
John Craven as well as fellow Yorkshire
celebnties Nell McAndrew, Gaynor Faye and
Harry Gration The aim is to raise customers
awareness of our role as stewards of the
countryside and as a provider of numerous
leisure opportunities such as walking
fishing nding cycling wind-surfing and
rowing For more information and to
download a walk pack or podcast, visit
www yorkshirewater comfrecreation




Corporate Social Responsibility

Ovur role in society

Our aim is to impact positively on communities
through volunteering, sharing skills and providing
educational support for local schools.

“Yorkshire Water sets the
benchmark on developing
a culture of employee
volunteering which delivers
real impact across a diverse
range of initiofives.”
Liz Needleman,

Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Cares
Director, Business in the Community

38% of our colleagues are nvolved in our
volunteenng programme

400

1,400 free Cool Schools water codlers have
been mstalled in pnmary schools

Our colleagues are actively encouraged to
volunteer to develop skills such as leadership,
ceaching or public speaking through a wide
range of programmes For example our Newlands
Business Bridge mitiative heldps colteagues develop
mentoring skills through supporting social
enterprises and was awarded a prestigious
Business in the Commumnity Big Tick in 2006

Our education centres continued to be extremely
busy this year with over 8,400 visitors Since 2003,
35 000 children have visiied one of our three
education centres in Leeds Sheffield and North
Yorkshire, to learn about the water cycle

All of our community inibiatrves are inked to
our capital investment programme s that the
communities we work in receve something in
addiion to water quality and environmental
improvements This year we delvered salety
presentations to over 4,300 chidren and
teachers potenbally affected by our works

Marw of our colleagues give to chanty through
Payrofl Gwng and are involved i fundraising
through our Waterwheelers team and WaterAxd
Commuttee Colleagues rased a record £258 000
for WaterAud this year through events such as
WaterAware Week and the 5w Peaks Challenge

What's next?

The launch of a magor new community campaign
Oeveloped in close haison wath internal and
extemal stakeholders 1t covers a broad agenda
of health environment and education and aims
to achieve our aspiration to be a nationat role
model for volunieenng by 2010

For mare detail and case studies relahng
to our communily programme, visit
hitp //csr keldagroup com

Walk for Woter

In 2006, our successful Cool Schoals
campaign through which we provided
over 1,400 free mains-fed water coolers

in 750 local pnmary schools conduded

A haghhght was that 1,600 children took
part in "Walk for Water' to help raise money
to tnstall water coolers in their schools.

Giving our hme

7, a record number of 886
colleagues and 153 service partners took
part in our volunteering programme
beating our target of 30% of colleagues
to be involved 1n volunteering over the
year We invested the equivalent of over
£144 000 of our cotleagues’ time 1n
commumty work
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Our people

We aim to create a great place to work, where
colleagues feel proud to work for us, can maximise
their potential and receive the recognition and

reward they deserve.

“l was recruited as a field
management team scheduler
at 57 years of age. In my
opinion, Yorkshire Water is
a fair and good employer
where everyone has the same
opportunity to progress.”
Roger Ferreira, Fie'd Support Techmicion

80% of Yorkshire Water colleagues parbcipating
in the Sunday Times Top 100 Companies 0 Work

for 2007 survey said they are proud to work for
the company
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We aspire to attract develop and retain the best
people In 2007 we launched an e-recruitment
systemn o prowde a more positive expenence
for candidates when exploring opportunities
and applying for roles with us online

Investment in people through trainng and personal
development remains a high prionty In 2007

we repeated our popular Career Developrment
Waorkshop enabling colleagues to explore and
develop therr career and Iife goals

In 2006/07 we discussed and agreed ways to
modernise Yorkshire Water's formal consultateon,
mformation and negotiation arrangements

In 2007/08 we plan to move to a fully inclusive
approach based on partnership pnnciples agreed
between the company and the trade umons

New forums representing both umonised and
non-unionised colleagues will consult and
communicate on matters aifecting our people

What's next?

We will continue to develop a culture of Think
Safety First’ Dunng 2007 the Furopean Year
of Diversity, we will hold a diversity conference
and apply our learning across the business

For more detail and case studies relahng to
our people visst- http //¢sr keldagroup com

Think Safety First

In 2006/07 our new Think Safety First
campaign raised the profile of health
and safety ensuring Yorkshire Water 15 a
great healthy and safe place to work
Initiatives include new Thunk Safety First
site signage, an employee Team Talk DVD
to share acaident expenences, @
behawioural safety traintng programme
and a Big Number on the intranet,
showing the number of days lost since the
last accident. We have also introduced a
health and safety leadershup training
module and integrated health and safety
into performance management traiming




Corporate Social Responsibility
Our customers

Our customers continue to benefit from industry
leading service levels. Our aspiration is to exceed
expectations at every point of contact, providing
a customer experience second to none.

“To pick up the title of Utility This year, we have

of the Yeer for a third year Won UK Utility of the Year for the third time at

H the Utility Industry Achievernent Awards 2006 service through seeking out and designin
running was a remarkable Again met the Government’s Charter Mark technology tg m|n|m|sg customner |m?>act.«";:I

achievement. We were standard for excellence in customer service As part of Clearwater, Yorkshire Water

Great customer service
Our Clearwater imtiative aims to improve

impressed W'i"h Yorkshire « Agan achieved four 'A ratings and been named 1s dnving innovation unliike anything
., b . . as the most efficient water and sewerage currently used in the industry In 2006
Water’s. .- 0 V:’OUS pnde company in the UK, with (?fwat labeling us as johnny Ball helped to demonstrate an
and amblﬂon. . ii:;?;::nﬁrkagpgxkfﬁr ﬁzﬂﬁecom endescope commeonly used in surgery
Judges of the Uhhty of the Year gn g 9 - a thermal imaging camera which can
Crinking Water Inspectorate s 2006 Report be mserted inta ptpes to identify any
2006 Utihty Industry Achrevement Awards stated that the quality of customers’ drinking

potentiat problems and the need for any
water n Yorkshire remasns hegh, with a matntenance work Using this type of
compliance level of 99 94% technology means reducing the number

o Actueved our highest ever score for customer of excavations carmed out.
service i the Ofwat Performance Assessment
o Table, achieving second place for operational

and customer service excellence

93% of the 220 customers we randomiy Wh
at's next?
|
teepcr;o:‘ee SaCh neu)nth are salisfied wath the We aspire 10 work towards zero customer

inpact failures zero excavations zero road
traffic congestion and proactive not reactve
cusiomer senice

For more detail and case studies relating New billing system
to our customer service programme, visit In 2006 Yorkshire Water introduced
hitp //esrkeldagroup com YorBill, a new contact and bitling

system to enhance flexibiity service and
opportunities to introduce innevative ways
for customers to see and pay their bills
through technologies such as mobile
phones and interactive telewston Around

1 3m bills were successfully 1ssued using
YorBill tn Spring 2007

Kelda Group plc
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Corporate Social Responsibility
Our service partners

We work closely with our service partners to share
our aims, objectives, best practice and success,
helping us to deliver a better service, supporting
the communities we serve.

Community Spirit Awards

Our annual Community Spint Awards
celebrate voluntary work carried out by
colleagues and partners In 2007 over

£1 000 was collected through the
WaterAud raffle at the event with partness
such as Costains, Earth Tech Mornson
{ETM), RPS Consuitants and Mott
MacDonald Bentley donating prizes

Costain won the Contract Partner of the
Year Award for their contnbution to the
community with Watermark being highly
commended

Kelda Group pl
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Our partners share the same high levels of
comimitment to customers and communities as
we do In 2006 Balfour Beatty Utiities was named
Uthties Customer Service teamn of the Year at the
Nattonal Customer Service Awards Working 1n
partnership wath Yorkshire Water on our two year
scheme to upgrade 95km of water mains at llktey
West Yorkshire the project 5 a customer and team
focused approach ensunng work 1s ahead of
schedule waith minimal disruptions

Watermark who improve our waste water
system in South Yorkshire have an innovative
approach to health and safety Ther zero
acadent culture has resulted in no reportable
accdents on Yorkshire Water schemes during
2006{07 Acaidents are well befow the national
average, leading Watermark to achieve Gold
Award status in the RoSPA safety awards

In 2006, Earth Tech Mornisan treated pupils at
Holy Spanit Primary School in Heckmondwike to

an unusual school outing Pupis wese given safety
gear and talks and taken {o an excavation in ther
school playing field to see haw an underground
storm chamber s being installed to hold excess
waste water, which can then be slowly released
back mto the sewerage systern The children then
created a newspaper repart on their expenence
of the fiood prevention scheme

All of gur contract partners helped with

many Cares Challenges in 2006/07 supporting
cornmunity groups 10 areas where we camed out
capital improvement works For example, Lang
O'Rourke spent their evenings re-pamting and
refurbishing the changing room  entrance and
toilets of the Burton Pidsea Memonal Hall in East
Yorksture as well as making saie the children s
playground leading to mncreased wsitors

Colieagues from Mott MacDonald Bentley and
Yorkshire Water s West Yorkshire team held an
open day In 2006 to showcase how £30m has
been invested in the area s waste water senaces
over the last two years The event included
practical demonstrations of the latest innovations
used on construction stes including concrete
which looks kke 3 dry stone wall pre-cast units
for reservoir wave walls and prefabncated
reinforcements which save money whilst
preventing acadents

For more detall and case studies
relating to our parmers, visit
http //csr keldagroup com

“We fully support Yorkshire

Water’s Community Affairs
programme as it makes a
positive difference to the
quality of people’s lives,
leaving a lasting legacy to
their customers. It benefits
employees’ personal
development, providing an
enriching working life.”
Mano Melton

Relahonships, learning and Impravement
Manager, Costain Ltd




Board of directors

John Napier [64) MA [Econ)

Cheirman B,D

loined the board in June 1999 Appointed
Executive Chairman in April 2000 moving to
Chatrman wn September 2002 Chairman of
Yorksture Water Services Limited and Chairman
of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance Group ple He
has formerly held senior posts as Chairman of
Booker plc Group Managing Director of Hays plc
and was formerly a non executive director of
Waste Recycling Group pi¢ He s also Chairman
of Yorkshire and Humber Rural Affairs Forum
and a member of the Yorkshire Forward board

Ed Anderson {56} BSc {Econ), CPFA
Nen-executive director A, B

Appointed to the board v June 2005 Managing
Drrector of Leeds Bradford International Airport
Currently chairman of Yorkshire Building Society,
Leeds Chamber of Commerce and a non-
executive director of 5t Gemma s Hospice
Formerly held severa! posttions with Leeds City
Counal, West Yorkshire Metropohitan Councit
and Bradford Counail

Dawid Salkeld (51) BSc {Econ), Dip PM, FIGD
Senior non-executive director B, C

lowned the board in October 2000 Formerly
Group Chief Executive of the Grampian Country
Food Group and Chief Executive of Arla Foods plc
and held senior posts in Grand Metropolitan pic
and Northern Damnes

Kevin Whiteman [50) BS¢, CEng, MIME
Chief Executive D

Appointed to the board in September 2000 and
appomnted Chief executive in September 2002
loined Yorkshire Water Services Limited in 1997
as Business Director Waste Water Formerly Chief
Executive and Accounting Officer of the National
fivers Authonity and Regional Director of the
Environment Agency Previgusly held semor
positions with Boitish Coal He ts a non-executive
director of UK Coal plc and a trustee of WaterAid

Kate Avery (47} ACIB, FCIM, MBA, FSI
Non-executive director A, B, €

Appointed to the board in June 2005 Group
Executive Director (Wealth Management)

at Legal and General Formerly a member of
the ABI Distnbution and Regulation Commuittee
and held several positions with Barclays Pic

Richard Schmidt {63) BSc, MSe, PhD, MBA
Nor-executive director

Appointed to the board in September 2002
Joned Aquanoen Company in 1995 Formerly
President and Chief Executive Officer of Aquanon
until September 2003 President and Chief
Operating Officer of Mechanical Technology Inc
President and Chief Executive Officer of Gundle
Environmental Systems and held senior positions
in Ecodyn Corporation

Martin Towers (54) FCA BA [Econ)

Group Finance Director

Appointed o the board 1n March 2003
Formerly Finance Director of Boots The
Chemists McCarthy & Stone plc The Spring
Ram Corporation plc Allied Textiles Group plc
and Yorkshire Group ple, and a former non-
executive director of Homestyle Group plc

Chnistopher Fisher {53) BA MPP
MNon-execuhive director A, B, C

Jouned the board 1n June 2003 and became a
non executive director of Yorkshire Water in
October 2004 He 1s a partner in Penfida a new
firm which provides financial advice to pension
fund trustees and is also a non-executive
director of Southern Cross Healthcare Group PLC
a trustee of the Impenal War Museum and a
member of the Council of Reading Umiversity
Formerly a managing director of Lazard and a
wice chairman corporate finance at KPMG

Denotes

A ~ Mernber of the audit commitiee

B = Member of the nomination commuttee

€ - Member of the remuneration commuttee

D - Member of the corporate socal
responsibilty committee
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report
for the year to 31 March 2007.

Results and drdends

The profit attnibutable to shareholders for the year
was £151 3m After dvidends totalling £109 7m,
E41 6m was transferred to the group s reserves

The directors recommend a final dvidend of 23 Op
per share to be paid on 31 August 2007 to those
shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 15 June 2007 The record date

of 15 June 2007 1s earlier than usual so that

1t falis before the share consohdation associated
with the B share scheme referred to in the
Charman’s statement The final dmdend will
therefore be paid by reference to shares held
pner to the consahidation An intenm daidend

of 9 25p per share was pad on 5 [anuary 2007

The total dmidend for the year will amount
to 32 25p per share (2006 30 35p)

Business review

A review of the development and performance of
the business of the group including the financial
performance during the year key performance
indicators and a descaption of the prncipal nsks
and uncertainties facing the group forward-looking
statements and treasury policy are set out in the
business review section of this Annual Report cn
pages 13 to 17 The purpose of the Annual Report
15 to provide information to the members of the
company The Annual Report contains certain
forward-locking statements with respect to the
operations performance and financial condition
of the group By therr nature these statements
involve uncertainty since future events and
arcumstances can cause results to differ from
those antispated Nothing in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast

Princpel actrvihes

The prinaipal actvibies of the group are the supply
of clean water and the treatment and disposal
of waste water Yorkshire Water Semces bimsted
(Yorkshere Water) the group s regulated utiizy
business in the UK, 15 responsible for both water
and waste water servces Following comptetion
on 30 Aprd 2007 of the sale of the group s
regulated water supply businesses in the states
of Connecticut New York Massachusetts and
New Hampshire the group continues to operate
the small non-regulated water and waste water

Kelde Group ple
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contract operauons business in the US However,
the group intends to sell this in the near future
The group's other businesses are the UK nan-
regulated water and waste water services business
and KeyLand Developments Limited, a company
which pnimanly develops surplus property assets of
Yorkshure Water

Acquisihons and disposals

0On 1 May 2007 the company announced the sales
of Aquarion Company to Macquane Utilities tnc
Agquanon Water Company of New York to United
Waterworks Inc and Aquarion Water Company of
Sea Chff to Aqua New York Inc

The sales do not include the small businesses of
Aguarion Senaces and Aguanon Operating Services
which comprise the contract operabons business
of Aguarion

Directors

The following directors held office throughout
the year John Naprer chairman, Kevin Whiteman
chief executive Martin Towers, group finance
director, Kate Avery Ed Anderson Chnstopher
Fisher, Dawid Salkedd and Richard Schmudt, non-
executive directors

Biographical detarts of each director are set out
on page 25 of this Annual Report

In accordance wath article 105 of the company’s
articles of association Dawd Salketd and Richard
Schrmidt wlt retsre at the forthcorming annual
general meeting and Davig Satkeld will offer
himself for re-elecion The evaluation of the board
as descnbed on page 30 concluded that any
director offenng him or herself for re-election
continues to demonstyate commitment to

thewr particular roles and perform effectively
The re-election ts recommended by the board
Details of the terms of hus appaintment, and of
hus service agreement appear on page 34

Details of the terms of atl the directors service
agreements and letters of appointment appear I
the remuneration report on page 34 Additional
information relating to directors who served duning
the year including remuneration and interests in
the company s shares 15 contained on pages 35

to 37 The details of directors interests i the
company’s shares form part of this report

Disclosure of information to the auditor

As at the date of thus report as far as each director
15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of
which the company's auditor 15 unaware and each
director has taken such steps as he or she should
have taken as a dwector in order to make him or
herself aware of any relevant audit informancn
and to establish that the company s auditor 1s
aware of that information

Corporate social responsibiity

There are group polices for the environment,
health and safety and human resources as well
as a code of ethics

The internal controt processes descnbed on

page 32 take account of social emvronmental
and ethical nsks !n addition the board receves
information as part of the nosmal reporting
process to identify and assess such significant

nsks where they are relevant to the nature of the
company s business Further details are included
1n the following sections of this report and in the
corporate social responsbility section of the report
on pages 18 to 24

Employees and employment policies

The group strives to create a positve working
enwironment for all colleagues and places great
emphass on open two way CoOMmmumcabions

It values involvernent at all levels recognising that
everyone In the business 1s a potential source of
mnnovation and change Internal consuttation and
communication processes prowide the key to this
involvernent and play a large part in achieving our
vision to be a great place to work

The company promaotes freedom of association,
principally through its deversity strategy and
through collective bargaining arangernents with
Its recognised trade unions In those parts of the
group where union representation Is jow wider
franchuse 15 achieved through invohing workforce'
representatives on joint working parties or works
council’ type amangements




The company commurnucations strategy 1s based

on a face to face first’ approach and all messages
are delivered through two way channels, ;ncluding
reqular talk back sessions wath seniof managerment
The company magazine Connections 15 distributed
throughout the business and aims to prowde
business news through the eyes of the

company 5 employees

Regutar employee satisfaction surveys are
undertaken across the group, using 3 vanety
of survey tools including telephone-based
online and paper-based surveys

A total reward’ approach 15 taken to salary and
benefits which are designed to be competitve
The group s sharesave scheme which has a high
level of participation at all tevels i the business
and pay for performance arrangerments provide
an opportunity for 2ll ernployees to share in the
success of the business

The group s equality and diversity, open to all’
policy covers gender mantal status, parental status
sexual ontentation race, colour, ethnic or national
origin disabifity age, rehgion or belief and trade
unien membership In 2006 Yorkshire Water
received the Yorkshire and Humberside Age Positive
Ermnployer Award i recognitton of its approach to
age dversity and 1ts dverse recruitment project
(learty the Best People was featured as a case study
In Equal Opportunities Review The group s
commtment to positive action towards applicants
with disabilities has been recognised with the
double tick accreditabion from the UK
Employment Sernce

The group prowdes a wide range of development
opportumities including in-house and accredited
programmes to help employees develop the
necessary skills knowledge values and expenence
to realise their performance potentral

Health and sofety

The company s commutted to achieving high
health and safety standards throughout its
businesses The management of health and safety
155ues operates In the context of the health and
safety policy adopted by the board and the systermn
of internal control

The group has established a framework of policy
procedural requirements by which all subsidhanies
must have 10 place appropnate health and safety
polices and procedures and provide necessary
wformation, instruction, training and supervision
in additon the compary prowides occupational
health safety and welfare adwisory sennces

for employees

Speafic health and safety goals are also set by
indwidual businesses These goals differ depending
on the business and include a combination of
reductions of acaidents and working temne lost as
aresult of acadents, traring delivery internal
safety audits and health promotion and
surverllance programmes

Seror management awareness and active
employee involvement in health and safety 15
fundamental to cormpany success A new Think
Safety First programme was launched in Yorkshire
Water dunng 2006 This programme ncluded
projects for shanng personal accident expenences,
prormoting key safety messages managers leading
by example rewarding and recognising colleagues
and implementing a behavioural safety coaching
process Elemnents of this programme are being
shared with other group companies to Impeove
safety awareness and ensure all colleagues

Thunk Safety First

Consultation with all employees via area and
funcbional health and safety forum groups and
safety committees is actively encouraged

Where possible the intent 1s for local health and
safety 1ssues to be discussed and resolved with
hne management In Yorkshire Water there are
health and satety champions who work alongude
the Trade Union safety representatives and ine
management This ensures that health and safety
1ssues are requiarly discussed wathin each team

in the Water and Environmental business units

By the nature of acadents there can be no
guarantee that they will never occur However

the measures taken by the cornpany are ntended
to place emphasis on prevention and continuing
wgllance Yorkshire Water has again been awarded
a Natonal Safety Award from the Bntush Safety
Council and a Gold Award for Occupational Safety
from the Royal Society for the Prevention of
Acadents for its health and safety performance
dunng 2006/07

Environment and community

The environmenta! policy of the company
recogruses that a sustainable water and waste
water business 1s dependent on environmentally
sustainable operations 1t 1s therefore committed
to integrating environmental best practice and
conbinuous IMprovement In environmental
perfarmance through the efficent, effective

and proper conduct of its business

Environmental performance s reported through
the company s web based environment and
community report which 1s reqularly updated
and independently venfied This can be viewed
at http ffcsr keidagroup com

The company contributes actively to the
communities which it serves It encourages and
supports colleagues in volunteenng chantable
gmng and community involvernent One in five
employees 5 active In a wide range of company
supported community actnabes These include
a Speakers’ Panel and support to local education
ranging from nght to read n jumior schools
through to coactung at semor schools and
mentoring university students from dwerse
ethnic backgrounds

Chanitable and polihical contribuhons
Chanitable contnbutions totalling £0 6m
(2006 £O Sm) were made during the year

No pohucal donations were made

Research and development

Dunng the year £4 6m (2006 £4 Om} was
committed to research and development including
£37m (2006 E£3 1m) on fed assets Research and
development actmties were pnmanly directed
towards improwing the performance and efficency
of Yorkshure Water s assets and operations
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Directors’ report

Purchase of own shares

At the forthcorming annual general meeting, the
company will be seeking to renew the authonty

to purchase up o 10% of its ordinary shares which
was conditronally renewed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 1 June 2007 Authonty was
previously granted at the annual generzal meetng in
2006 n respect of 10% of the company s 1ssued
ordinary share capital The authonty expires at the
close of the forthcoming annual general meeting
Dunng 2006/07 the company purchased for
cancellation 7845 000 ordinary shares at a cost of
£59 3m, amounting to approximatety 2 1% of its
ordinary shares At the end of the penod under
review the authonty granted at the annual general
meeting i 2006 remained vahd in vespect of

29 721 039 ordinary shares

Auditor

A resclution to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as the company’s auditor and to authorise
the directors to deterrmune thetr remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcorming annuat
general meeting The provision of audit services
to the company was offered for tender i 2007
The audit committee conducted the tender
process and recommended to the board that

a change of auditor from Ernst & Young LLP

to PncewaterhouseCoopers was appropnate
The proposal 1s supported by the board Details
of the group policy designed to safeguard the
independence and objectmty of the external
auditor are included In the corporate governance
section of this report on page 31

Payment terms to supplers

The company’s pormal terms are to make
payment in accardance with supphers terms
of trade or within 30 days from the receipt

of services or invoices subject to satisfactory
performance by the supplier Kelda Group plc is
a halding company and at 31 March 2007 had
no trade creditors outstanding The payment
termns of indmdual operating subsidianes are
disclosed v thewr accounts
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Major shareholdings

As at 13 June 2007 the company had been
noufied of the following interests amounting to
3% or more of the company s 1ssued ordinary
share capital

Threadneedle Asset Management 749%
Picter Asset Management 729%
Barclays Pic 4 05%
Zunch Financial Services 314%
Legal & Ceneral Group Pic 355%
Subsequent events

The sale of Aquanion and the company s return

of cash to shareholders through a B share scheme
{as approved by shareholders on 1 June 2007)
are referred to in the Chairman s staterment

Annual general meehng

The notice convening the company s 2007 annual
general meeting to be held at the Leeds Marmott
Hotel on 1 August 2007 at 11 00am s set outin a
separate document issued to shareholders

By order of the boag% ; — q

Stuart McFarlane
Group Company Secretary
14 June 2007

Regisiered office
Western House
Halifax Road
Bradford BD6 252

Registered n England
No 2366627




Directors’ report

KPI - Glossary of terms

Group financial key performance indicators

Group interest cover

This measure prowides an indication of whether

the group s profit 1s sufficient to cover its interest
obligations and 15 calculated as group operabing
profit from continuing operations dmded by the net
of finance costs and nvestment income  These
figures are disclosed i the audited accounts in the
group income statement

Cash inferest {Funds From Qperahens

‘FFO) cover

FFO cover measures the group's ability to meet its
interest payments This is catculated as net cash
inflow from operating actvties excluding interest
paid dmded by net interest paid These figures are
disclosed in the audited accounts in the group cash
flow statement

Group geanng

This rato measures the proportion of assets invested
in the business that are financed by borrowing and
15 calculated as net debt as a proportion of net debt
plus net assets These figures are disclosed in the
audited accounts in the group balance sheet and
note 26 on additional cash flow information

Earnings per share (EPS)

EPS 15 an important measure of performance and
growth EPS s calculated on several different bases
all of which are disclosed in the audited accounts at
the foot of the group iIncome statement Basic EPS 1§
expressed as profit for the year attnbutable to
sharehclders dwded by the weighted average
number of shares ranking for dvidend This is
quoted n retabion o both conbinuing and total
operabions Diluted EPS 1s adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
These relate to share opbions granted to employees
where the exeraise price 15 less than average market
pnce of the company s ordinary shares dunng

the year

Yorkshire Water financial key
performance indicators

Yorkshire Water net debt to Regulatory
Capital Value (RCV}

The RCV of Yorkshire Water 15 determined by

Ofwat and 15 the value of the capital base on

which a return s allowed for price setting purpases
The values are calculated and pubhshed annually
by Ofwat This ratio expresses Yorkshure Water's
regulated net debt as a proportion of the RCV both
of which are published in Yorkshwre Water's audited
regulatory accounts

Non-financial key performance indicators

Overall customer sahsfachon

The group recognises the value of hstening to
customers in order to deliver improvements
that not onty meet but surpass expectations
Custorner satisfaction 1s monitered on a regular
basis using a combsnation of random telephone
surveys and event-based questionnares

Yorkshire Water s tracker research s an ongoing
telephone survey Invohving 220 customers chosen at
random each month This monitors customers’
general perceptions and the expenence that
customners receive when they come into contact
with the company

Yorkshire Water also has a separate telephone survey
each month to a sampte of custorners who have
telephoned our contact centre This survey is based
upon Ofwat s regulatory customer survey The
results of the surveys are published on Yorkshure
Water § website wwaw yorkshirewater com

Ongoing event based surveys cover 12 speafic areas
of customer contacts namely clean water and waste
water reparr and maintenance work custorner wisits
by water and waste water field techricians, meter
mstallations, meter reading supply pipe repais, new
supply applications mains rehatilitation works

waste water capital works and calls to our contact
centre about biling and operational matters

In addition to its continuous customer research
programme for domestic customers, Yorkshire
Water also tracks custorner satisfaction with its
business users An online survey 15 conducted with
its largest business users throughout the year and a
telephone survey 1s carmed out with other smalter
business users on an annual basis

Water quality

The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) regulates
pubhc water supplies in England and Wales It s
responsible for assessing the quahity of dnnking
water, taking enforcement action if standards are
not being met and appropnate action when water s
unfit for human consumption

The Government has set legal standards for drinking
water (in the Water Quality Reguiabions Mast of
these standards come directly from European law
and are based on World Health Organisation
guidelines The UK has addibonal standards to
safeguard the already high quahity of water in
England and Wales The standards are strict and
generally include wide safety margins  They cover
= Bactena

+ Chemicaks such as nitrate and pesuiades

+ Metaks such as lead

+ The way the water looks and how it tastes

Although overall compliance with standards 1s no
longer published by the DW1 intemal monitonng
shows that in the year ending December 2006,

99 94% of all water qualty tests et the prescnbed
standards (2005 99 94%)

Waste Water Treatment Works Compliance
The Ervaronment Agency issues consents to allow the
discharge of treated water from waste water treatment
works The three pnnapal consented limits are for
suspended soids biochermcal axygen demand and
ammonia A range of other substances may be hmited
depending on the type of discharge This indicator
shows loads for the following determinants
+ Suspended selids which can blanket the river
bed thereby destroying fish habitat
Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) which 1s
a measure of the amount of axygen consumed
in water - usually by organic pollution - and
therefore reflects the quality of the water
+ Ammonia which 1s toxc to fish
+ Phosphate which ¢an lead to eutrophication

n fresh waters

All waste water treatment works are monitored for
comphance with ther discharge consents and the
recemng waters are monitored 0 assess ther
comphance with water quality targets The frequency
of monitonng depends on the size of the treatment
works small works are monstored on a quarterty basis
and large works are monitored every week

Reportable and nonfiable accidents

The Health and Safety Cormmussion Is responsible for
health and safety requlation in Great Bntain The
Health and Safety Executive and local government
are the enforcing authonties who wark in support of
the Comrmussion

RIDDOR - or the Reporting of Injunes Diseases and
Dangerous Occumrences Regulations 1995 - place a
legal duty on employers to notify and report sorme
work-related acadents, diseases and dangerous
occurrences

These include, for example

« deaths,

Major Injurtes,

over-three-day injuries - where an employee or
self-emplayed person s away from work or
unable to work normally for mose than three
consecutive days

nunes o members of the public or people not
at work where they are taken from the scene of
an accident to hospital,

* some work-related diseases (using the F2508A
report form) and

dangerous occurrences — where something
happens that does not result in an injury but
could have done
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Corporate governance

The board 15 accountable to the company s
shareholders for mantamning standards of
corporate governance The board considers
that the company has complied throughout
the accounting period with the provisions set
out in Section 1 of the Combined Code

The tollowang 15 an explanation of how the
company apphes the Combined Code

The board of directors

The board meets at least six hmes each

year and more frequently where considered
appropnate In addiion, meetings of the non-
executive directors are held when required The
board has a schedule of matters reserved for its
decision and the requirement for board approval
on these matters 1s cornmunicated widely
throughout the senior management of the group

The board deterrmines the group's strategic
objectrves and key policies and approves the
business plans for each group company intenm
and final financial statements, recommendations
of dwvidends significant investment and major
new business proposals as well as significant
orgamsational matters and corporate governance
arrangements The board s also responsible for
establishing and reviewing the group’s system
of internal control and nsk management and
reviewing at least annually its eifectiveness The
roles of the board the charman and the chuef
executive are formalty set out and agreed by
the board There are clear levels of delegated
authonty which enable management to take
deasions in the normal course of business

Dunng the year a formal performance evaluation
of the board 1ts commuttees and its directors was
undertaken The process inwohlved the completion
by each director of both a self evaluation and an
evaluation of the performance and effectiveness
of the board as 2 whole and indmwdual directars
Indmvidual discussions between each director and
the charman and meetings of the board and

the non-executive directors (Including meetings
without the chairman (o appraise his performance}
10 consider Issues ansing from the evaluation
process and to identify and implement appropnate
action were hekd The evaluation concluded that
the board and its commuttees operated effecively
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All new directors where applicable, receve

an induction on joiming the board incCluding
information about the company and thesr
responsibilities meetings with key managers, and
vISIts to the company's operaticns Briefings are
provided to directors on relevant issues induding
leguslatve, regulatory and financial reporting
matters Training 1s avallable to directors on, and
subsequent to ther appointrment to meet their
particular requirements There 1$ an agreed
procedure for directors to take ndependent
professional adwice at the company s expense in
furtherance of thewr duttes in relation to board or
committee matters Directors have access to the
group company secretary who is responsible for
ensunng that board procedures are followed The
directors receive full and tmely access to all relevant
information, mcluding a monthly board pack of
operational and financial reports Cirect access to
key executrves 1s encouraged The company has
directors and officers insurance in place

The board currently comprises a chairman two
executive directors and five non-executive directors
Ed Anderson, Kate Avery, Christopher Fisher and
David Salkeld are considered by the board to be
independent of management and free from any
business or other relationship which could matenalty
interfere with the exercise of ther independent
Judgements Kate Avery s a director of Legal &
General which owned 3 55% of the company s
shares as at 13 June 2007 The company does not
consider this to affect her independence as her
role at Legal & General does not include direct
responsibility for investrment degisions Richard
Schimidt was préwousty an executrve of the
company Dawd Salkeld 15 the senor independent
director The roles of chawman and chief executive
are separate and held by John Napser and Kevin
Whiteman respectively John Napier met the
independence cnitena of the Combined Code on
his appointment, although he subsequentty served
In an intenrm executive capacity, which he
relinquished In September 2002

Any director apponted dusing the year s required,
under the provisions of the company s articles

of assogaton to retire and seek election by
shareholders at the next annual general meeting
The articles of association of the company require
each director to be subject to re-election at
intervals of no more than three years

The board has delegated certain authonty to the
followming commmittees Each committee has formal
terms of reference, which are available on request
from the company secretary or on the corporate
governance section of the company s website at
www keldagroup com

Execuhve commutiee

Chaired by the dhief executive and comiprising
the executive directors and the chawrman 1t has
delegated authonty to deal with specific matters
remitted to it by the board

Audit committee

Chnstopher Frsher was the chairman of the audit
committee during 2006/07 The other members
of the committee were Ed Anderson and Kate
Avery Ed Anderson was appointed as chaimman
of the committee on 30 May 2007 in place of
Christopher Fisher, who continues to serve as a
member of the committee All three members

of the audit committee are independent non-
executive directors and each has sufficent recent
and relevant financia! expenence to discharge s/
her functions The external auditor the head of
Internal audit and the company secretary attend all
meetings The group finance director and group
financial controller wsually atiend by nvitation The
committee also meets with the external auditor
without the presence of executive management
when 1t considers It necessary or appropriate to
do se The cormmittee chairman reports on the
actvities of the committee to the board meeting
immediatety following each committee meeting

The audit commuttee s key tasks include

+ the rewiew and monitonng of the integnty of
the intenm and annual financial statements,
the rewiew of the group s system of internal
controt including financial operational,
comphance and nsk management
overseeing the company s relatonship

with the external auditor agree the nature
and scope of the audit and review

the independence and objectrty of

the external auditor

the monitonng and reviewang of the
effectiveness of the intemal audit function




in undertaking these tasks the commuttes receives
and reviews work camed out by the internal and
external auditors and ther findings Both the
internal and extemnal auditor work to an annual
plan developed in consultation with the commuittee
In addibon the committee reviews specific business
areas and processes from time to bme

The regular business of the audit committee
includes consideration of reports on financral
staternents audit planning, the actvibies of internal
audit and its key fmdings, and the consideration

of the operation of nternal control processes
Addiional matters considered dunng the year
Inctude a review of the systemns and controls in
prepanng and submitting regulatory data of
Yorkshire Water Services Lmited and systerns of
internal control and nsk management operating

I Kelda Water Services imited and compammes

in which it holds joint venture nvestments

The committee also undertook a review of the
effectiveness of internal audit with the assistance
of external advisers It also undertook a tender
exercrse of external audit seraces which

led to the recommendabon to appont
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ending 31
March 2008 The company has a policy for disdosure
of malpractice and the audit committee reviews
the arrangerments by which staff may in confidence
rase concerns about possible impropreties i
matters of financial reporting or other matters

The independence and objectvity of the external
auditor 15 considered on a regular basis, with
particutar regard to the level of non-audit fees

The company has adopted an auditor
independence policy which estabhishes procedures
and guidance under which the company's
relationshup with 1ts externat auditor 15 governed
50 that the audit committee s able to satisfy itself
that there are no factors which may or may be
seen o irnpinge upon the independence and
objectmty of the audit process

The key features of the policy are

* Clear accountability of the auditor to the audit
committee and the chairman of the board of
the company;

the audit commuttee considers annually its
recommendation {0 re-agppoint the auditor

the audutor 1s required to disctose the safeguards
and steps taken to ensure independence and
objectivity

rotation of audit partners and approprate
restnictions on appesntment of employees

of the zuditor

spearfic restncbions and procedures m refation to
the allocation of non-audit work to the auditor
These include categories of work which cannot
be allocated to the auditor and categonies of
work which may be allocated to the auditor,
subject to certain provisions as 1o matenahity
nature of the work or the approval of the audit
committee At each of its meetings the audit
comrmuttee recewes a report of the {ees paid

to the auditor 1n all capacities

The sphit between awdit and non-audit fees for

the year to 31 March 2007 appears at note 4

1o the financial staternents Non-audit fees of

£0 5m were paid 1n refation to taxation services
and corporate finance services including services
relating to the return of cash to shareholders
through a B share scheme which was of a one-off
nature The amount and nature of non-audit fees
are considered by the committee ot to affect the
independence or objectivity of the external auditor

Remuneration committee

Detalls of the membership and role of the
remuneration committee are included In the
directors remuneration report on page 33

Nominahon committee

lohn Napier 15 chairman of the nomenation
commuittee The other members are Kate Avery,
£d Anderson Chastopher Fisher and Dawd Satkeld

The main functions of the commiitee are

= to review the structure size and composition
of the board the aud:it committee and the
remunerailon commiitee and make
recornmendations to the board with regard

to necessary adjustments

to prepare a role and capabilities statement for
the appointment of a charman and to identify
and naminate candidates for the approval of
the board, and

to provide advice and recommendations

to the board In respect of appointments

of other directors

.

-

The nomination committee meets at least
annually to discharge such of these funchions
as may be required

Corporate social responsibility commuttee
fohn Naper 15 chairman of the corporate social
responsibility commttee and Kevin Whiternan

15 a member of It Roger Hyde a non-executive
director of Yorkshire Water 15 also 3 member

of the committee He was formerly the Head

of the Environment Agency, North East Region
The committee recommends to the board
appropnate corporate social responsibility policies
and procedures It 15 responsible for the pubkication
of the corporate social responsibility review

which 15 avaldable on the internet at

http ffesr keldagroup com

Board attendance

The table overleaf shows the number of meetings
of the board audit, remuneration and nomination
committees attended by each director out of
possble attendances
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Corporate governance

John Napier

Ed Anderson

Kate Avery
Christopher Fisher
Dawd Salkeld
Richard Schrmidt
Martin Towers
Kevin Whiteman

Communication with shareholders
Shareholders have direct access to the company
via the investor relations section of its website
at www keldagroup com and its free shareholder
inforration telephone service The website

15 updated with all announcements and
presentations and contamins investor relatrons
information which 15 updated reqularly

There 1s regular d:aiogue with individual
insttutional sharehclders as well as general
presentations after the intenm and preliminary
results Alt shareholders have the opportunity to
put questions at the company’s annual general
meeting and the company wili make 3 presentation
at the meeting to highlight the key business
developments The chairmen of the audit
rermunerason and nominaton committees will
be available to answer questions at the annuat
general meeting o be held on 1 August 2007

The board receves reports from executive
directors following meetings with investors
Formal reports of investor feedback are presented
to the board following the intenm and annual
results presentations An investor refations

report 15 presented to the beard each month

Internal control

The board 15 responsible for the group s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
An ongoing process In accordance with the
guidance of the Turnbull Comimittee on Internal
Control has been established for identifying
evaluating and managing the sigmshcant nsks faced
by the greup and this has been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Report and Accounts Strategic
financial commercial operational social
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Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination
&/6 - - 1/1
6/ 4/4 - 1/1
6/6 a4/4 5/6 1/1
5/6 a/4 6/6 1/1
5/6 - 6/6 11
5/6 - - -
&6/6 - - -
6/6 - - -

environmental and ethical nsks fall within the
scope of this process The process 1s designed to
manage rather than ehminate the risk of falure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance against
materal misstatement or loss Duning the financial
year, material joint ventures have been dealt with
as part of the group for the purposes of applying
the guidance

The group has comprehensive and well defined
control pohcies with clear structures, delegated
authonty levels and accountabilities There 1

a group procedure governing appraisal and
approval of business developrment and investment
expenditure  Post complehon reviews are required
on significant business development projects and
matenal imvestrment expenditure

The group’s risk management process aims to be
comprehensive systematic and continuous and
based on canstant monitoring of business risk The
key features of the process include the following

The main nsks facing the group are sdentified

and recorded i a strategic nsk register together

with the control mechanisms applicable to each

nsk These are collated from risk segisters

maintained by indmdual businesses

+ There 15 clear allocation of management
responsibilty for nsk identification, recording,
analysis and contro!

« The audit committee generally meets four

times each year and reviews the effectiveness

of the systems which are in place and reports

to the board

A nsk management forum chaired by the group

financial controlles has been established with

formal terms of reference compnsing sentor

management from key disaplines and operating
companies It adwises and assists operational
managing directors and the board on the
implementation of the nsk management
process and monitors nisk on behalf of the
board It reports to the audit committee

* Business units are required to report annually
an principal business nisks and the operation
of control mechamsms

« The internal audit department provides
objective assurance and adwice on nisk
management and control, and monitors
the risk management process

The avdit committee reviews and monitors the
effectiveness of the process on behalf of the
board During the year the audit committee
undertook a detailed review of the process

In addihion to this process, businesses are subject
to a quarterly comprehensive review by the
executive team independent internal and external
audits which are reported to the executive team
and the audit committee an extensive budget and
target setting process a quarterty reporting and
forecasting process reviewing performance against
agreed objectives, appropriate delegated authornty
levels established financial policies and procedures
and other nsk management policies and
procedures such as health and safety and
envircnmental polcies

The board confirms that 1t has reviewed the
effectiveness of the system of internal control

It has recewved the reports of the audit committee
and has conducted a formal annual review covenng
all controls including financial operational,
compliance and risk management, in accordance
with the Internal Control Guidance for Directors on
the Combined Code issued in September 1999 and
updated in October 2005 Following Its review the
board determined that it was not aware of any
significant deficiency or matenal weakness in

the system of internal controt




Directors’ remuneration report

The members of the remuneration commuttes

are Dawid Salkeld who chairs it Kate Avery and
Chnistopher Fisher All members of the commitiee
are regarded by the company as independent John
Napter and Kevin Whiteman have provided adwice
to the comimittee For guidance n recommending
remuneration packages the remuneration
committee uses pubbshed surveys carried out

by rernuneration consultants as well as internal
research, together with other ad hoc projects to
support the objective of ensuring competitive

and sustainable remuneration New Bndge

Street Consultants advise the company and

the remuneration commitiee on a variety of
remuneration related 1ssues The company does
not use New Bridge Street Consultants in any
capaaity other than as an independent adwser on
remuneration and employee share scherne rmatters

The terms of reference of the remuneration
committee are avalable on request from

the company secretary or on the corporate
gavernance section of the company’s website

at http jjwww keldagroup comyketjcsrfcorpgovf
summary The comimittee makes recommendations
10 the board on the framework of executive
remuneration and (ts cost It determines the
rernuneraton and conditions of employment of
the charman executive directors and the next
most seror category of executives mncluding the
terms of any compensation in the event of earty
termination of an executrve director s contract

it also operates the company s long term incentive
plan In determining the remuneraticn of executive
directors and other senior executives, the
commuttee also takes into account level of
remuneration and pay awards made generally

to employees of the group

Statement of policy

The company s policy 15 to establish remuneration
packages which enable the company to aitract,
retain and motrate people with the skills and
expenence necessary to fead and manage

a business of Kelda s size and complexty
Remunerabion packages are designed to be
ahgned with the interests of the company’s
stakeholders in particular its sharehoiders

and customers

In recommending remuneration packages the
remuneration committee follows the pnnciple of
recognition of the indndual’s contnbution to the
business The aspiration of the committee s that
executives should be fairly and appropriately
awarded | the company achieves upper quartile
levets of performance relatrve to other water and

sewerage companies Accordingly a significant
proportion of directors’ remuneration 15
performance retated through annual and long
term incentve plan awards Further details of the
proportions are included In the sections below
and in the directors emoluments table on page 35
The design of the total remuneration package s
intended to achieve a weighting of each
component to ensure that abave average
rermuneration s available through performance
related elements rather than base salary

The company treats remuneration strategy and

its people resource as key components In delivenng
its vision to the shareholders of Kelda and to the
customers of the group s businesses At the same
time the company recognises fully the sensitvties
of such matters and the need for due care and
attention to be taken when considenng such 1ssues

Execuhve directors
The current remuneration package for each
executive director comprises the following

Annual salary and benefits

The annual salary for each executive direCtor 1s
reviewed each year The review takes into account
relevant market comparators and the indnadual
responsibilities and expernience of each director
Benefits in kind include a car and health insurance
Base salary 15 pensionable

Annual incentive scheme

During the 2006/07 financial year each executive
director had the opportunity to earn 2n annual
incentve award of up to 75% of ther salary

This was increased from 60% during the year as an
intenm measure pending the rewew of executive
Incentive payment structure Following that review
In 2007/08 each executive director will have the
opportunity to earn an annual Incenbive award of
up to 100% of thewr salary Any bonus payment is
made in June based on performance in the year
ending on the preceding 31 March Awards are
entirety performance related From 2007/08, 50%
of any award will be deterrined by financial targets
which are set by the board at the start of the year
30% will be determined by Yorkshie Water's
posit:on in the Overall Performance Assessment
deterrmined by Ofwat 20% will be deterrmined

by reference to personal performance objectives
established at the beginming of the year Incenbive
payments at the higher end of the range are
payable only for demonstrably supenor company
and indmidual periormance Annual Incentive
payments are not pensionable

Long term incentive plan (LTIP}

Under the plan, executive directors may receve,

at the discretion of the remuneraticn commuittee,
a condibional award of Kelda Group plc shares
each year with a value of up to 80% of hase salary
The propertion of the award 1o be vested in the
parbapants after a period of three years will
depend upon the company § performance in
terms of total shareholder return 1 & share prce
movements and reinvested dnadends) during the
three year penod, relative to a comparator group
of companmes The total shareholder return of

the company 15 considered by the remuneration
commttee to be an appropnate measure by which
the interests of the executives ¢an be aligned with
those of the sharehclders 1115 calculated by an
independent consultant and compared with and
ranked against the comparator group Vesting of
70% of the award 15 determined by a reference

to the company s ranking against a group of UK
sted companies which own and operate regulated
water and waste water companies and whose
charactenstics are considesed by the remuneration
comrmittee most similar to those of the company
The companies in the comparator group dunng the
penod under review were Dee Valley Water pic
Pennon Group plc, Severn Trent plc and United
Utilines plc AWG plc and Bristol Water plc both
ceased to be hsted duning the 2006/07 financial
year and the remuneration committee exercised
its discretion to exclude them from the comparator
group m relaton to awards vesking in 2007 '
The committee has also resolved to include
Northumbnan Water Group plc in the comparator
group for awards made after 2006 Vesting of the
rernaiming 30% of the award 1s deterrmined by
reference to the consbituents of the FTSE 350 index
on the date of grant (excluding investment trusts)
The remuneration committee believes that the
constituents of the comparator group provides

an appropniate companson for the company s
performance but keeps this mix of components
under continugus review

In respect of the 70% of the award determined
by reference to listed water compantes no shares
wilk vest unless Kelda i1s ranked at least median
when 30% will vest Full vesbing will requere tap
ranking and, if Kelda is ranked between median
and top position between 30% and 100% of

the shares will vest depending on how dlose
Kelda s total shareholder return s to the first

and fourth companies
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In respect of the 30% of the award determined by
reference to FTSE 350 no shares will vest unless
Kelda is ranked at least median 30% wll vest at
median and 100% will vest if Kelda is in the top
20% of compamies with pro-rata vesung based on
ranking position for intenmedhate performance

trrespective of the total shareholder return
performance no shares will vest unless the
remunerauon committee 1s satished that Kelda's
underlying financial performance has been
satisfactory over the performance period taking
(nto account the company s arcumstances
including the regulatory regime In place over the
penod, and the committee can scale back vesting
to any extent considered appropnate in the hight
of the company’s finanoal performance

The rules of the plan provde for early vesting of
awards in cessation of employment in certain
circumstances, such as death, disabifity, redundancy,
retrement at expected retirerment age and business
transfer Earty vesting 15 subject 1o the same
performance conditions as apply to vesting at the
end of a three-year performance penod On early
vesting, the number of shares vested 1s reduced pro-
ratz to the number of days of the performance
penod in which the director was i office

No benefits under the plan are pensionable The
remuneration committee considers that recent
perfoermance of the company has been highly
impressive as ewdenced by the company being
voted Utihty Company of the Year for the last three
years and being the overall most efficient water
and sewerage company i respect of operating
and capital maintenance efficiency in each of the
last five years (according to Ofwat data) However,
the commuttee felt that this outstanding
performance was not being fairty reflected in the
outturns from the current Incentive arrangements
10 particular the low percentage of awards vesting
under the LTIP As the necessary discretions {0
correct the situation are outside the process of
the committee, the cornmittee will therefare seek
shareholders approval at the forthcorming annua!

general meeting to amend the structure of the LTIP

scheme for the future by proposing amendmenits
which intend to make the allocations and
performance conditions more appropnate  Details
of the proposed amendments are included with
the separate nouce of meeting

Non-executive directors
The chawman of the board 15 paid an annual fee
of £185 000 and non-execulive directors are paid
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3 base fee of £35 000 per annum both wath effect
from 1 fanuary 2007 In addition, the chairman of
the audit comsmittee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee are paid fees of £7500
per annum and £5,000 per annum respectively
Christopher Fisher receved fees of £16,000 from
Yorkshire Water Services Limited 10 hus capacsty

as a non-executive director of that company

The fees of non-executme directors are determined
by the board taking account of responsibikities

and time commitments and of fee levels In
comparable companies

The non-executive directors do not partkipate in
the annual Incentive scheme the LTIP or group
pension plan

Service contracts

The company's poltcy on the duration of contracts
with executive directors 1s that they should not
normally be of fixed durabon should be subject
10 12 months notice by the company and six
months notice by the duector The notice penods
have been selected to be consistent with current
corporate governance best practice Terrmination
payments are made In accordance with the terms
of the contract Sernce contracts do not generally
contain payment in lieu of notice clauses and
terrminate autormatically on rebirement

The company s policy in respect of non-executve
directors 15 to make appointments generally of
three years duration the terms of which do not
contain any express prowsion for notice perods
or ternination payments in the event of early
termination of ther appointment Appontments

may be renewed by rmutual agreement for up
to two further three-year penods

Kewin Whiteman and Martin Towers entered

INtQ senice agreements with the company on

2 Sepiemnber 2002 and 12 February 2003
respectively The contracts are not of fixed duration
and each prowide for notice periods of 12 manths
by the company and six months by the director

The agreernents do not contain any specific
provision for compensation payable on early
termination and any termsnapon payment would
be calculated to take account of the contractual
notce penod and any annual Incentrve payment
which would have been paid subject to the
achievement of performance abjectives, and
taking into account the penod actually worked

John Napier s cuerent appointment as chairman
of the board of Kelda Group plc took effect on

2 September 2005 and 1s for a three-year term
The terms of appomtment do not contain any
provisions for notice periods or for compensation
n the event of early termination

Christopher Fisher s appointrment ook effect on
30 lune 2006 for a penod of three years Dawd
Salkeld s current appointment 1s with effect from
2 October 2006 for a penod of three years £ach
of Ed Anderson s and Kate Avery s appointments
took effect on 1 June 2005 and s for a period of
three years Richard Schrudt s appointment Is not
for a fixed duration The terms of appointment do
not contain any provisions for notice penods or for
compensation in the event of early termination




Executive directors service contracts and non-executive directors terms and conditions of appointment are available for inspection at the company s registered
office, and will be avalable for 15 minutes prior to the annual general meeting and during the meeting

The following sections of the remuneration report with the exception of the table of directors benefitial interests In shares have been audited

Directors” emoluments

Total Total
Annucl Benefits n  Terminoton  emolyments  emolumens
Salory/fees bonus kind poyment 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Choirman
J A Napier 181 - 5 - 186 181
Execuhve directors
M G Towers 196 133 i2 - 341 283
K1 Whiteman 356 280 27 - 663 549
Non-execuhve directors
D | Salketd 36 -~ - - 38 35
C CFisher 55 - - - 55 54
R K Schrigt N - - - 31 3¢
CRR Avery 3N - - - 31 25
E ) § Anderson 31 - - - 31 25
K Jackson {Retired 30 09 05} - - - - - 15
D F Roberts [Retired 30 09 05) - - - - - 35
Totals o7 413 44 - 1,374 1,232

Pensions
Kevin Whiternan and Martin Towers were members of defined benefit pension arrangements provided by the company dunng the year

The main features of the Kelda Group Pension Plan (KGPP) applicable to executve directors are

1} a normal setirement age of 60

w} an accrual rate of 1/30 per year of pensionable serwice
) four imes pensionable pay for death i serace
w)spouse s pension on death

The company has additional contractual commitments to prowde pension benefits to certain executives in respect of thewr eamings over the HM Revenue &
Customs earnings cap in force before 6 Apnl 2006 These additional benefits are currently provided through an unfunded unapproved arrangement

Following changes made to the tax treatment of pension benefits with effect from 6 Apnl 2006 KGPP executive members have been given the option of
accnuing these benefits either on 3 funded basis under the KGPP or continuing to receive pension nights on an unfunded basis under the unapproved
arrangement These arrangements do not afiect the overall benefits to the member or increase the cost to the company

The company has made separate accounting provision for unfunded liabiliies under the unapproved arrangement  The figures below include the funded
element of the company s pension provision only For details of the unfunded habilities please refer to note 21
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Pension enbitlements and comesponding transfer values increased as follows dunng the year {£)

Transfer

Increase  wvolue of net  Tionsfer valve  Tronsfer value  Toiod chonge

Tolol oecrved Tt occrued in accrued INCIEase In of accrved of occrved In ronster
pension of pension ol pension net  accrucl aver pension at pension a1 value duning Direciors
31/3/07 31/3/06 of inflation penod 31/3/06 31/3/07 penod  contnbutions
{1 {2) 3] (4 i9) 16) 17t 18]
M G Towers 33718 18 921 13965 69,704 284,488 493 819 74 604 134 727
K | whiteman 105,032 84,425 14 892 130 388 1105117 1,347,188 172 578 89 493

1} The total accrued pension as at 31 March 2007 i (1) includes benefits granted in the Kelda Group Pension Plan {(KGPP) as a result of transiers from previous
employment pension arrangements

) The Director s contnbutions in {8) include transfer values receved totaling £123 544 for Mr Towers and £69 093 for Mr Whiteman

) Accrued pensions shown are the amounts that would be pad annually on retirement at age 60 based on service to the year end

v} Transfer values have been calcutated in accordance with version 8 1 of guidance note GN11 1ssued by the actuanal profession

v) The transfer value of the net increase in pension {4} represents the incremental value to the director of s service during the year calculated on the
assumplion service terminated at the year end it s based on the accrued penston increase {3) and 1s calculated after deducting the director s contribution

v} The change in the transfer value (7) indudes the offset of fluctuations in the transfer value due to factors beyond the control of the company and
directors such as stock market movernents It 15 calculated after deducting the director’s coentnibution

(w1} voluntary contnibutions paid by directors and resulting benefits are not shown

Directors” shareholdings
The beneficial Interests of the directors who held office at the end of the year, and their immediate families, in the ordinary shares of the company as at 31 March
2007 and at the beginning of the year {or date of appaintment where later} are set out below

Al At

31 March 07 1 Aprl 06
Chairman
1 A Naper 30,000 30000
Executve directors
M G Towers 2,937 -
K I Whiteman 48,692 32 849
Non-executive directors
E 1S Anderson 3,939 -
CRR Avery 4,766 4,766
CCRisher 5,000 5,000
D J 5alkeld 10,000 -
R K Schrmidt 7,676 7 676

In addition to the above beneficial Interests in the company’s shares the executve directors are regarded for Comparies Act purposes as baing interested in
2010 519 ordinary shares of the company held by an employee share ownership trust (ESOT)

All employees (InCluding executive directors) are potenbal beneficianes of the trust the purposes of which 1s to provade shares to satisfy options under the
company 5 save-as-you-earn share option scheme and grants made pursuant o the lkong term incentve plan

It 15 not antiaspated that any employee or execubve director will be entitled to recewe from the trust a greater number of shares than that to which they
are entitied on exercise of options granted to them under the share option scherne or the vesting of awards pursuant to the long term incentsve plan

Since 31 March 2007 and the date of this document 27 366 shares under the \TIP vested for Kevin Whiternan and 12 974 for Martin Towers Further awards
have also been made of 32 331 and 14 440 respectvely All other shareholdings of the directors have not changed
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Directors’ share ophons

In common with all ehgible employees of the group executive directors are entitled to participate m the company s Inland Revenue approved save-as-you-earm
share option scherme  The options are not subject to performance conditions since this 15 an all-employee scheme to which performance targets are not applied
The interests of directors n particular issues under the scheme are

A3l Matket price
A1 Apol Grented Exercised topsed March Exercise atdoie of Date options  Dote ophions
2006 dunng year  dunngyeor  dunng year 2007 pce Ip} exeicise  exercisable expire
M G Towers 2016 - 2016 - - 3660 8785p 01030CG7 310807
M G Towers 411 - - - a1l 4610 - 010308 310808
M C Towers - 1020 - - 1,020 7410 - 010310 310810

The market price of the shares subject to these options at 31 March 2007 was 938 Op (2006 788 5p) and has ranged fram 726 Sp to 955 Op dunng the year
The aggregate gain on the exercaise of share options during the year was £10 513 44 (2006 Enil)

Long term incenhve plan
Interest of the directors in the plan are

Market price Vesled At
At 1 Apnl Dote ol dote of Groned 20 Sept lapsed 31 March Eodies:

2006 owarded aword {pl  dunng yeer 2006  dunng yeor 2007 vesting date
M G Towers 25742 030903 404 00 - 12 201 13,541 - 020906
M G Towers 19,672 280504 489 25 - - - 19,672 270507
M G Towers 13834 020605 654 00 - - - i3834 010608
M G Towers - 130606 746 50 14,940 - - 14940 120609
K| Whiteman 51485 030903 404 00 - 24 403 27,082 - Q20000
K| Whiteman 41492 280504 489 25 - - - 41,492 270507
K I whiteman 39755 020605 654 00 39,755 - - 755 010608
K1 Whiternan - 13C606 746 50 36339 - - 35339 120609

The performance candiian applicable to awards granted and shares vested were as described on pages 33 and 34

In addition to the vested shares 2 488 dmwdend shares were transferred to Kevin Whiteman and 1 244 dnadend shares were teansferred to Martin Towers
in accordance with the rules of the Kelda Croup Long Term Incentve Plan

The market price on 20 September 2006 was 849 5p

The market price of the shares on 14 June 2007 was 966 5p The aggregate value of shares vesting dunng the year was £310 951 (2006 £188 662}
By order of the boar —

Stuart McFarlane

Group Company Secretary
14 June 2007
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Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts

The directors are responsible for prepanng the group and parent comparny accounts in accordance with applicable Urited Kingdom law and regulations

The directors are required to prepare group finanaal statements for each finanaal year in accordance with the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
adopted by the European Union (EL) which present fairly the financial posibon of the group and the financial performance and cash flows of the group for that
perod In prepanng those group accounts the diweciors are required 1o

* Select surtable accounting poliies w accordance with IAS 8 “Accounung Poliaes Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors” and then apply themn consistently

+ Present information including accounting policies 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable comparable and understandable information,

* Provide additional disclosures when comphance with the speafic requirements in IFRSs 1s Insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions other events and condiions on the group s financial position and financial performance, and

+ State that the group has comphed wath IFRSs subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the accounts

Under United Kingdom law the drrectors have elected to prepare the parent company accounts In accerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) which are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent
company and of the profit or loss of the parent company for that penod In prepanng the parent company accounts, the duectors are required to

* Select suitable accoungng policies and then apply them consistently

« Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

* State whether applicable LUK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the accounts, and
* Prepare the accounts on a going concem basis unless it 15 inappropnate to presume that the company will continue i business

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirernents in prepaning the accounts The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the group and the parent company and enable thern to ensure that the accounts
comply wath the Comparyes Act 1985 and In the case of the group accounts, Articte 4 of the IAS Regulaton They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the group and the parent company and hence for taking reasonabte steps for the prevenbon and detection of fraud and other irequlanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial infarmation induded on the group s website It should be noted that
information published on the ntemet 1s accessible n many countnes with different tegal requirernents  Legrslation in the UK governing the preparation and
disserminabion of accounts may ditter from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Auditor’s report on group financial statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to

the Members of Kelda Group Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of
Kelda Group pic for the year ended 31 March 2007
which compnse the group income statement,

the group statement of recognised income and
expense the group balance sheet, the group cash
flow statement and the related notes 1 to 30
These group financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set

out therein

We have reporied separately on the parent
company financial statements of Kelda Group plc
for the year ended 31 March 2007 and on the
information it the directors rernuneration report
that 1s descnbed as having been audited

This report 15 made solely to the company's
memibers as a body, in accordance wath Section
235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors' report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law we do not accept or assurne responsibility

to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body for our audit work
for thes report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilihes

of directors and auditors

The directers' responsibiities for preparng the
Annual Report and the group finanaal statements
in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law
and Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set
out 1n the Statement of Directors responsibikes

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial
staterments in accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Audibng (UK and Ireland}

We report to you our opimion as to whether the
group financial staternents give a true and fair view
and whether the group financial staternents have
been property prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information grven 1 the directors’
report 15 consisient with the financial statements

The mformation given i the directors' report
includes that specific nformation presented In
the business review that 15 cross referred from the
business review section of the drectors' report

In addibon we report to you If 1n aur opinion,
we have not received alf the information and
explanations we requare for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding duwector s
remuneration and other transactions 1s not
disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Covernance
Statement reflects the company s complhance with
the nine prowisions of the 2003 Combined Code
specified for our review by the Lisbing Rules of the
Financial Services Authonty and we report if it does
not We are not required to consider whether the
board s statements on internal control cover all
nisks and controls or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group s corporate governance
procedures or its sk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual
Report and consider whether it 15 consistent with
the audited group financial statements The other
information comprises only the directors report,
the unaudited part of the director’s remuneration
report, group highhghts our business chaurman s
statement chief executive review, business review
corpofate governance statement and corporate
social responsibilty statement We consider the
implications for our report If we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the group financiaf siatements
Qur responsibiaties do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UX and
Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board

An audit Includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
n the group financial statements 1t also mcludes
an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the
preparagion of the group financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropniate
to the group's circumstances consistently appled
and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to
obtain all the mformation and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable
assurance that the group financial statements are
free from matenal msstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other wregulanty or error In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the owverall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the group
financial statements

Opinton
in our opimion

+ the group finanaial statements gre a true and
far view n accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the Eurcpean Union of the state of the
group’s affaws as at 31 March 2007 and of its
profit for the year then ended

= the group financial statements have been
properly prepared n accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Requlation, and

» the information given in the directors’ report is
consistent with the group financial statements

~

-q,,,\,,\p»*lmA WLe
nst & Young LLP

Reqgistered Auditor

Leeds

14 June 2007
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Group income statement

Year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Noes £m £m
Turnover group and share of associates and |omt ventures 3 878 9 8254
Share of associates” and joint ventures turnover 146 3) [45 Q)
Group turnover 8324 779 4
Operating costs a {494 &) (464 9)
Group operahng profit before share of associates and joint ventures 388 0 3145
Share of associates and joint ventures’ profit after tax 3 02 09
Group operahng profit from conhnuing operanons 3 338 2 3154
Investment income 6 641 512
Finance costs & {181 1) (142 3)
Prohit from continying operahons before taxahon 2412 224 3
Tax expense 7 {69 5) b5 4)
Proht for the year from continuing operanons 1n7 1589
Disconhnued operchens
{Loss)/profit for the year " {20 4} 152
Profit for the year atinbutable to equity sharcholders 1513 1741
Basic earnings per share on profit for the year 10 42 3p 46 9p
Basic earmings per share from continuing operations 10 48 1p 42 8p
Diluted earrings per share on profit for the year 10 42 1p 46 Bp
Diuted earnings per share from continuing operatiens 10 47 9p 427p

Group statement of recognised income and expense

Year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Noes £m Lm
Recyching of losses on cash flow hedges to the income statement 29} [21)
Gainsf{losses) on hedges taken to equity 191 [0 &)
Exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations 79 156
Actuanal gans in respect of defined benefit pension and other post-retmement benefits 21 261 ?5
Tax on stems taken directly to equity {1271 {15)
Other {2 8} (31
Total of tems taken directly to equity 189 178
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 1513 1741
Total recogrused income and expense for the year 170 2 1919
Keldo Group plc
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Group balance sheet

At 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Notes £m im
Non-current assets
tntangible assets 1t 145 150
Property plant and equipment 2 397523 37986
Investnents in associated undertakngs and joint ventures 13 20 i8
Loans to assoctated undertakings and joint ventures 13 212 187
Retirement benefits surplus 21 73 -
4,020 3 3,8341
Current assets
Inventones 15 0é 05
Trade and other recewables 16 157 2 1815
Tax debtor - 63
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1020 827
Financal assets 14 - 278
2598 2988
Assets included in disposal groups held for sale 8 5960 658 6
Total assets 4,876 1 47915
Current habihites
Trade and other payables 13 (241 3) {264 5)
Financial habilities 24 - {135
Tax habilties 356 {36 5)
Short term borrowings 17 [3141) 1458 8}
{591 0} 1761 3)
Non-current liabilihes
Long term borrowings " {1,769 5) {1,486 8}
Long term payables B 76 0 179 4)
Financial iabilities 24 ©3 138
Deferred grants and contributions on depreciated assets 1 79 4) 822
Provisions 19 Ny 3 4)
Deferred tax liabihties 20 {611 0} {577 2)
Retirement benefits obligation 21 -- [621)
12,537 &) {2,304 9)
Liabilities included in disposal groups held for sale s [285 0) {268 3)
Total habihtes {3,413 6) {3,334 5)
Net assels 1,4425 1,457 0
Copital and reserves
Issued share capital 22 558 570
Share prermium account 23 167 167
Capitat redemption reserve ' 23 147 ¢ 1467
Investment 1n own shares 23 67 9 8)
Hedging reserve 23 19 94
Translalion reserve b3} 27 1046
Share-based payment reserve 23 45 33
Retaned earnings 23 1,2397 1,241 9
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,452 5 1,457 0

Approved by the board of directors on 14 June 2007 and signed on therr behalf by
Marhin Towers, Group Finance Director

Keldo Group plc

42  Annuol Repert and Accounts 2007




Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Noles £m fm
Group operating prefit from continuing operations % 3382 3154
Operating profit from discontinued operations 26 41 8 328
Depreciation 12 140 9 143 6
Amortisation of grants and contnbutions 32 {32)
Exchange rate adjustments o ns9)
{Increase)/decrease in mventories o 02
Decrease/(increase} in trade and other recenvables 75 {17 3)
Pension contributions in excess of operating costs (38 8) {151)
Increase in trade and other payables 104 250
Cash generated by operahons 5347 462 5
Income taxes paid {452 {38 5)
Interest pad {105 4 {122 4)
Net cash inflow from operatng achvbes 3841 3016
Investing achwihes
Interest received 102 161
Dnidends recerved from associates and joint ventures - 03
Loans {to){from associates and jont ventures (25 25
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 13¢9 (D]
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3950 (3319}
Caputal grants and contributions 202 323
Purchase of Intangible assets - 09
Net cash used in tnvesting achvihes {353 2) {281 5)
Financing activihes
Owvidends pad 9 (109 7) (109 4)
Repayment of 5 25% Eurobond {401 3) -
Proceeds from index linked bonds 2500 -
Proceeds from other borrowings 368 4 1010
Repayment of obligations under finance leases and hire purchase agreements 623 ¢3)
Repurchase of own shares {59 3) {729)
Net cash used in financing activihes N4z {90 &)
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 167 (70 5
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 957 165 1
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {10} 11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 14 957
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Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

1 Authonsation of financial statements

and statement of compliance

The group’s iinancial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2007 were authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 14 June
2007 and the balance sheet was signed on
the board’s behalf by Martin Towers, Group
Finance Director Kelda Group plc s a public
Iimited company incorporated and domiciled
in £ngland and Wales The company’s ordinary
shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange

The group’s financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International
Finanaal Reparting Standards {IFRS) as adopted
by the European Umion as they apply to the
Finanaal Statements of the group for the year
ended 31 March 2007

2 Group accounting pohices
(A) Basis of preparahon

Basis of accounting

The group’s financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS} as adopted
by the Eurgpean Union as they apply to the
financial statements of the group for the year
ended 31 March 2007

The financial statements are prepared under
the historicat cost convention except for all
denvative financial instruments that have been
measured at farr value and dispasal groups held
for sale that have been measured at the lower
of far value less cost to sell and their carrying
amounts prior to the decision to treat them

as held for sale, through profit or loss

At 1 Apnl 2004 {“transibon date™) the group
apphed the followang exemnptions to the
restatemnent of historical data, which are
permutted by IFRS 1 “First time adoption of
Internationat Financial Reporting Standards”

{a) Business combinations The group chose not
to restate business combinations pnor to the
transition date on an [FRS basis as no sigvficant
acquisiions had taken place for the three years
prior to the transition date

Kelda Group plc
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{b) Employee benefits All cumulative actuanal
gains and losses had been recognised N equity
at the transition date This was to mamntan
consistency wath prospective group policy,
whereby all actuanal gains and losses will be
recognised directly in reserves via the statement
of recognised income and expense

{c) Cumulative transtation differences One

of the requsrements of IAS2 1 “The Eifects of
Changes in Forewgn Exchange Rates™ is that on
disposal of an operation, the cumulative armount
of exchange differences previously recognised
directly in equity for that foreign operation are
to be transferred to the income statement as
part of the profit or loss on disposal Fhe group
had adopted the exemption allowing these
cumulative translation diferences to be reset
to zero 3t the transition date

{d) Share-based payments The group adopted
the exernption to apply IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” only {o equity settled awards granted
after 7 Novemnber 2002 and not fully vested
before 1 January 2005

{e} Infrastructure assets The group adopted the
option to restate infrastructure assets to use the
fair value as the deemed cost in the balance
sheet using the fair value at the balance sheet
date as deemed cost

The group has chosen to highlight the
measures of Earnings per Share {EPS) regarding
continuing operattons, which are disclosed in
the income statement Adjusted earn:ngs per
share continue o be disclosed in the notes to
the accounts The directors consider that the
measures included on the income statement
provide the most useful indications of the
group's performance for this year

The group has also amended the presentation
of the balance sheet to give additional
disclosures of deferred grants and contnibutions
on depreciated assets and financial babihties
This 5 considered to improve the transparency
of the balance sheet

Basis of consohdation

The group financial statements consolidate
the financial statements of Kelda Group plc
and its subsidiaries  The results of undertakings
acquired or sold are consolidated for the
penicds from the date of acquisition or up to
the date of disposal Acquisitions of subsidiaries
are accounted for under the purchase method
of accounting Associates and joint ventures
are accounted for under the equity method

of accounting

{B} Accounting pohcies

A summary of the principal accounting
policies, which have been consistently apphed
throughout the year and the preceding vear,
1s set out below

FOI’EIgI‘I currencies

In the accounts of the group’s companies,
indmadual transactions denominated in {oreign
currencies are translated into funcuional
currency at the actual exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated n foreign currencies
are translated into functional currency at the
rates ruling at the balance sheet date Profits
and losses on both indwidual foreign currency
transactions during the year and monetary
assets and liabiities are dealt with in the
income statement

On consoldation the income statements of
the overseas subsidiases are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year and the
balance sheets at the exchange rates at the
balance sheet date The exchange differences
ansing as a result of translating income
statements at average rates and restating
opening net assets at closing rates are taken to
the translation reserve Exchange differences

on foreign currency borrowings that provide

a hedge against a net investrent in a foreign
operation are taken directly to equiy until the
disposal of the net investment, at which bme
they are recognised in the consolidated income
statement Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of
an overseas subsidiary, assoiate or joint venture
15 calculated using exchange rates applicable

at the date of acquisiiion and s subsequently
re-translated at each balance sheet date




Turnover

Provision of services

Turnover compnses charges to customers for
water, waste water and environmental services
excluding value added tax, together with the
proceeds from the sale of commercial and
resxdential properties to third parties which
were previously held as stock Turnover
excludes inter-company sales

Tumnover 15 not recognised until the service
has been provided to the customer Turnover
relates to charges due in the year, excluding
any amaunts paid in advance Turnover for
measured water charge$ includes amounts
billed plus an estimation of the amounts
unbilled at the year end The accrual
estimated using a defined methodology based
upon daily average water consumption, which
15 calculated based upon historical biling
information

Interest recevable

Interest recewvable 15 recognised as the interest
accrues using the effective interest method
that 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash recerpts and payments through the
expected hfe of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset

Dividends recewable

Diidends recevable are recognised when the
shareholders’ nght to receve the revenue 1s
established

Rental income

Rental Income arsing on Investment properties
15 accounted for on a straight Iine basis over the
lease term on ongoing feases

Dividends payable
Intenm and final dvidends payable are
recogrused on payment of the dmdend

Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure 1s wntten off in the
income statement in the year in which

it 1s incurred

Development expenditure s charged to
the income statement except where the

expenditure meets the cntera for recogmition

as an internally generated intangible asset as
outlined in I1AS 38 “Intangible assets™ Where the
recognition criteng are met, mtangible assets
are capitalised and amortised over their useful
economic fives from launch

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods s,
to the extent unpaid recognised as a hiability

I the amount already paid 1n respect of the
current and prior pericds exceeds the amount
payable, the excess 1s recognised as an asset
The benefits relating to 2 tax loss that can be
carred back to recover current tax of a previous
penod are hetd as an asset

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the
labiity method, en all temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and habiities and therr carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes with
the following exceptions

where the deferred income tax liability anses
from the imual recognition of goodwill or the
inihal recognition of an asset or habihity in a
transaction that i not a business combinanen
and, at the ume of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss, and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidianies
associates and Interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the tempaorary
difference ¢an be controlled and it 1s probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
all deductible ternporary differences carry-
forward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that
taxable profit will be avallable aganst winch the
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can
be vtilised except

where the delerred incame tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary difference anses from
the imtial recogmition of an asset or hability in &
transaction that 1s not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss and

In respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidanies
associates ang interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recogmised to the
extent that it 1s probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the faresesable future
and taxable profit will be available aganst which
the temporary difference can be utiised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sutficient taxabte profit will be
avatlable to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utihsed

Detferred income tax assets and hatulities are
measured at the tax rates that apply to the
penod when the asset is realised or the liability
15 settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date

Goodwill ond intangible ossets

Goodwill 1s the excess of the farr value of the
consideration paid for a business over the far
value of the wlentifiable assets and habiities
acquired Goodwill 15 capitalised and subject to
an imparment review, both annually and when
there are indications that the carrying value
may not be recoverable Pror to 1 April 2004,
goodwill was amortrsed over its estimated
useful life, such amortisation ceased on

31 March 2004

Impairment s determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates Where the
recoverable amount 15 less than the carrying
amount, an impairment, loss 1§ recognised
When an enuty 1s disposed of, any goodwill
associated with it 1s included n the camrying
amount of the operation when determuning
the gain or loss on disposal
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Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

Other intangible assets compnse capitalised
bid costs on contracts won within the group
Costs are capitalised from the date a group
company 1s named as preferred bidder and
then amortised over the shorter of the ife of
the contract or the penod to the first renewat
date Ii preferved bidder status 15 withdrawn,
capitalised costs will be wniten off immediately

Property, plont ond equipment

Property, plant and equipment, mncluding
infrastructure assets, are included at cost less
accurnulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment Finance costs incurred in respect
of the construction of property plant and
equipment are not capitahsed

Freehold Iand 1s not depreciated Depreciation
15 charged on property, plant and equipment
on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful economic lives, or the estmated

useful economic ives of ther indwidual major
components, from the date of commissioning

Useful economic Iives are principaliy as follows

Buldings 25 - 60 years
Plant and Equipment
Fixed plant 5 - 40 years
Vehucles, mobile plant
and computers 3 - 10 years

Infrastructure assets
Water mains and sewers

Earth banked dams
and reservoirs

40 - 125 years

200 years

Assets in the course of construction are not
depreciated unul commussioned The carrying
values of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment if evenis o changes
In crcumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable Usefut lives
and residual values are reviewed annually
Where adjustments are required, these are
made prospectively

In the UK regulated water services business,
infrastruciure assets comprise a network of
systems being mans and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage, resenvolrs
dams and sea outfalls The opening balance
for infrastructure assets was calculated with

Kelda Group plc
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reference to the estimated far value of the
infrastructure network as a whole at 1 Apnl
2004 Subsequent expenditure will be dassified
as operating expenditure or capital and
accounted for appropnately

Accounting for leases

{1} Finance leases

Assets which are financed by leasing
agreements that transfer substantially all the
nisks and rewards of ownershup to the lessee
{finance leases) are capitalised in property, plant
and equipment and the cosresponding capital
cost 1s shown as an obligation to the lessor in
borrowings Depreciation 1s generally charged
to the income statement over the shorter

of the estimated useful Iife and the term of

the lease If the operational life of an asset 1s
longer than the lease term and the agreement
allows an extension to that term, the asset may
be depreciated over its operational ife The
capital element of lease payments reduces the
obligation to the lessor and the nierest element
15 charged to the income staternent over the
term of the lease in proportion to the capital
amount outstanding

{n) Operahng leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all
the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified
as operating leases Lease payments are
charged to the income statement on a straight
line basis over the term of the lease

Government grants and contributions
Government grants and contributions in respect
of property plant and equipment are deferred
and credited to the income statement by
instalments over the expected economuc Ives
of the related assets Government grants are
recogrused at therr fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant wilt be
receved ang all attaching conditions will be
complied with

Government grants and contributions receved
in respect of an item of expense during the year
are recognised in the ncome statement on a
systematic basis in line wath the cost that it 5
intended to compensate

Government grants which can be alfocated
against an mdmdual asset are included as part
of the carmang vatue of the asset Government
grants which cannot be allocated to indwdual
assets are held as deferred income and
released to the income statement over

the life of the grant

Investments in joint ventures and assocrates
The group has a number of contractual
arrangements with third parties which
represent joint ventures these take the form
of agreements to share contrel over other
companies The group recognises its interest
In the entity’s assets and liabities using the
equity method of accounting

The group’s interest in its associates, beng
those entities over which it has signsficant
influence and which are nesther subsidiaries
nor joint ventures, ar accounted for using
the equity method of accounting

Under the equity method, the investment in
the joint venture or associate is carnied in the
balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition
¢hanges in the group’s share of It s net
assets, less distnbutions recenved and less any
impairment in value of ndmidual investments
The group income statement reflects the
share of the joint ventures’ and associates
results after tax

Financial statements of joint ventures and
associates are prepared for the same reporting
perrod as the group Where necessary,
adjusiments are made to bnng the accounting
pehaes used into hne with those of the group
The group ceases to use the equity method on
the date from which 1t no longer has control
over or ssigruficant influence i the joint venture
or assoclate Any unreahsed gains or losses
between the group and its joint ventures and
associates are ehminated on consolidation

Inventones

Inventones and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value less
any provision necessary to recognise damage
and obsolescence Cost includes labour,
matenals and an appropnate proportion

of overheads




Provisions

Prowistion 15 made for self insured claims incurred
but not reported, and other known liabilities
which exist at the year end as a result of a

past event

Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as including short
term deposits with onginal matunty withn three
months For the purposes of the consolidated cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and cash equivalents net of outstanding
bank overdrafts held with the same bank where
there 15 a legal nght and intention to offset

Trade and other recevables

Trade and cther recevables do not carry any
interest and are stated at therr nominal value
as reduced by appropnate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts There is
no intention to trade the recewables

Inveices for unmeasured water charges are due
on predeterrmined dates, irespective of date
of receipt Other trade recevables generally
have 7-30 day payment terms An estimate for
doubtful debts is made when collection of the
full ameunt 15 no longer probable Bad debts
are written off when identified

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest
beanng and are stated at ther norminal value

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised
at far value less directly attnbutable transaction
costs After initial recogrition, interest-beanng
loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amartised cost using the effective
interest method Gans and losses anising on
repurchase setilement or otherwise cancellation
of habilities are recogmsed respectively in
investment ncome and finance costs

Derivative financicl instruments

The group uses denvative financial instruments
such as foreign currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge its nisks assocrated with
Intefest rate and foreign currency fluctuations
Such derwative financial instruments are stated
at far value

The fair value of forward exchange contracts
15 calculated by reference to current forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar
matunty profiles The fair value of interest rate
swap contracts s determined by reference to
market values for similar instruments

For the purposes of hedge accounting hedges
are classified as either farr value hedges where
they hedge the exposure to changes in the

far value of a recognised asset or liability and
unrecagnised firm commitments, or cash flow
hedges where they hedge exposure to vanability
in cash flows that s either attributable to a
particular risk assoctated with a recognised

asset or hability or a forecasted transaction

In relation to cash flow hedges to hedge highly
probable forecasted transactions which meet the
condrtions for hedge accounting, the portion

of the gain or foss en the hedging instrument
that 15 determined to be an effective hedge is
recogmised directly in equity and the ineffective
portion 1s recogrised in net profit or loss

When the hedged highly probably forecasted
transaction results in the recegnition of a non-
monetary asset or a hability, then, at the ime
the asset or hability 15 recognised, the associated
gains or losses that had previously been
recognised in equity are included in the initiat
measurement of the acquisition cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or iabiity For all
other cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that
are recoghised in equity are transferred to the
Income statement in the same penod in which
the hedged firm commitment affects the net
profit and loss, for example when the future
sale actually occurs

For dernvatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting, any gams or losses ansing from
changes n fair value are taken directly to
net profit or loss for the penod

Hedge accounting is discontinued when

the hedging nstrurnent expires or 1s sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting At that point in tme,

any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
Instrument recognised i equity 15 kept In equity
until the forecasted transaction occurs If 3
hedged transaction 15 no longer expected o
occur the net cumulative gain or lgss

recogmised 1n equity 15 transferred to profit
or loss for the penod

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
are accounted for simiarly to cash flow hedges
Any gain or loss on the effectve portion of the
hedge 15 recogmised in equity and any gain or
loss on the ineffective portion is recognised

in the income statement On disposal of the
fareign operation the cumulative value of any
gains or losses recognised directly in equity s
transferred to the income statement

Employee benefits

{a) Pension plans

{i] Defined contnbution scheme

The group operates defined contribution
schemnes for those members of staff who are
not members of its defined beneft scheme
Twa are pension plans under which the group
pays a fixed contribution into a separate entity
which operates the schemes The ather prowides
the employees with a lump sum on retirement,
with which they then invest in an annuity Other
than this contributicn the group has no further
legal or constructive obligation to make further
contributions to the scheme

QOblgations for contributions to the scheme
are recognised as 2n expense In the income
statement in the period 0 which they arise

{1} Dehined benefit scheme

The group operates defined benefit schemes
in the UK and US A defined benefit scherme
15 a pensicn plan under which the amount of
pensien banefit that an employee receves
on retirement 15 defined by reference to
factors including age years of service and
compensaton

The schemes are funded by payments
determined by penodic actuanal calculations
agreed between the company and the trustees
to trustee administered funds

A liability or asset 1s recogmised in the balance
sheet In respect of the group s net obhgations
to the schemes calculated separately for each
scheme The liability represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligations at the
balance sheet date less the farr value of the
scheme assets and past service costs
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Year ended 31 March 2007

The defined benefit obligation represents

the estimated amount of future benefits that
employees have earned In return for their
services in current and pnor penods, discounted
at a rate representing the yield on a high
quahty corporate bond at the balance sheet
date, denominated in the same currency as
the obligations and having the same terms

to matunty as the related pension hability,
apphed to the estimated future cash outflows
arising from these obligations The calculation
15 performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected urut credit method

Actuanal gains and losses at 1 Apnl 2004, the
date of transiion to IFRS have been recognised
1n the group’s reserves Actuanal gains and
losses on expenence adjustments and changes
1N actuarial assumptions that anse subsequent
to 1 Apnl 2004 are recognised in the penod in
which they anse directly in the statement

of recognised income and expense

{b) Equity setiled share-based poyments

The group operates a savings related share
option scheme under which options have been
granted to employees The far value of options
granted in exchange for employee services
rendered 15 recogrised as an expense in the
income statement with a corresponding

credit to equity

The total amount which s expensed aver the
vesting penod (s determined by the far value
of the option at the date of the grant The farr
value of the option calculated 15 determined
by use of mathematical madelling ncluding
the Black Scholes option pncing model

The group re-assesses its estimate of the
number of options that are expected to
become exercisable at each balance sheet
date Any adjustments to the anginal estimates
are recognised In the income statement {and
equity) No expense 15 recognised for awards
that do not ultimately vest except for awards
where vesting 15 conditional upon a market
cendition, which are treated as vesting
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wrespective of whether or not the market
condition 1s satisfied, prowided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied

Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan have
two separate vesting conditions, Both of which
are dependent on market-based conditions
(Kelda sharehelder return against a comparator
group and against the market) The market-
based conditions of the award are taken into
account in valuing the award at the grant date
At each subsequent balance sheet date the
group rewises 1ts estimate of the number of
employees who will receve awards It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, (f any i the income
statement, and a corresponding adjustment

to equity over the remaining vesting pernod

Investment i own shares

The group has an employee share trust (ESOT)
for the granting of group shares to executives
and senior employees Shares :n the group
held by the employee share trust are treated as
treasury shares and presented n the balance
sheet as a deduction from equity

The finance costs and admnistration costs
relating to the ESOT are charged to the income
statement Diidends earned on shares held

in the Trust have been wawved The shares are
ignored for the purposes of calculating the
company's eamings per share

Segmental reporting

The group s primary reporting format 15 1ts
business segments and 1ts secondary format

15 geographicat segments A segment 13

a component of the group which can be
distinguished separately as providing a product
or service withen a particelar environment which
15 subject to nsks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments The group has
identified four business segments

« UK Regulated Water Services — Yorkshire
Water

+ US Operations - Aquarion

» UK Service Operations - Xelda Water Services
Safe Move and Loop

+ Property Development — Keyland

The Business Review detalls the activities of
each segment

Transfer pricing between business segments
15 set en an arms length basis similar to
transactions with third parties

The group's geographical segments are
deterrmined by the location of the group's
assets and operations

Disposal groups held for sale

On classification as held for sale, non-current
assets are recognised at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to disposal
Profit or loss associated with these assets

15 classified as “Profit{{loss) for the year an
discontinued operations” Impairment losses
on imitial classification as held for sale are also
included in this dlassificabion, as are any gains
and losses on subsequent re-measurement

Excephonal tems

Exceptional iterns are material items which
derve from events or transactions that fall
within the ordinary actmities of the reporting
entity and which indmdually or, if of a similar
type, In aggregate need to be disclosed by
virtue of their size or inaidence if the financial
staternents are to give a true and fair view




{c) New standards and interpretations not applied

During the year the IASB and IFRIC have 1ssued a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations with an effective date after the date of

these financial statements Of these, only the following are expected to be relevant to the group

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments  Disclosures

IFRS 8 Operating segments

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Capital Disclosures
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC9 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatves

IFRIC 10 Intenim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

1 lanuary 2007

1 January 2009

1 January 2007

1 May 2006

1 June 2006

1 Novernber 2006
1 January 2008

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the group’s financial staternents

n the penod of imual application

Upon adoption of IFRS 7 the group will have to disclose addinonal information about its financial instruments, ther significance and the nature and
extent of risks that they ge nise to More specifically, the group will need to disclose the fair value of its financial instruments and its risk exposure in

greater detail There will be no effect on reported income or net assets
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3 Segmental information

The pnmary segment reporting format 15 determined to be business segments as the group's nsks and rates of refurn are affected predorminantly by
differences in the products and services provided Secondary segment information s reported geographically The operating businesses are organised
and managed separately according to the nature of the products angd senvices prowided

Transfer pnices between bustness segments are set on an arm'’s length basts tn @ manner similar to transactions with third parties Segment revenue,
segment expense and segment result include transters between busingss segments Those transfers are elminated on consolidation

It 15 not possible to split the retirement benefit surplus between the UK subsidiary compamies [t 1s theretore recognised within unallocated

UK regulated Keylond Keyland UK service ops UK service ops Ehmnatons/ Tetadl  US operations

water seraces group assoc group assoc ond SY i d g ldisc d) Totel
Yoor endad 31 March 2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m [
Revenue
Total sales 7411 70 05 1M1 é 458 - @06 O 99 4 1,005 4
Inter-company sales - {06) - {26 5) - - 27 1) - 27 1)
External szles 7411 64 05 851 458 - 8789 04 9783
Depreciation 1400 on - 0 8) - - [140 %) - {1409}
Amertisation of deferred
grant income 32 - - - - - 32 - 32
Cther operating costs 1271 &) 20y 105 78 7) 1402 - 1393 5) |57 8) [451 3)

327 43 - 56 51 - 3477 41 6 3893

Unallocated corporate expenses 49 - [46)
Total Group and share of assoc:ates and joint ventures 3431 416 847
Less associates and joint ventures” interest {4 4) - {4 4)
Less associates and joint ventures tax {0 5) - 05
Group operating profit 3382 N6 3798
Investment income 641
Finance costs {161 1)
Profit from conhnuing operahons before taxation 241 2
Tax expense {69 5
Proht for the year from conhnuing operatons 1717

Balance sheet

Assets 4,150 9 472 282 {482 41781 586 & 4,7647
Liabihttes {1,042 2) 14 3) 21 4 229 (10450) 1529 (11979
Net debt (2,42 5) 12 1) 402 4198 {1981 9) (1227) {21043}
Net assets 879 2 308 470 394 5 1,151 5 o 1,4625

Net debt as noted above includes cash of £111 4m which s included in the balance sheet withun total assets and liabilities of £2 219 7m which are
ncluded on the balance sheet in total habilities

Net debt is defined in note 26 and does not iInclude financial abiities

Other information

Capital additions 3422 43 12 - 347 7 345 3822
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3 Segmental informahon [continued)

UK regulated Keylond Keyland UK service ops UK serwce ops  Eliminatons/ Toldl  US operations

waler servces grovp assoc group assoc ond IV unallocated conhnuing {disconhnved) Toial
Year ended 31 March 2006 £m Em £m £m £m £m £m Em tm
Revenue
Total sales 6938 76 o9 104 0 451 - B51 4 104 2 9556
Inter-company sales - [0 5) - {25 5) - - [260) - 26 0}
External sales 6938 71 09 785 451 - 8254 104 2 9296
Depreciation {1302y 1) - 3 - - {131 6) 1120 {143 &)
Amortisauon of deferred
grant Income 32 - - - - - 32 - 32
Other operating costs {254 1) {43) {0 &) (73 4) {39 8) - {372 2) (59 4) {431 &)

3127 27 ¢3 3s 53 - 3248 328 3576

Unallocated corporate expenses 147) - {47)
Total Group and share of associates and joint ventures 3201 328 3529
Less associates and joint ventures’ interest [38) - {3 8]
Less assocrates’ and joint ventures’ tax 109 - 09
Group operating profit 3154 328 3482
Investment income 512
Finance costs (142 3}
Profit from continuing operations before taxahon 2243
Tax expense (65 4)
Profit for the year from continuing operahons 1589
Balonce sheet
Assets 39337 356 115 {30 &) 4,050 2 6398 4,6900
LiabMities {1,045 7 30 747) 125 5) {1,148 1) 3 {1,279 4)
Net debt [1,563 5} 02 {175 3} 96 5) {18351) {118 5) 11,953 6}
Met assets 1,325 0 328 {138 5) {152 &) 1,066 7 39023 1,457 0

Net debt as noted above includes cash of £101 5m which s inctuded in the balance sheet within total assets and habilities of £2,055 1m which are
included on the balance sheet in total liabiities

Net debt s defined in note 26 and does not include financial hatilities

Other informaton

Capital addibions 3009 01 15 s 370 348 5

The group s geographical segments are based on the group s assets Sales to external customers disclosed in geographical segments are based on the
geographical location of its customers

The group s assets are located in the United Kingdom and North America

The following provides an analysis of sales assets and capital expenditure by geographicat market

Keldo Group ple
Annual Report ond Accounts 2007 51




Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

3 Segmental information {continued)
Umited Morth Amenca

Kingdom  {dicontinued] Total
Year ended 31 March 2007 £m £m £m
Sales revenue 8789 994 978 3
Carrying value of assets 4,208 5960 4,876 3
Capital additions to property, plant and equipment 347 7 345 3822
Year ended 31 March 2004 ’ £m £m tm
Sales revenue 8254 104 2 929 6
Carrying value of assets 41329 658 6 4,791 5
Capital additions to property, plant and equipment 315 370 3485
4 Operafing costs
Conhnung Dhsconhinued 2007 Continuing Drsconhnued 2006
operghons operahons toml operchions operations woiol
£m fm €m Cm £m tm
Own work capitalised (26 6) {58 {324 (237} (4 6) {28 3)
Raw matenals and consumables 206 - 204 191 - 191
QOther external charges 2570 371 2941 2405 346 2751
Staff costs (see note 5} 113 272 1385 104 3 297 1340
Depreciation of property, plant and equ:pment
On owned assets - UK infrastructure 202 - 202 179 - 179
- other assets 1083 - 108 3 988 120 1108
On assets held under finance ease
- UK infrastructure 18 - 18 20 - 20
- other assets 10.6 - 106 129 - 129
Cperating fease rentals - minmum lease payments
- plant and equipment 21 - 21 +18 - 18
- other 03 - o3 03 - 03
Amortisation of grants and contnibutions (32 - 32 32 - 132)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - 01 - 01
Research and development 09 - 09 o9 - 09
Impairment of trade recevables 72 - 72 67 - 67
Other operaling ncome {159) oA 116 8) 11335 0y 3y
494 & 578 5524 464 9 71 4 5363
Auditor’s remunerahon
The remuneration of the auditor 1s analysed as follows
2007 2006
€m Em
Audit of the financial statements 01 01
Other fees to auditor
- local statutory audits for subsidanes 04 Q4
- taxalion services 02 05
- corporate finance services 03 -
09 09
10 10

£16,000 (2006 £15,000) of the audit of the financial statements refates to the comparny
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5 Durectors and employees

2007 2006
Ne No
Average monthly number of people employed
Conhnuing operahons
UK requlated water services 2,198 2,129
Other activities 1,061 972
Discontinued operations
US operations 584 568
3,843 3,669
Conhnumg Drsconbinved 2007 Continuing Drscontinved 2004
operahons operahons tatal operonens operations fotal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Total employment costs
Wages and salanes 87.4 195 106 9 8318 189 1627
Social secunity coniributions 87 11 98 64 13 77
Other pension costs 152 LY ns 141 95 236
ma 72 138 5 104 3 297 1340

Included mn wages and salaries 5 a total share-based payments expense of £19m (2006 £1 6m) all of which 1s from transactions accounted for as an
equity-settled shave-based payment transaction

2007 2006

Directors’ emoluments £m tm
Crrectors’ emoluments 14 12
Amounts recewable under fong term incentrve plans 03 02
Ne MNo

Number of directors accruing benefits under defined benefit schemes 2 2

The remuneration of the directors wha are the key management personnel of the group Is set out In note 29 1n aggregate for each of the categories
specified in IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”™ Further information about the remuneration of indvidual direciors s provided in the audited part of the
directors’ remuneration report on pages 33 1o 37
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6 Investment income and hnance costs

Conhnung Discontinved 2007 Contmuing Dhiconhnued 2006
operahons operahons total operatons operahons wial
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Investment income
Interest en bank deposits 106 06 12 139 06 145
Gan on cross currency swap 78 - 78 - - -
Return on pension scheme 3ssets 457 1 438 373 31 40 4
Total investment income 641 37 678 512 37 549
Finance costs
Bank loans and overdrafts 300 - oo 128 - 128
Gther loans Jé 101 137 27 86 i13
6 625% bond 2031 160 - 160 59 - 159
6 875% guaranteed bonds 2010 138 - 138 138 - 138
5 25% Eurobond 2006 144 - 144 214 - 214
5 375% bond 2023 (11X} - 108 07 - 107
3 048% index linked guaranteed bond 2033 69 - 69 62 - 62
146% index linked guaranteed bend 2056 29 - 29 - - -
1462% index inked guaranteed bond 2051 29 - 29 - - -
Amortisation of issue costs in respect of bonds 06 - 0é 05 - 05
Finance leases 204 - 204 230 - 230
tnterest cost on pension scheme habilities 8 a9 427 353 40 393
Total finance costs 1611 40 1751 1423 12 6 154¢
No terest has been capitalised by the group duning the year {2006 Enil)
7 Tax expense
2007 2006
fm Lm
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 30% {2006 30%) 494 535
UK adjustments in respect of prior years 4 N33
Total current tax from continuing operahons 482 4072
US tax - discontinued operations 48 76
Total current tax 530 478
Deferred tax
UK charge for temporary differences arising and reversing i the year 228 149
UK adjustments in respect of prior years 15) 103
Total deferved tax on continuing actwvities (see note 20) 23 252
US deferred tax ~ discontinued operations 14 (]
Total deferred tox 227 263
Totol tox on profit on ordinary achvihies 757 741
The tax charge in the income statement is disclosed as follows
Tax on profit from ordinary actmties 695 654
Tax on discontinued operations 62 87
757 741
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7 Tax expense [contnued)

2007 2006
£m £m

Tax relahng to items charged or credited to equily

Deferred tax

Actuanal losses in respect of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-rebrement benehits 78 {2 6

Net {loss){gain on revatluation of cash flow hedge (4% 08

Tax charge in the statement of group recognised income and expense n2n ne

The differences between the total current and deferred tax charge shown and the amount calculated by apphying the national rates of corporation tax
(UK 30%, US 40 9%) to the profit on ordinary actvities before tax 1s as follows

2007 2006

€m £m
Profit from continuing operations before tax 241 2 2243
Profit from discontinued operations before tax (14 2} 239
Less share of associates and joint ventures' tax 05 09
Profit on ordinary actmities before tax 227 5 249 1
Less share of associates' and joint ventures' profit before tax o7 11 8)
Group profit on osdinary actmities before tax 226 8 247 3
Current and deferred tax on group profit on ardinary activities at the standard UK tax rate 680 742
Effects of
Expenses not deduct:ble for tax purposes 84 [¢n]
Utihisation of tax losses - o1y
Pension obligation and share-based payments 06 -
Adpstments to tax charge in respect of prior penods 29 21
Higher taxes on overseas earnings 16 20
Group current and deferred tax charge for the period 757 741
Deferred tax for the year relates to the following

2007 2006

£m £m
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 78 224
Fair value adjustment of infrastructure assets 03 ©3)
Roil-over relief - 02
Share-based payments - (o8
Retirement benefits cbligation 138 48
Deferred tax charge 213 263

The tax charge in future periods may be affected by the following factors
(y A change In the UK corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% from 1 Apnl 2008 as set out in the 2007 budget
{m A change 1n the rate of capital al'owances as announced in the 2007 budget

The )mpact of the above changes cannot be reasonably assessed by the group

Kelda Group ple
Annual Report and Accounts 2007 55




Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

8 Disconhnued operations
The sale of Aquanon s requiated water business was announced on 1 May 2007 Aquanon Operating Serwices does not form part of the sale but
continues to be treated as discontinued as the group expects to dispase of Aquanon Qperating Services in the near future

The results of the group’s US operations for the year are summansed below:

2007 2006

£m £m

Revenue 994 104 2
Expenses {57 8) 71 4)
Operating profit Né 328
Impairment charge {45 5) -
Investment income 37 37
Finance costs (14 0 {12 4)
(Loss)/profit before tax from discontinued operations (14 2) 239
Tax expense (& 2) (87
{Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations (20 4 152

The tax expense all refates to ordinary actmities during the year Disposal groups held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and farr value
less costs to dispasal, resulung 1n an imparment charge of £45 5m

The major classes of assets and habilines relating to US operahons included in disposal groups held for sale

2007 2006
£m £m
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3888 4049
Intangible assets 1728 2121
Trade recewables 250 228
Cash and shost term investments 94 188
5960 658 6
Liabihties
Trade and other payables 1138 {88 1)
Deierred tax lability {190 {202)
Pension oblgation {2014 227
Borrowings {132 1) {137 3)
{285 0} {268 3)
The net cash flows attributable to US operahons are as follows
Operating cash flows 405 459
Investing cash flows 331} 329
Fiancing cash flows 122 (182)
Net cash outflow {4 8) 52
Profit/(loss} per share from discontinued operohons
Basic {5 8lp 4tp
Diluted {58lp 41p

This has been based on loss of £20 4m (2006 profit of £15 2m), average number of shares 357 3m {2006 371 0m) and dilutive number of shares of
358 4m {2006 372 2m) However, this does not take into account the future effect on earmings per share ansing from the use of the gross sale proceeds
of $610m (2006 $625m) See note 10 for further details
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8 Disconhinved operahons {continued}
Items included in the group statement of recognised mcome and expense with respect of discontinued cperations are as follows

2007 2006
£m Lm
Exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations 79 156
Actuarial gains m respect of defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefits 05 36
Tax on itemns taken to equity 02 {14)
Total on tems taken directly to equity 7 &) 178
9 Dividends
2007 2006
£m £m
Equity — ordinary
Final declared and paid {relating to prior financial year) 21 60p (2006 20 66p) per share 766 749
Intenm paid 9 25p (2006 8 75p) per share 331 325
Dwidends paid 1097 1094
Proposed final dwedend for the year ended 31 March 2007 of 23 Op (2006 21 60p) per share 818 783

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a hability in these

financal statements

Divdends for the year amounting to £0 6m {2006 £0 8m}) in respect of the company’s shares held by the ESOT (see note 22) have been waved and

are therefore excluded from the aggregate of dwicends paid

10 Earmings per share

2007 2006

£m Em
Basic earmings per share on profit for the year 423 469
Basic earnings per share frem continuing operations 481 428
Adjusted earnings per share on profit for the year 551 469
Adjusted earnings per share (excluding deferred tax) on profit for the year 614 540
Diluted earnings per share on prohit for the year 421 468
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 479 427
Diluted adjusted earnings per share an profit for the year 549 468
Diluted adjusted earmnings per share {excluding deferred tax) on profit for the year 612 53¢

Basic earmings per share {EPS} is calculated by dviding the profit attributable to ardinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares i 1ssue dunng the vear The ordinary shares held in the ESOT are excluded from the weighted average number of shares for this purpose

For diduted EPS the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted te assume conversion of all dilutive potential erdinary shares
The group has only one category of dilutive potential orcinary shares those share options granted to employees where the exercise prece is less than

the average market price of the company's ordinary shares during the year
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10 Earnings per share [continyed)

Wesghted Waeighsed
average 2007 averoge 2004
number of Earnungs nueeber of Earrungs
Earnungs shares per share Ecrnings shares per share
£m m ] t£m m ]
Basic EPS 1513 357 3 423 174 1 o 459
Effect of dilutve share options 11 02 12 on
Diluted EPS 1513 3584 421 1741 3722 448
Basic EPS from continuing operations 1717 3573 481 1589 7o 428
Effect of dilutwe share options 11 02 12 o
Diluted EPS from conhinuing operahions 77 358 4 479 1589 3722 427
Adjusted EPS 1s presented as an alternative measure below
Basic EPS 1513 3573 423 174 1 3710 469
tmpaument charge (net of tax} 455 - 128 - - -
Adjusted EPS 1968 3573 551 1741 o 469
Effect of dilutive share options 11 o2 - 12 cn
Diluted adjusted EPS 196 8 358 4 549 1741 372 2 468
Basic EPS 1513 3573 423 1741 3710 469
tmpatrment charge (net of tax} 45.5 - 128 - - -
Deferred tax 227 - 63 263 - 71
Adjusted EPS {excluding deferred tax) 2195 3573 614 2004 3710 540
Effect of dilutive share options 1 o2 - 12 o1
Diluted adjusted EPS (excluding deferred tax) 2195 358 4 612 2004 3722 539
11 Intang:ble assets
Capuahsed
bid costs Goodwill Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2005 04 208 6 2090
Additions 06 03 09
Arartisation {01} - {01)
Exchange differences - 17 3 173
Transferred to assets included in disposal groups held for sale - 212 1) 212 1)
At 31 March 2006 0% 141 150
Disposals {0 5} - {05}
At 31 March 2007 04 141 145

Goodwill 15 subject to an annual mpairment test Goodwill has ansen within two operating segments  The carrying 2mount of goodwill 1s allocated
between the operating segments as follows

2007 2006

Cm £m

UK regulated water services (Continuing operations) 141 141
US operations {discontinued operations) 172 8 2121
186 9 22672
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11 Intangible assets [continued)

{a} UK regulated water services

Goodwill arose on the acquisiton of the entire share capital of York Waterworks plc on 8 March 1999 following the transition to IFRS goodwill 15 no

longer amortised and s tnstead subject to annual Impaurment reviews

The recoverable amount 15 determined on a value n use basis, using three year cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
board The discount rate appled to the cash flow projections 15 5 5% (2006 8 12%) No growth rate was assumed

{b} U5 operahons

The goodwill relating to US operations has been transferred into discontinued operations Consideration of its carrying value has been given in note 8

and it 1s covered by the imparrment charge sncluded tn that note

12 Property, plant and equipment

Lend and Infrastructure Plant ond Under Group
buildings ety squipment consiruchon total
£m tm £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2006 1,400 0 2,346 8 1,747 0 1958 56896
Additions 264 202 502 2509 3477
Transfers on commissioning 213 428 517 1158 -
Disposals 7 4} - 187} o2 e 3
Crants and contnibutions {24 4) 24 4}
At 31 March 2007 1,438 3 2,409 8 1,840 2 3063 59946
Depreciation
AL 1 April 2006 426 & 7&1 5 7029 - 1,8910
Disposals (40} - 8o - {124}
Charge for the year 248 220 941 - 1409
At 31 March 2007 447 4 7835 7884 - 2,0193
Met book amount at 31 March 2007 9909 1,626 3 1,051 8 306 3 39753
Cost
At 1 April 2005 1,440 5 2,156 5 20138 796 5.89C 4
Exchange adjustments 79 - 342 10 431
Additions 210 47 8 84 4 195 3 3485
Transfers on commissioning 281 142 5 410 231 &) -
Drsposals 10 7) - 1109) {19 {12 6}
Grants and contributions - - - 23 1) 23 1)
Transfer to assets included m disposal groups held for sale 96 8) - {435 5) {24 4) {5567}
At 31 March 2006 1,400 0 2,345 8 F,747 O 1958 546896
Depreciation
AL 1 April 2005 421 4 410 7366 - 1,899 2
Exchange adjustrments i7 - 104 - 121
Drsposals (o 6} - 11 5 - N2
Charge for the year 255 205 976 - 1436
Transfer to asseis included i disposal groups held for sale 21 6} - {1302} - {151 8)
At 31 March 2006 426 6 7615 7029 - 1,810
Net book amount at 31 March 2006 9734 15853 1,044 1 1958 3,7986
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12 Property, plant and equipment {continued)
Assets included above held under finance [eases amount ta

Land and Infrastructure Plant and Under
bunldings ossets equipment censtruchon total
£m £m £m £m
Cost 127 4 859 228 9 - 442 2
Ceprecation (25 &} 13 5) {112 3) - (151 4)
Net book emount at 31 March 2007 1018 724 1166 - 2908
Cost 1509 86 4 2799 - 5172
Depreciation (27 2) maz 122 2) - (161 1)
Net book amount at 31 March 2006 1237 747 1577 - 3561
13 Investments
Share of Total Share of Total
net assels Loans to invastments net assets Loarts o nvesiments
m osseciated assocated n assoaated n jont jont n jont
wndertakings undertokings  undertokings venlures venhures ventures
£m £ £m £m £m £m
Cost and share of post acquisihion reteined profits
At 1 Apnl 2005 10 64 74 03 148 151
Share of retained profits far the year {06 - 10 &} 1M - 11
Mavement in the year - 12 4) (2 4) - ©on on
At 1 Apnl 2006 04 40 44 14 147 161
Share of retained profits for the year {04) . 10 4] 06 - 06
Mavement in the year - 14 14 - 11 11
At 31 March 2007 - 54 54 0 158 178
Of which the aggregate amounts of net assets, revenue and operafing profit relating to associates are
2007 2006
£m £m
Non-current assets 31 51
Current assets 02 73
Share of gross assets 33 124
Current labilties 3 4 (1o
Non-current habilities 01 e
Share of habilities 33 {12 0}
Share of net assets - 04
Revenue 05 09
Operahng profit - 03
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13 Investments {continued)
Of which the aggregate amounts of net assets and net profit relating to joint ventures are

2007 2006
€m m
Non-current assets 445 372
Current assets 888 318
Share of gross assets 1333 690
Current liabilitres {58 9) {23 4)
Non-current abibties {724) {442}
Share of habilities {1 3 {67 &)
Share of net assets 20 14
Revenue 458 451
Operating costs {407 {39 8)
Operahng profit 51 53
Finance costs a1 (35
Profit before tax 10 18
income tax 04 (07)
Net profit 06 1
b
14 Finanaial assets
In the prior year, financial assets consisted of swaps that changed fixed rate euro habiities to floating rate stesling kabilities
The swaps matured on 26 July 2006 and have not been replaced At 31 March 2006 the far value of the swaps was £27 8m
15 Inventonies
2007 2006
£m fm
Raw maternals and consumables 06 a5
16 Trade and other recervables
2007 2006
£m £
Trade recevables 599 575
Arnounts owed by associated undertakings 13 17
Prepayments and accrued income 744 8564
Qther debtors
Recewvable within one year 2t 6 366
Recewvable after more than one year - 01
157 2 1815

All recewvables are reviewed regularly to assess any associated credit nisk There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk
Any impairments considered necessary have been made to the amounts included above
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17 Financing

{1} Cash ond short term deposns

2007 2006
£m £m
Cash at bank and i hand 302 -
Short term deposits 718 827
1020 827
At 31 March 2007 the group had avalable £831m (2006 £500m) of undrawn committed borrowing facities
For the purpose of the censohdated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
2007 2006
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents in continuing operations 1020 827
Cash and cash eguivalents held in discontinued operations 94 162
Bank overdrafts - 32
11.4 Q57
{n} Borrowings
2007 2006
Short term borrowings £m £m
Bark loans 308 2 143
5 25% Eurobond 2006 - 4290
Bank overdrafts - 32
Qther loans - 44
Finance leases 59 79
3141 4588
2007 2006
Long term bOFI'OWII'IgS £m Em
Bank loans 3795 2940
6 625% bond 2031 240 2 2402
& 875% guaranteed bonds 2070 995 1993
5375% bond 2023 963 1961
3 048% index linked guaranteed bond 2033 me 1080
1462% index linked quaranteed bond 2051 1271 -
146% index hnked guaranteed band 2056 1271 -
Other loans 20 27
Finance leases 3862 446 5
1,769 5 14868

6 625% bond 2031
The bonds are repayable v one sum on 17 April 2031 Interest 1s charged at 6 625% The principal amount is £240m

6 875% guaranteed bonds 2010
The bond 15 repayable in one sum an 23 Apnl 2010 Interest 15 charged at 6 875% The pancipal amouni 1s £200m

5 25% Eurobond 2006
The Eurgbond was repaid in full on 26 July 2006 Interest was charged at 5 25%

5 375% bond 2023

This bond s repayable 1n one instalment on 21 february 2023 Interest 1s charged at a constant rate of 5 375% The prtincipal amount 15 £200m
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17 Financaing (conhnued)
(u} Borrowangs {continued)
3 048% index linked guaranteed bond 2033

This bond 1s repayable in one instalment on 21 February 2033 The nterest 1s paid at 3 048% multiphed by an index ratio and the principal amount

15 Increased semi-annuatly in ine with the retail price index The principal ameunt 1s £100m

1 462% index hinked guaranteed bond 2051

This bond 1s repayable in one instalment on 1 August 2051 The interest s paid at 1462% multiplied by an index ratio and the principal amount

1S increased semi-annually n hne with the retail price ndex The principal amount s £125m

1 46% windex linked guaranteed bond 2056

This bond 15 repayable In one instalment on 1 August 2056 The interest is paid at 146% multiphed by an index ratio and the principal amount

15 ncreased sermi-annually in ine with the retail price sndex The principal amount I1s £125m

The above bonds have an early repayment option at the discretion of the issuer

Bank loans

Short and long term bank loans are the aggregate of £394 0m held in sterhing and £293 7m held in dollars (2006 £308 3m in sterling) The £293 7m
held in dollars 15 repayable on 23 Aprl 2007 and bears interest at 5 58% All other bank loans are denoted m sterling and bear interest at normat

commercial rates The weighted average interest rates associated with the bank loans were 5 2% (2006 4 9%)

{m} Finance leases

Minmum lease

payments
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases

Within one year 51 551
More than one but less than five years 228 2 2430
After five years 4749 594 4
754 2 8925
Less future finance charges {3821} (438 1)
Present value of lease obligations ¥ 454 4
Amount due for settlement within 12 months 59 79
Amount due for settlement aiter 12 months 3862 4465
3921 454 4

All lease obligations are denorminated in sterling

The weighted average lease term 15 11 6 years (2006 16 6 years} for the year ended 31 March 2007, the average effective borrowing rate was S 6%

{2006 54%} All leases are on a fixed repayment basis 2nd no arrangements have been entered into for contsngent rental payments
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18 Trade and other payables

2007 2006
fm £m
Amounts falling due withun one year
Trade payables 482 453
Capital payables 503 713
Deferred grants and contnbutions on depreciated property plant and equipment a5 32
Social secunty and payrolt deductions o 29
Receipts i advance 530 57
Other payables 733 201
M3 2645
Amounts falling dve after more than one year
Deferred grants and contributions on depreciated property, plant and equipment 4 822
Other payables 760 794
1554 16164

Trade and other payables prtncipally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongong costs The directors consider that the carrying
amount of trade and other payables approximate to their farr value

19 Prowisions

m
AL 1 April 2006 34
Utiised in year ' 22
At 31 March 2007 12
Provisions are principally in respect of self insurance and vacant properties on which costs are expected 10 be ncurred over the next 8 years
20 Deferred tax hability
Farr value
Accelesared  adjustment of
caputel shsture Roll over Financal Pension Share-bosed
cflowances assets relief nghryments obligahons payments Net
Lm Em £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2005 5811 247 07 $32) {332) 35 5686
Chargef{credit) to income 224 03 02 - 48 (0 8) 263
Chargef({credit) to equity 23 - - 08 19 09 25
Transfer to asset classifred as held for sale (29 7} - - - 90 05 {202y
At 1 April 2006 5761 24 4 09 14 0} {17 5} 27 5772
Chargef{credit) to income 78 {0 3) - - i38 - 213
Charge to equity - - - 48 77 - 125
At 31 March 2007 5839 241 (L1 08 40 27) 6110

The group has unrecogmised capital losses of £115m {2006 £32 8m) which are available indefinitely agamnst future ehgible capital profits of the group
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on capital losses in the current or prior year as therr utshsation 1s not currently foreseen
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21 Pensions
{}] Descniption of schemes

UK pension scheme
The group sponsors a UK pension scheme called the Kelda Group Pension Plan (KGPP) The KCPP has a number of benefit categories providing benefits
on a defined benefit basis and one category providing benefits on a defined contribution basis

Contributions over the year ended 31 March 2007 were paid by members at 3%, 4%, 4 5%, 5% or 6% of pensionable pay (depending on benefit
category) The company contributed at 475% of members’ contributions in respect of the majority of members Part of this contribution for the
current accounting year was paid in advance in March 2006 The group also made a special contnbution of £50m on 29 March 2007

An accrual for unfunded dwectors benefits of £2 7m (2006 £3 4m} has been included in the group s accounts at 31 March 2007

US pension scheme

Aquarion in the US operates a number of non-contributory defined benefit retrement plans The principal retirement plans relate to Aquanon company,
employees of the Amencan Water Works companies and employees of Aquanon Services Company Aquanon also provides healthcare benefits for
certain categories of employees

{1i} Major assumphons
Pension contnbutions are deterruned with the advice of iIndependent qualified actuanies, Mercer Human Resource Consulting, on the basis of annual
valuations using the projected unit credit method

2007 2006

w us UK us

% % % %

Inflation 30 - 27 -
Rate of increase n salanes 42 40 39 40
Rate of increase to pensions in payment and deferred pensions 30 25 27 25
Discount rate for scheme habilities 53 59 49 595
Life expectancy for a male pensioner aged 60 (in years) 230 n7 230 N7z
Projected hfe expectancy at age 60 for male aged 40 (in years} 59 27 259 217

Changes to legislation with regard to cash commutation have led to no changes in assumptrons in the actuanal valuation

The rate of increase in health care costs 1n the US varies by year of projection with an ulumate rate of 5% pa from 2012 Pension ncreases in the US
apply only to certain members of the Aquanon Services Company Pension Plan

{in) Scheme asseis and hobilities
Scheme asseis are stated at thesr bid values at the respective balance sheet dates

To develop the expected long term rate of retwrn on assets assumption, the company considered the current level of expected returns on risk free
investments (primanly government bonds), the historical level of the nsk prermum associated with the other asset classes in which the portfoho is
invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class

2007
UK us
Expected long Expected long
Market term rate of Market term rete of
velue return value return
£m % £m %
Fair valve of scheme assets
Equities 493 ¢ 715 262 7 60
Bonds 2315 471 205 590
Property 789 715 - -
Other 116 4 40 02 4 85
Total value of assets B17 ¢ 469
Present value of scheme habilites {810 &) {67 0}
Pension osset/{hability} 73 {20 1}
Kelde Group plc
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21 Pensions |continued)

{1} Scheme ossets and liabilities {continued)

2006
UK us
Expected long Expected long
Market term rate of Market term rate of
valve retrn value relumn
£m % Em %
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 517 4 4 85 285 7 65
Bomds - 142 5 4 42 213 595
Property 499 685 - -
Other 219 410 03 490
Total value of assets 7317 501
Present value of scheme habilihes 793 9) 72 8)
Pension liability %21} 227

The pension plans have not nvested in any of the group s own financial instruments nor4n properties or other assets used by the group

{iv] Analysis of the amounts included within the financial statements

2007 2006
UK us Toral UK us Total
fm £m £m £m Em £m
Analysis of amount charged to aperating €osts
Current service cost 159 16 175 128 17 1435
Past service cost 31 - 3t 45 - 45
Anaiysis of amount credited to nvestment iIncome/ffinance costs
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1457) 31 (48 8) 137 3} BN {40 4)
Interest on pension scheme habilities 388 39 427 353 40 393
Amounts charged to the mcome statement before taxchon 121 24 145 153 24 179
Analysis of amounts recogmised in statement of group recogrused
inceme and expense
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 25 12 37 1103 10 1113
Changes in assumptions underlying the present
value of the scheme's liabihties 231 on 224 {104 4} 26 {101 8]
Actuanal gain recogmsed in the statement of group
recognised income and expense 256 05 261 59 ie 95

The total contributions ta the defined benefits plan in the year ending 31 March 2008 are expected to be £18 3m for the group The disposal of
Aquarton in 2007 will reduce the group’s retirement benefit obligation
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21 Pensions {conhnued)

{v] Reconcihahion of opening and closing retirement beneht habilihes and assets

2007 2004

UK us Total Ux us Totol

] £m £m £m £m Em
Movement i habilities durting the year
Liabities at beginning of year {793 8} (728 866 6) (627 &) 167 1) 1694 7)
Movement in year
- plan participants’ contributions {42 {61} "3 (3 & on (37
— current service cost {159} {16) (17 5) {12 8} {17} {14 5)
- Interest cost {38 8} 139 {42 7) 135 3} 40 39 3)
- past service cost 31} - BN {4 5} - (43
- benefits paid 237 35 272 224 33 257
- actuanial gainf{loss} 231 o7 22.4 (104 4} 26 {101 8}
- business combinations - - - {27 5) - 127 5)
Unremitted contributions at the year end {16} - 14 {0 5} - @5
exchange differences - 86 86 - {5 8} (58)
Pension habilities ot end of year {810 &) 67 0) 877 &) 793 8] 72 8 1866 6)
Movement in assets during the year
Assets beginaing of year m7z 501 781 8 547 2 437 5909
Movement in year
- plan participants contributions 42 ot 43 36 [+ 37
- employers contnbutions 575 19 504 326 15 341
- other finance income 457 31 48 373 31 404
- actuanat gain 25 12 37 1103 10 1113
- benefits paid 237 {3 5) {272 122 4} {33 {257)
- business combinations - - - 231 - 231
Exchange differences - {60 60) - 40 40
Pension assels at end of year 8179 469 864 8 7317 501 7818
{wvi} History of expenence gains and losses

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

UK £m Em £m £m Em
Farr value of scheme assets 8179 N7z 547 2 4991 4071
Present value of defined benefit obligation 810 &) {793 8) 1627 &) {587 0) 1566 9)
Surplusf{deficit) in the scheme 73 62 1) {BO 4} 879 1159 8)
Expenence gains and losses on scheme liabilities - - 67 73 -
Expenence gains and losses on scheme assets 25 1103 200 729 11629}
us
Fair value of scheme assets 469 501 437 421 402
Present value of defined benefit ebhigation {67 0) 728 {67 1} {60 5} {57 4}
Deficit in the scheme {20 1) (227 {23 4} (18 4} {172
Expenence gans and losses on scheme assets 12 10 (] 55 7o

IAS 19 requires that the pension schemes are valued using market conditions at the group s year end This produces a volatle figure for any surplus or
dedicit as it s largely dependent on the devels of stock markets on ene particular date The group's pension habilities are funded on a long term basis
{based on the tnenmial review of KGPP and annual reviews in the US) rather than the 1AS 19 disclosures

The cumulative amount of actuanzl gainsflosses recognised since 1 Apnl 2004 in the group staternent of recogrised income and expense 1s £43 3m
(2006 £172m)
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21 Pensions [conhinued)

{vsr} Post rehrement medical scheme n US

A one percentage point change n the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following effects

Increase Decreaie

£m fm

Effect on aggregate service cost and interest cost 02 (01}
Effect on defined benefit obhgation 40 130}

{vin} Defined contribution scheme

The company runs two defined contnbution pension scheme for its employees in the UK and ene in the US The total charged to the income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007 was £1 2m (2006 £4 6m)

22 Authonised and issved share capital

2007 2006
Nomingl Mamingl
Value 2006 Valve
Number £ Numbar |4
Avthonsed

Ordinary shares of 15%,p each 814,395,257 126,683,707 814,395,257 126,683 707

Allotted, called up and fully pard
Or¢hinary shares of 15%,p each 358,525,396 55,770,617 366,370,396 56,990,950

Movements in the year relate to the completion of a share buy back scheme continued from the prior year

During the year 7 845,000 (2006 9,290,000} ordinary shares of 15%,p were bought back for cancellation

The group has an ESOT which is used to administer the 1ssue of shares to employees and directors under the company’s *Sharesave’ save-as-you-eam

share option scheme and the Long Term Incentwve Plan (LTIP)

The ESOT 1s a trust funded by interest free loans from the company All the administration costs of the trust are wntten off to the income statement
as they accrue The trust holds 2,066,306 shares at 31 March 2007 (2 947 812 at 31 March 2006}

2007 2006

Date of Number of Number of Opheon Normul

Ophons granted and outstanding at 31 March 2007 gront shares shares price exercise dote
Sharesove schemes

Three year schemes 10 Jan 2003 - 39,489 3200p Mar Aug 2006

9 Jan 2004 39,984 392,235 366 Op Mar Aug 2007

7 Jan 2005 372,116 399,358 4461 0p Mar Aug 2008

30 Dec 2005 428,689 447,190 588 Op Mar Aug 2009

28 Dec 2006 346,848 - 741 0p Mar Aug 2010

Five year schemes 5 Jan 2001 - 14,443 299 0p Mar Aug 2006

4 Jan 2002 12,374 277,803 275 0p Mar Aug 2007

10 Jan 2003 435,060 463,769 3200 Mar Aug 2008

9 Jan 2004 257,632 270,794 3660p  MarAug 2009

7 Jan 2005 361,420 375,033 461 Op Mar Aug 2010

30 Dec 2005 277,870 288 214 588 Op Mar Aug 2011

28 Dec 2006 177,172 - 741 0p Mar Avg 2012
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23 Reconalation of group movements in equity

Capital Investment Share-based
tssued Shere redemption n own Hedging Translaton payment Retained
capal presuum reserve shares reserve reserve reserve earmings Total
£m £m £m £m £m €m £ £m £m
At 1 April 2005 584 147 1453 13 4) {7 5) 150} 16 1,246 9 14430
Transfer from the income
statement - - - - - - - 174 1 1741
Share buy back {14 - 14 - - - - 729 729
Didends approved and paid - - - ~ - - - (109 4) {109 4)
Treasury shares disposed
of through vesting of
share schemes - - - 36 - - 0 8) - 28
Share-based payment charge - - - - - - 14 - 16
Total included in the
group statement of
recognised income and
expenditure - - - - {19 156 09 32 17 8
At 1l A,pnl 2006 570 167 1467 9 8) (¢ 4) 106 33 1,241 9 1,457 0
Transfer from the ncome
statement - - - - - - - 1513 151 3
Share buy back n2) - 12 - - - - {59 3) 59 3)
Dwidends approved and paid - - - - - - - noe A {109 7}
Treasury shares disposed
of through vesting of
share schemes - - - 31 - - {08 - 23
Tax on items taken directly
o equity - - - - - - a1 - 01
Share-based payment charge - - - - - - 19 - 19
Total included in the
group staterment of
recogmsed income and
expenditure - - - - 13 79 - 155 189
At 31 March 2007 558 167 147 9 167 19 27 45 1,2397 1,462 5
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24 Finanaial instruments
Treasury pohicy 15 descnbed in the finanoia! review on page 14 The disclosures below exclude short term recewvables and payables which are pnmanty of a
trading nature and expecied to be settled within normal commercial terms

{a} Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets and habilihes
The interest rate nisk profile of the group's financial assets and hatulities at 31 March was as follows

Year ended 31 March 2007

Within 1-2 2-3 3a 4-5 More than
1 year years years years years 5 yeons Toto!
Financial habihites tm £m £m tm £m £m £m
Fixed rate
Bank loans 14 5 247 250 271 430 2597 3940
6 625% bond 2031 - - - - - 2402 2402
6 875% guaranteed bonds 2010 - - - 1995 - - 1995
5 375% bond 2023 - - - - - 196 3 1963
Other loans - - - o9 - 1306 1315
Preference shares 06 - - - - - 06
Finance lease swaps -~ 05 14 [ER)] {23) 48 05
151 252 266 2234 407 831 6 1,1626
Floatng rote
Short term loan 2937 - - - - - 2937
3 048% index inked guaranteed bond 2033 - - - - - 114 1116
1462% index linked guaranteed bond 2051 - - - - - 127 1 1271
1 46% index linked guaranteed bond 2056 - - - - - 127 1 1271
Other loans - - 20 - - - 20
Finance leases 59 64 68 73 78 357 ¢ 3921
9946 64 88 73 78 7237 1,053 6
Financial assets
Floating rate
Cash and short term deposits {111 4) - - - - - {111 4)
Loans to associatesfjoint ventures 21 2) - - - - - {212
{132 &) - - - - - - {132 &}
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24 Financial mstruments [continued)

{a} Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets and liobilihes {continued}

Year ended 31 Morch 2006

Within -2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Morg then

1 year yoars years years yoors 5 years Total
Finanaial habilives £m £m £m £m £m &m £m
Fixed rate
Bank loans 143 14 5 247 250 271 2027 3083
6 625% bond 2031 - - - - - 240 2 2402
6 875% guaranteed bonds 2010 - - - - 199 3 - 1993
5 25% Eurobond 2006 500 - - - - - 500
5 375% bond 2023 - - - - - 1961 1961
Other lpans - - - - 12 1324 1336
Preference shares - 06 - ~ - - 06
Finance lease swaps 15 - 14 313 0z 89 153

65 8 151 261 283 227 8 7803 1,143 4
Floahng rote
Short term loans 44 - - - - - 44
Bank overdraft 32 - - - - - 32
5 25% Eurobond 2006 3790 - - - - - 3790
3 048% index linked guaranteed bond 2033 - - - - - 1080 1080
Other loans N - - 27 - - 58
Finance leases 79 62 20 26 103 411 4 454 4

397 6 62 90 123 103 5194 P54 8
Financial assets
Floating rate
Cash and short term deposits (101 5) - - - - - {101 5)
Financial assets {278) - - - - - {78)
Loans to associatesfjoint veniures (187 - - - - - (187

{148 0) - - - - - (148 0

{b} Credit nisk

The carrying value of the swaps represents the cost at market rates, of replacing them in the event of default

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates to therr far value The amounts presented in the balance
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful recenables estmated by group s management based on prior expenience and their assessment of the current
economIc ervironment

Centrally managed funds are mvested entirely with counterparties whose credit rating 15 A-' or better

Maximum credit exposure relating to financial assets 1s represented by carrying value as at the balance sheet date

(<] Foreign currency nsk

The group may borrow in appropnate foreign currencies in order to mitigate the effects of the currency exposures arising from its net Investments
overseas The forergn exchange exposure on the translation nto sterling of the net asseis of Aquarion, which are denominated i US dollars 1s hedged
by US dollar borrowings held
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Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

24 Financial instruments (continved)

{d) Fair values of finanaal assets and finanacl habihihes
The following table provides a companson by category of the book values and the fawr values of the group s financia! assets and labilities, including
those classified under discontinued operations, at 31 March

007 2007 2006 2006
Book volue Far volue Book vohes Faw valve
£m £m tm tm
Pnmary financial instruments financng the group's operahions
Finanaial assets
Cash and short term deposits N4 {111 4} {101 5 {101 5}
Eurobond swaps R - (27 9) 27 8}
Loans 1o associatesfjoint ventures 2v 2 212 {i87) [187)
Financiol habilites
Short term loans 2937 2937 44 44
Bank overdraft - - 32 32
Fixed rate interest rate swaps in respect of finance leases 05 [13] 153 153
Fixed rate bank loans 3940 833 3083 Nnos
Fixed rate sterling bonds 6360 6819 8356 7138
Floating rate stering bonds 3458 704 108 0 1297
Eurobond - - 4290 4290
US loans 1315 131 5 136 7 1627
Finance leases 3921 21 454 4 454 4
Preference shares 06 06 06 06
Other loans 20 20 27 27

The fair values for all financial instruments have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at interest rates prevailing for a
comparable matunty period for each instrument or by reference to market values for similar instruments

le) Hedges
The group's policy 15 to hedge interest rate nsk within approved board policies and guidelines

Interest rate swaps are used to manage interest rate exposure under a policy that requires between 85% and 95% of Yorkshire Water Services Limuted’s
net debt and 70% and 95% of Kelda Group plc’s net debt to be held at fixed rates At the financial year end the proportions were 57% and 72%
respectively This will be rebalanced once a review of levels has been completed after the retum of cash to sharehalders

Hedging of Eurcbond {€625m)
Dunng the year the group repaid its 7 year £625m 5 25% Eurobond The hedging instruments ended on the same date The hedge was highly
effective, and therefore there s no impact on the Income statement or on equity

In July 1999 the group issued a 7 year €£625m 5 25% Eurcbond to finance the group's US acquisition and ta provide further funds for the non-UK
regulated business Dunng 2003 €12 1m was bought back, leaving a norinal value outstanding of €612 9m

The group had no requirement for euros and was exposed to movernents in the eurofsterling exchange rate which affected the sierling equivatent of the
loan The exposure occurred at each reporting date and also upon ultimate repayment of the loan in order to fully protect the stering habihty the group
entered into a number of hedging nstrurments

The euro fxed rate hability was swapped in the most part nto a floating rate steriing liabiity {1 ¢ a far value hedge) with a propartion swapped into a fixed
rate sterling liability e a cash flow hedge) in a senes of swaps The combnation of the senes o swaps was considered to be a hedge of the underying
requirement to pay fed rate euro interest

The hedging mechanism was a perfect hedge against the hability to pay fixed rate euro interest because the dates of interest payments under the senes
of swaps were the same as the dates on which interest repayments were due per the onginal bond

The far value of the hedging instrument at 31 March 2007 was an unrealised gan of £nil (2006 £27 8m)

The hedge was assessed 1o be highly effective at 31 March 2006 and an unrealised loss of £4 4m relating to the hedging instrument was mciuded in
equity however it was fully offset by the unrealised gain on the Eurobond The instrument was no longer required at 31 March 2007
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24 Financial instruments {conhinued)

Hedging of waterest due under finance leases

Yorkshire Water Services Ltd has a number of finance leases with a number of counterparties lasting from inception for penods up to 32 years In
eachinstance interest payable under the lease 15 set once a year in late March or early Apnl based on 12 month UBOR Yorkshire Water Services Ltd 1s
therefore exposed to changes in 12 month LIBOR which could have a material effect on iterest costs from year to year and over tme In order to i
the interest cost on a proportion of its net debt Yorkshire Water Serwices Ltd has entered into a number of floating to fixed rate interest rate swaps

The hedging instrument 15 a perfect cash fiow hedge against changes i 12 month LIBOR far the penod of the swaps agreements because the dates of
interest payments under the swaps are the same as the dates on which interest 1s due per the leasing agreernents and the nominal value of the swaps
that hedge the cost equals the nocrinal lease value outstanding

The fair value of the hedging instrument at 31 March 2007 was a £3 5m unrealised loss (2006 £13 Sm loss)

The cash flow hedge was assessed to be highly effective at 31 March 2007 and an unrealised loss of £11 3m {2006 £1 8m foss) relating o the hedging
instrurment was included in equity (net of deferred tax)

Hedging of investments in foreign operotions
At each reporting date the group retranslates the dolkar value in the UK invesiment i the US operations into sterling at the closing rate To hedge
against movernents i the US dollarfstesing exchange rate the group holds dollar borrowings which hedge $461m of the group’s exposure

25 Share-based payments

Share ophons

The employee share option plans are epen to all qualfying employees and provide for an exercise price equal to the dally average market pnce on the
date of grant less 20% The options wilt vest f the employee remains in service for the full duration of the option scheme (either three or five years)
There are no cash settlement alternatives

2007 2006

Waghted Waighted

average averoge

2007 exerse 2006 exarcise

Ophions prce i8] Options prce [£)

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 2,988,328 450 3,242,496 345
Granted dunng the year 528,211 74 757,210 588
Lapsed during the year {121,478} 477 172,666) g
Exercised dunng the year 1684,896) n {938,712) 315
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,710,165 536 2,988,328 450
Of which exercisable at the end of the year 52,358 345 53932 314

The wetghted average share price at the date of exeraise for share options exercised during the year was £8 56 (2006 £7 98)
The weighted average of the fair value of the share options was £4 71 (2006 £3 g9)

The oplens outstanding at 31 March 2007 had a weighted average exercise pnce of £5 36 (2006 £4 50}, and a weighted average remaining contractual
Iife of 2 3 years {2006 2 5 years)

The fair value of the share options granted 15 estimated as at the date of grant using the Black Scholes statistical model
The inputs into the Black Scholes model are as {ollows

2007 2004
Share pnice at date of grant 926p 735
Exercise price 741p 5B8p
Expected volatility 25% 25%
Expected hfe 3and 5 years 3 and 5 years
Risk free rate 508% 4 56%
Expected dmdends 3p 300

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatdity of the group’s share price over the previous & years
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Notes to the group accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

25 Share-based payments [continued)

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan have two separate vesting conditions, both of which are dependent on market-bDased condiions

The market-based conditions of the award are taken into account in valuing the award at the grant date by applying the probability that the LTIPs

will vest to the current market price of the group s shares At each subsequent balance sheet date the group revises its estimate of the number of
employees who will receive awards It recognises the impact of the revision of onginal estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaiming vesting pertod

70% of the full value of the LTIPs will vest based on the company’s total shareholder return (TSR} performance over the performance period (three
years} The group s share performance will be compared to that of six other LUK water companies At the end of the performance penod the TSR of all
seven compantes will be calculated, and the results ranked Of the 70% 100% will vest if the group s ranked first, 60% if the group 1s ranked second
and 20% if the group s ranked third Otherwise none of the 70% waill vest

For the remaning 30%, the group’s TSR will be compared to the constiuents of the FTSE 350 index If the group 15 in the top 20%, 100% will'vest
if the group 15 at the median, 30% will vest, but If the company s ranked below, none will vest

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

average averaga

farr value feir value

LTPs ] [TIPs 18]

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 971,271 264 884,525 286

Granted during the year 204,894 278 294,149 243

Lapsed dunng the year 253,999 325 186 259) 304

Vested durning the year {189,798) 3138 [121,144) 345

Qutstanding at the end of the year 732,372 227 971,271 264
26 Addihenal cash flow informahon

Fair value Fair vadue
and other and other

At Apnl Cash noncash Al 31 March Cash nomrcash At 31 March

2005 mavement movements 2006 mavement movements 2007

Analysis of mavement in net debt £m tm £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 167 1 (69 3) 11 989 167 {42 114

Short term deposits {> 3 months) - - 26 26 {2 6) - -

Financial assets 324 - 4 6) 27 8 - {27 8) -

199 5 (69 3) 29 1293 141 {32 0) 1ni4

Overdrafts 21 12} o 32 - 3z -

Debt due within one year 24 14 301 (456 8} {450 8] 1142 27 8 {308 8)

Finance leases due within one year 72 {07) - 79 20 - 59

{33 4) 282 1456 7) {4619 1162 310 3147

Debt due after one year [V 493 2) 1131 1) 4498 {1174 5) 1354 1) 138 {1,514 8)

Finance leases due after one year {456 4) 100 {o1) {444 5) 603 - (384 2}

1,949 &} 21 4497 (1,621 0y (293 8) 138 {1,901 0}

Net debt 1,783 5) {162 2) {7 9} (1,953 6} 143 5) 128 {2,104 3)

Kelda Group ple
74  Anaual Report and Accounts 2007




26 Additonal cash flow information (continued)
This s spht as follows

2007 2004
£m £m £en £m £m fm
Continuing Drscontnued Total Conhinuing Discontnued Total
Cash and cash equivalents 1020 94 114 827 162 e89Q
Short term deposits (> 3 months} - - - - 26 246
Financial assets - - - 278 - 278
1020 94 4 1105 188 129 3
Overdrafts - - - (32 - 32
Debt due within one year {308 2} 0 &) {308 8) (447 7) By {450 B)
Finance leases due within one year 59 - 59 {7 9) - 79
{314 1} |0 &) {314 7) {458 B) 3 1) {461 9]
Debt due after one year {1,283 3) a2 s [.514 8) {1,040 3) 134 2) 1,174 5)
Finance leases due after one year {386 2) - (386 2) {446 5) - {446 5)
{1,769 5} 121 5 (1,901 0) (1,486 8) (134 2) (1,621 0
Net debit {1,981 4} 227 2,104 3) (1,835 1} REE! 1,953 )
Net debt dees not include financial hiabilities which are not considered te be part of the group s borrowings
Operating profit as noted in the group cashflow statement ¢an be denved as follows
2007 2006
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year from continuing operations before taxation M2 2243
tnvestment tncome 6 {64 1) 51 2)
Finance costs 3 1611 1423
Group eperating profit from continuing operations 3382 3154
Profit for the year from discontinued operations before taxation 8 {142 239
Imparment charge g 455 -
Investment income g 37 137)
Finance costs 8 140 126
Operating profit from dscontinued operations M6 328
27 Commitments
2007 2006
£m £m
Contracts paced at 31 March 3455 3010

The long term investment programme for the UK regulated water services business which 1s expected 1o dentfy substantial future capital expenditure
commtments in the period 1 Apnl 2005 to 31 March 2010, was agreed as part of the Penodic Review process finalised in December 2004

At 31 March, group companies were committed to making the following payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below

The group has entered into commercial leases on certan property motor vehictes and items of machinery These leases have an average durahion of
between 3 and 10 years There are no restrictions placed on the group by entering into the leases
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27 Commutments {continued)
Future mimmurn rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2007 2007 2006 2006

Land and tond and
buldings Other bunidings Crher
£m £m £m tm
Within one year 03 21 03 10
Between two and five years 05 16 02 01
Over 5 years 01 - - -
09 7 05 11

28 Contingent habilihes

At the time of completion of the Waste Recycling Group (WRGC) merger, an indemnity was given to WRG by Yorkshire Environmental Solutions bimited
backed by a Kelda Group plc guarantee i respect of a land fill site managed by 3C Waste Limited and known as the Rhonda site The indemnity
15 unlimmited 10 amount and the time imit for bringing claims has expired, except for personal Inury claims where the lirnit 15 15 years from 26 January

1999 The matters covered under this indemnity are any losses anising out of
(8} non-compliance with an Environment Agency notice served in May 1988,

(b) any claims by indmicluals for personal tnjury harm to health, nwisance etc, and

(c) hability for neghgent performance of the contract between 3C Waste Limited and Rhonda Waste Disposal brmited
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29 Related parhes

Group companies have extended finance to several associates and jomnt ventures on 2 proportionate basis with other principal stakeholders

These loans are included in investments analysed in note 13

Sales o Debiors bolanca Loans o/ (from)
related parties with relased parbes related parmes
2007 x 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em £m Em
Jont ventures
Aberdeen Environmental Services (Holdings) Limited 51 41 09 07 05 10
Brey Utihies Limited - - - 153 137
Brey Services Limited 61 66 34 07 - -
Associates
KeyLandmark Limited - - - - 24 19
Whitehall tanding Uimited - - - - {03 {03}
Whinmoor Limited - - - - LR} 01
KeylLand Gregory Limited - - - - 25 22
KeyLand Gregory (Retall} Limuted - - - - a7 01
12 107 43 14 212 187

The loans carry market rates of interest Total interest recesved on loans to associaied undertakings and joint ventures was £2 Om (2006 £2 2m)
All outstanding balances are unsecured Sales and purchases between related parties are made at nermal market prices Dunng the years ended 31
March 2007 and 2006 the group has not made any prowision for doubtful debis relating to amounts owed by related parties

There were no other matenal transactions between the group and its associated undertakings or joint ventures during the year

Compensation of key management personnel including directors)

2007 2006

£m £m
Short term benefits 28 22
Post-employment benefits 04 03
Terrmination payments 02 -
Share-based payments o8 02

42 27

30 Post-balance sheet events

A arrcular to shareholders dated 9 May 2007 set out details of a proposed return of cash to shareholders of 210 pence per existing ordinary share,

that was approved by shareholders on 1 June 2007

See note 8 for detaiks of the disposal of Aquanon s regulated water business
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Group companies

Class of Proportion

Counry of shores of class of

Prnapal subsidiary compomes incorporahon n 1ssue shore held
Water services

Yorkshire Water Services Limited ™ England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Aquarnion Company Inc us Ordinary 100%

Aquarnion Water Company of Connectrcut Inc us Ordinary 100%

Aquarnion Water Company of New York Inc us Ordinary 100%

Aquarion Water Compary of New Hampshire Inc us Ordinary 100%

Aquarion Water Compary of Massachusetts Inc us Ordinary 100%

Aquarnon Water Company of Sea Cif Inc us Ordinary 100%

Delta Water Services limited England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Grampian Waste Water Services Limited Scotland Ordinary 100%

Kelda Water Services Limited™ England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Kelda Water Services (Wales) Limited England 8 Wales Ordinary 100%
Other achvihes

KeyLand Developments Limited* England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Keyland Investment Properties Limited England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Loop Customer Management Limited* England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Holding and finance companies

Featurepack Limited™ England & Wales Ordinary 100%

Kelda Group Inc uUs Ordinary 100%

Yorkshire Water Services Finance Pic England & Wales Qrdnary 100%

Class of Propartion

Couniry of shares of class of

Pnnapol associoted undertakings and joint ventures INCOX POTGhon In 15308 shore held

Aberdeen Emtronmental Services {Holdings) Limited Scotland Ordinary A Nl

Scotland  Ordinary B’ 100%

Scotland  Ordnary *C’ Nif

Brey Utiities Limited England & Wales  Ordinary A’ 100%

England & Wales  Ordinary '8’ Mt

England & Wales Ordinary 'C Nil

Brey Services Limited England & Wales  Ordtnary ‘A’ 100%

England & Wales Ordinary ‘B Nil

England & Wales  Ordinary ' Nil

Dalnada Water Services Lid Northern lreland  Ordinary ‘A Nil

Northern treland  Ordinary *B’ 100%

* Shares held by parent company
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Five year financial summary

IFRS UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Turnover Group and share of associates and |oint ventures £m 9783 9296 806 2 B22 6 8381
Water Services .
- UK regulated £m 7a11 493 8 5401 604 4 567 0
- US operations Em 994 104 2 922 941 937
Other actvities £m NS 856 307 270 298
Associates and Jotnt ventures £m 463 460 432 971 147 &
Operating proht- Group and share of associates and joint ventures £m 3847 3529 3042 292 2 2771
Water Services
= UK regulated £m 3327 3127 2721 2525 2337
- US operations £m 4186 328 256 314 349
Other actmities £m 99 65 48 47 26
Associates and joint ventures £m 51 56 606 82 118
Corporate costs £m a8 47} {4 9) 48 59
Profit before taxahon and excephional items £m 300 9 248 2 2186 1914 1752
Profit before taxehon £m 2554 2482 206 9 206 2 1643
Earnings per share p 423 469 405 471 327
Adjusted earmings per share {excluding deferred tax) P 614 540 521 46 2 42 4
Diwvidend per share - interm p 925 875 834 810 786
- final B 230 2160 2046 1873 1819
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Assets employed
Non-cuirent assets £m 4,581 9 4,451 1 4,2227 3,996 3 3,988 46
Net current assetsf{liabilires) and non-current habilties excluding borrowings  em N,e151) (1,040 5) 996 2) (558 &) {550 3)
im 35668 3 AV06 3,226 5 3,437 7 3,438 3
Financed by
Shareholders’ funds im 14625 1,457 0 14430 1,731 3 1,717 3
Minority interests £m - - - 06 06
Net debt £m 2,1043 1,953 6 17835 1,705 8 1,720 4
£m 1,566 8 31,4106 32265 34377 J4383
Yorkshire Water regulated investment
Capital expenditure £m ma 2703 2822 246 4 2633
Infrastructure renewals £m 513 603 670 559 562
m 627 3306 349 2 3023 3195
Employees {average number)
Water services
- UK requlated No. 2,198 2,129 2,158 2,157 2147
=~ US operations N 584 568 592 589 490
Other actiities No. 1,061 972 482 715 621
Group total No. 3,843 3.669 3,432 3,461 3,258

Regulatory accounts

The regulatory accounting informatton of Yorkshire Water Sennces Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 published in accordance with Condition F
of the Instrument of Appointment can be obtained free of charge by witing to the Company Secretary, Western House, Halfax Road, Bradiord BDG 252

IFRS and UK GAAP

The amounts disclosed for 2004 and earlier periods are stated on the basis of UK GAAP because it 1s not practicable to restate amounts for penods

prior to the date of transitton to IFRS
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Auditor’s report on the company financial statements

Independent Auditor's Report to

the Members of Kelda Group Plc

We have audited the parent company financia!
statements of Kelda Group plc for the year
ended 31 March 2007 which compnse the
company bzlance sheet and the related notes
1o 12 These parent company financial
statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein We have
also audited the information in the directors’
remuneration report that s descnbed as
having been audited

We have reported separately on the group
finanaal statements of Kelda Group plc for
the year ended 31 March 2007

This report s made solely to the company's

members, as a body, in accordance with Sectron
235 of the Compames Act 1985 QOur audit work

has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept ar assume

responsibility to anyone other than the company

and the company s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opmions
we have formed

Respechve responsibilities of directors

and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing

the Annual Report, the directors’ remuneration
report and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with apphcable
United Kingdom law and Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Cenerally Accepted
Accounting Practice) as set out in the
Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the parent company

financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and requiatory
requirements and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland}

We report to you our opivion as to whether
the parent company financial statements give a
true and {arr view the parent company financial
statements and the part of the directors’
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remuneration report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance wath the
Companies Act 1985 and that the information
given in the directors’ report 15 consistent with
the parent company financial statements

The information given n the directors’ report
inctudes that specific information presented

in the business review that 1s cross referred
from the business review secbion of the
directors’ report

We also report to you if, in our opinion,

the company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not receved all the
information and explanations we requare for
our audst or if infermation specified by faw
regarding directors remuneration and other
transactions 15 not disclosed

We read other information contained in the
Annual Report and consider whether 1t 15
consistent with the audited parent company
financial statements The other information
comprises only the unaudited part of the
directors’ remuneration report, the chairman’s
statement and the operating and financial
review We consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or maternial inconsistencies with
the parent company financial statements

Qur responsibiities do not extend to any
other infermation

Basis of audit oprnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UX and
Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit Includes examination, on a test basis
of ewidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial
statements and the part of the directors’
remmuneration report (o be audited It also
includes an assessrnent of the significant

estimates and judgments made by the directors

in the preparation of the parent caompany
financial statements, and of whether the
accouniing pohicies are appropnate to the
company’s circumstances, consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as
to obtain all the information and explanations

which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient ewidence to gve
reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements and the part of the
drectors’ remuneration report to be audited
are free from matenal misstatement whether
caused by fraud or other srequlanity or error
In formng our opinion we also evaluated

the overall adequacy of the presentation of
informatign in the parent company financial
statements and the part of the dwectors’
remuneration repart to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion

the parent company financial statements
gwe a true and fasr view, in accordance

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the
company's affairs as at 31 March 2007,

the parent company financial statements and
the part of the directors’ remuneration report
10 be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
and

the information given 1n the directors’ report
15 consistent with the parent company
financial statements

- ~
k\-«\s\)—"‘ (U\O LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Registered Auditor
Leeds
14 June 2007



Company balance sheet

At 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Notes fm Em
Fixed assets
Inveskments 4 2,4598 17220
Current assets
Debtors 5 599 853
Financial assets 12 - 278
Cash at bank and in hand 957 786
15546 1917
Credifors amounts folling due within one year
Short term borrowings 2 (293 6 (433 4}
Cther creditors 6 351 3) (1730)
Net current habilines {489 3) {4147}
Total assets less current habilites 1,970 5 1,307 3
Creditors amounts falling due ofter more than one year
Long term borrowings 1 1439 7} {439 5)
Other creditors 6 - {2 0)
Net assets 1,508 B&45 8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 2 558 570
Share premium account 8 167 167
Other reserves
Capital redemption reserve s 147 9 1467
Reserve for own shares 8 6n {9 8}
Share-based payment reserve s 49 38
Profit and loss account [ 1,3122 651 4
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,530 8 8658

Approved by the board of directors on 14 June 2007 and signed on therr behalf by

Martin Towers, Group Finance Director

W@W 61/5 .

Keldo Group plc
Annuol Report and Accounts 2007 81




Notes to the company accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

1 Company accounhing policies

Basis of accounting

The company’s financial skatements are
prepared under the histoncal cost convention,
modified to include revatuation of all financial
nstruments as described below, in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom Accouniing
Standards (UK GAAP)

The aceounting policies of the company have
been consistently applied over both the current
and preceding penod The going concern

basis has been applied in these accounts

Foreign currencies
Indmdual transactions denominated in foreign

currencies are translated into functional currency

at the actual exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions Monetary assets and
habilities denominated n foregn currencies
are translated inte functional currency at the
rates ruling at the balance sheet date Profits
and losses on both indmdual foreign currency
transactions durng the year and monetary
assets and habuities are dealt with in the
profit and loss account

Depreciahon

Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed
assets at rates calculated to write-off the cost,
less estimated residual vatue, of each asset
evenly over its expected useful ife

Useful economic lives are pnincipally as follows

Plant and equipment

Fixed plant 5 - 40 years
Vehicles mobite plant
and computers 3 - 10 years
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Taxation

The taxation charge 15 based on the result for
the year as adjusted for disallowable and non-
taxable items using current rates and takes
into account taxation deferred because of
tring differences between the treatment of
certain items for taxation and for accounting
purposes

Deferred tax 1s recognised i respect of

all timing differences that have ongnated

but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result in an
obligation to pay more or a nght to pay less
tax in the future have accurred at the balance
sheet date, subject to the following

« provision s made for gains on ¢hisposals

of fixed assets that have been rolled over
into replacement assets only where, at the
balance sheet date there s a commitment
to dispose of the replacement assets
deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that the directors consider that
it 15 more hkely than net that there will

be suitable taxable profits from which the
future reversal of the underlying timung
differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the rates at
which 1t 15 estimated that tax will anse based
on {ax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidianies are stated at
cost and reviewed for impairment if these
are indications that the carrying valuee may
not be recoverable

Financial instruments

Trade debtors and creditors
Trade debtors do not carry any interest and
are stated at their nominal value as reduced by

appropnate allowances for estmated wrecoverable

amounts There 15 po Intention to trade the
debtors Trade creditors are not interest bearing
and are stated at their nomunal value

Interestbearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are inibidlly recognised
at far value less directly attnibutable transaction
casts After initial recognition, interest-

bearing leans and barrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effectve
interest method Gains and losses ansing on re-
purchase, settlement or gtherwise cancellaton
of habilities are recognised respectively in
ivestment income and finance costs

Derivative financial instruments

The company uses dervative financial
Instruments such as foreign currency contracts
and interest rate swaps to hedge its nsks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency
fluctuations Such dervative financial instruments
are stated at far value

The tarr value of forward exchange contracts
15 calculated by reference to current forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar
matunty profdes The fair value of interest rate
swap contracts i1s determined by reference to
market values for similar instruments

For the purposes of hedge accounting hedges
are classified as either farr value hedges where
they hedge the exposure to changes in the

far value of a recognised asset or hability and
unrecognised firm commitments, or cash flow
hedges where they hedge exposure to vanability
in cash flows that s either attnbutable to a
parucular nsk associated with a recognised
asset or habiliy or a {orecasted transaction

In relation 1o cash flow hedges to hedge
highly prebable forecasted transactions which
meet the conditiens for hedge accounting,
the portion of the gan or loss on the hedging
instrument that i determined to be an
effective hedge 15 recogrised directly in equity
and the ineffective portion s recognised in net
profit or loss

When the hedged highly probable farecasted
transaction results in the recogrutien of a
non-monetary asset or a habibty, then, at the
ume the asset or hability 15 recognised, the
assocrated gains or losses that had previously
been recognised in equity are included in
the initial measurement of the acquisition
cast or other carrying amount of the asset

or hability For all cther cash flow hedges, the
gains or losses that are recognised 1n equity
are transferred to the income statement in
the same penod in which the hedged firm
commitment affects the net profit and loss, for
example when the future sale actually occurs




For dervatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting, any gains or losses ansing irom
changes in fair value are {aken directly

to net profit of loss for the penod

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when

the hedging instrument expires or s sold,
terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting At that point

i bme any cumulative gamn or loss on the
hedging instrument recogrised in equity i
kept in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs If a hedged transaction 15 no langer
expected to occur, the net cumulative gain
or loss recognised 10 equity s transferred

to net profit or loss for the penod

The directors have taken advantage of the
exemptian n FRS 25 and have excluded
disclosures relaung to financial nstruments
from the financial statements on the basis
that the financal instruments of the company
are included wathin the consoldated financial
statements of the group

Pensions

The company's employees participate in a
number of group defined benefit schemes
as described In note 21 1n the consolidated
hinancial siatements The company s unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets
and habiities 1n the schemes on a consistent
and reasonable basis and therefore accounts
for the schemes as If they were defined
contnbution schemes Detais of the defined
benefit schemes of the group {accounted for
In accordance with group's accounting policies)
can be found 1n note 21 of the consolidated
financial statements

Share-based payment

The company operates a savings related share
option scheme under which options have
been granted to employees The farr value

of options granted in exchange for employee
services rendered i3 recognised as an expense
in the proiit and loss account insofar as st
relates to the shares ssued to employees of
the company with a corresponding credit

to equity The share-based paymenti charge
relating to shares issued to employees of
subsidiary companies 15 taken to investments
with a corresponding credit to equity

The total amount which 1s expensed over the
vesting pericd 1s determuned by the fair value
of the option at the date of the grant The fair
value of the option calculated 15 determined by
use of mathematical modelling including the
Black Scholes option pricing mode!

The company re-assesses its estimates of

the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable at each bafance sheet
date Any adjustments to the ongwnal estimates
are recognised In the income statement

(and equity} No expense s recognised for
awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
awards where vesting 1s condibional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market
condition 15 satishied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satished

Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan
have two separate vesting condit:ons, both

of which are dependent on market-based
conditions (Kekda shareholder return against

a comparator group and against the market)
The market-based conditions of the award
are taken into account in valuing the award at
the grant date At each subsequent balance
sheet date the company revises 1ts estimate
of the number of employees who will recenve
awards I¢ recogruses the impact of the revision
of onginal estimates, if any, in the income
statement and a corresponding adjustment
o equity over the rematning vesting penod

The provisions of FRS 20 have been applied to
options granted after 7 November 2002 and
not vested before 1 January 2005

Reserve for own shares

The company has an employee share trust
{ESQT) for the granung of company shares

to executives and senior employees Shares

n the company held by the employee share
trust are treated as reserve for own shares and
presented i the balance sheet as a deduction
from equity

The finance costs and administration costs
relating to the ESOT are charged to the profit
and loss account Dmadends earned on shares
held in the Trust have been waved The shares
are ignored for the purposes of calculabing the
company s earnings per share

Corresponding amounts

The company complies with FRS 28
“Corresponding amaunts™ FRS 28 sets

out the requirements for the disclosure of
corresponding amounts for items shown in
an entity s pnmary finanoal statements and
the notes to the financial statements

Diwvidends recervable

Dradends recevable are recogmsed when
the shareholders’ nght to recewe the revenue
1s established

Dividends payable
Intenm and final dvidends payable are
recogmsed on payment of the dwidend

2 Profit atnbutable to parent company
The profit of the parent company was

£829 8m (2006 E£278 6m) Advantage has
been taken of the exemption available under
section 230 of the Compantes Act 1985 not
to present a profit and loss account for the
company alone The parent company profit
and loss account was approved by the board
on 14 June 2007

3 Tongible fixed assets

The assets of the parent company comprise
plant and equ:pment At both 1 April 2006
and 31 March 2007 both the cost and
accumulated depreciation of the fixed assets
was £0 4m leaving a net book value of Enil

The company does not have any assets held
under finance leases
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Notes to the company accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

4 Invesiments

Toral
Loans nvestments
. Shares in group 0 grovp n group
undertakings undartakings undertakings
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 9350 787 0 V7220
Increase in funding - 737 4 737 4
Other movements 04 - 04
At 31 March 2007 9354 1,524 4 2,459 8
A st of the major subsidianes of the company can be found on page 78
5 Debtors
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 43 333
Prepayments and accrued income 14 201
Deferred tax asset 03 04
Tax debtor 227 302
Other debtors
Recewable within one year 12 13
599 853
Deferred tax asset
£m
At 31 March 2006 04
Decrease dunng the year on
At 31 March 2007 01

Deferred tax in the company 1 1n relation te a short term biming difference Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that
suitable taxable profit wall be avalable against which the deductible trming differences can be utilsed

6 Other creditors

007 2006
£m Lm
Amounts falling due wathin ene yeor

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings nreg 1176
Other creditors 337 554
33513 1730

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Other creditors - 20
- 20
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7 Borrowings

Short term borrowings

2007 2006
£m im
Bank loans 2936 44
5 25% Eurobond 2006 - 4290
2936 433 4
Long term borrowings
2007 2006
£m £m
6 625% bond 2031 240 3 2402
© 875% gquaranteed bonds 2010 199 4 1993
4397 4395
Long term borrowngs are repayable as follows
In more than one year but not more than two years - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 199 4 -
After more than five years 240 3 4395
4397 4395
& 625% bond 2031
The bonds are repayable in one sum on 17 April 2031 Interest 1s charged at 6 625%
6 875% guaranteed bond 2010
The bonds are repayable in ane surn on 23 April 2010 Interest s charged at 6 875%
B Movement on reserves
Shate Capital Resarve
premivm redemphon for own Hedging Share-bosed Profit and
oceount reserve shares reserve  paymant reserve loss occount
£m m £m £m £m £m
Shareholders' funds at 1 Apnl 2005 167 1453 (13 4) 01 22 5555
Profit for the year - - - - - 2786
Share buy back - 14 - - - 729
Dradends approved and paid - - - - - {109 4)
Treasury shares disposed of through vesting of share schemes - - 36 - - -
Losses on cash flow hedges - - - o - -
Share-based payment charges - - - - 16 -
Retrzansiation of US dollar loan - - - - - {04)
Shareholders’ funds at 1 Apnl 2006 167 146 7 > 8} - 38 6514
Profit for the year - - - - - 8298
Share buy back - 12 - - - 159 3}
Drndends approved and paid - - - - - {109 7}
Treasury shares disposed of through vesting oi share schermes - - 31 - 108 -
Share-based payment charges - - - - 19 _
Closing shareholders’ funds at 31 March 2007 167 147 9 %N - 49 1,3122

Of the £1,312 Zm (2006 £651 4m) profit and loss reserve, £1,199 4m (2006 £524 1m} 15 distnbutable and £112 8m (2006 £127 3m) 1s non-distribuiable

Investments in own shares consssts of 2 066,306 (2006 2 947,812) ordinary shares of the company with a norminal value of £0 3m (2006 £0 5m)
at 15%p per share which are held n ESOT The market value of the shares held by the ESOT at 31 March 2007 was £19 4m (2006 £23 2m) and the
net book value was £6 7m (2006 £9 8m) The market value of the shares held by the ESOT on 14 June 2007 was £19 7m
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Notes to the company accounts

Year ended 31 March 2007

9 Reconchahon of shareholders’ funds

2007 2006

£m £m

Shareholders’ funds at 1 April B&S5 8 7648
Profit attnbutable to shareholders 8298 2786
Share buy back {59 3) 729
Dividends approved and paid o9 n {109 4)
Treasury shares disposed of through vesting of share schemes 23 36
Losses an cash flow hedges - 1
Share-based payment charges 19 16
Retranstation of US dollar loan - {04)
Shareholders' funds at 31 March 1,530 8 8658

10 Shore-based payments

Details of share-based payments schemes operated by the company are disclosed in note 25 of the group accounts The charge for share-based
payments was £0 1m (2006 £0 1m)

11 Dwrectors and employees

2007 2006

£m £m

Wages and salaries 21 19
Soaial secunity contributions 02 02
Other pension costs 04 10
27 KR

On average the company had 25 employees during the year ending 31 March 2007 (2006 28) Details of directars emoluments are set out in the
directors’ remuneration report No elements related specifically to their work in the company

12 Other mformahon

Disclosure notes relating to called up share capital, share re-purchases, auditars’ remuneration and financial instruments are indluded withm the financial
statements of the group

The company has guaranteed certain subsidiary undertakings’ borrowings of £789 8m (2006 £763 4m)

The company has taken advantage of the exemption granted by paragraph 3¢ of FRS 8, not to disclose transactions with other group companies
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General information

Financial calendar

Announcement of preliminary results 7 June 2007
Annuzl general meeting 1 August 2007
Ex dvidend date 18 June 2007
Record date 15 June 2007
Final dvedend payment date 31 Avgust 2007
Announcement of intenm results 28 November 2007
Ex dwidend date 5 December 2007
Record date 7 December 2007
Intenm dvidend payment date 4 January 2008
Analysis of ordinary shareholders at 31 March 2007 by size of account and category
Number of Number of % of 1oial
holders sharas held share
1-500 20,327 4,784,727 133
501 - 1,000 11,978 8,942,663 249
1,001 - 10,000 14,102 29,449,083 821
10,001 - 100 000 581 18,466,983 515
100,001 - 500,000 255 156,740,518 43173
500,001 + 13 140,141,422 3909
47,256 358,525,396
Number of Number of % of tatal
holders shares held shore
Individuals 43,488 51,280,051 14 30
Neminee companies 3,194 300,402,826 8379
Banks & insurance companies 33 730,358 020
Pensian funds 51 1716 N7 048
Other corporate bodies 489 4,395,244 123
47,256 358,525,396

Payment of dwidends to mandated accounts
Shareholders who do not currently have ther
dividends paid directly to a bank or bullding
soclety account and who wish to do so should
complete a mandate form abtainable from
the registrar Tax vouchers are sent to the
shareholder’s regisiered address under this
arrangement unless requested otherwise

Share price informahon

The latest Kelda Group plc share price 15
available at www keldagroup com, Ceefax,
Teletext and also on the FT CityLine, telephone
0906 003 5492 {calls charged at 60p per minute}

Informahon on gifing your shares

To transfer your shares ta another member of
your family as a gift please ask the company's
registrar for a gift transfer form The completed
transfer form and refevant share certificatefs)
should be returned to the registrar to record
the change in ownesship

The company supports a scheme whereby
shareholders with small holdings of shares,
whose value makes them uneconomic to sell
can donate them to WaterAid Details can be
obtained from the shareholder information
office Further information about WaterAwd 15
available at www waterad org uk

Share dealing service

Information on a low cost share dealing service
offered by aur registrar 15 availatrle from Capita
on 0870 458 4577 or at www capitadeal com

Report on casselte tape

For the benefit of blind and partially sighted
shareholders the text of the Annual Report
2007 15 available on audho casseite tape free
of charge from the shareholder information
office Anyone knowing a shareholder who
could benefit from this service 1s asked to
draw It to therr attention

Avoiding unsolicited mail

The company is legally obhged to make

its register of members avarlable tc other
organisations on payment of a prescribed

fee This may result in sharehelders receming
unsehcted mail If you wash to imit the amount
of unsohoted mail, you should write to Mailing
Peeference Serece, FREEPOST 29 LON20771,
London W1 EQZT Tel 0845 703 4599, of you
can register onbne at www mpsonline org uk
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Our contact details

Secretary and Registered Ofhice
Stuart McFarlane

Kelda Group plc

Western House

Halifax Road

Bradford

BD6 252

Tel 01274 600 111

Registrar

Capita Registrars

Narthern House

Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge

Huddersfield

HDS OLA

Tel 0870162 31

www capitaregistrars com

e-mail shareholder services@capitaregistrars com

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP
PO Box 61

Cloth Hall Court
14 King Street
Leeds

LSt 2)N

Principal Bankers

National Westminster Bank pic
City Office

Park Row

Leeds

LS1 205
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Finanaigl Adwisers
Greenhill & Co
Regent Gate

56-58 Conduit Street
London

W1S 2Y7Z

Jont Stockbrokers
UBS

1 Finsbury Avenue
London

EC2M 2PP

JPMorgan Cazenove
20 Moorgate
London

EC2R 6DA

Shareholder Informahon Office
Freephone Q800 919 303

Water Supply and General Enquiries
Custorner helpline 0845 124 24 24

Waste Water Enquinies
Customer helpline 0845 124 24 29

Billing Enquiries
Customner nelpiine 0845 1 24 24 20

www keldagroup com
www yorkshirewater com
WWW aguanon com
www loop co uk




